
 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

Children and Young People's Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
 

Date Wednesday 9 November 2016 

Time 9.30 am 

Venue Wellfield School, North Road East, Wingate, TS28 5AX 
TO MEET AT RECEPTION at 9.20 a.m. 

 

∗ For those who require transport, it will leave County Hall at 9.00 a.m. 

∗ Following the meeting Members will be invited to take a short tour of 
Wellfield School before departing at approximately 11.45 a.m. 

 
Business 

 
Part A 

 
Items during which the Press and Public are welcome to attend. Members 

of the Public can ask questions with the Chairman's agreement. 
 
 

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Substitute Members   

3. Minutes of the Meeting held 29 September 2016  (Pages 1 - 8) 

4. Declarations of Interest, if any   

5. Any items from Co-opted Members or Interested Parties   

6. Media Relations - Update on Press Coverage   

7. Young Carers Update  (Pages 9 - 12) 

 a) Report of Corporate Director Children and Young People’s Service 

b) Presentation by Strategic Manager, Children’s Services Reform 

8. Educational Attainment of Looked After Children  (Pages 13 - 16) 

 a) Report of the Interim Corporate Director Children and Young People’s 

Services 

b) Presentation by Strategic Lead Special Educational Needs and 

Disabilities & Virtual Head      



9. Education Services Update -  Report of Interim Corporate Director Children 
and Young People's Services  (Pages 17 - 24) 

10. Annual Report of the Adoption Service and Adoption Panel Report - Report of 
Interim Corporate Director Children's Services  (Pages 25 - 54) 

11. Annual Report of the Fostering Panels and the Fostering Service - Report of 
the Interim Corporate Director of Children and Young People's Services  
(Pages 55 - 92) 

12. Durham Local Safeguarding Annual Report - Report of the Independent Chair 
of Local Safeguarding Childrens Board  (Pages 93 - 146) 

13. Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting, is of 
sufficient urgency to warrant consideration   

 
 

Colette Longbottom 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 
 

  County Hall 
  Durham 
  1 November 2016 

 
 
 
 
 
 
To: The Members of the Children and Young People's Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee 
 

Councillor C Potts (Chairman) 
Councillor M Nicholls (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillors J Armstrong, D Bell, K Corrigan, K Dearden, O Gunn, D Hall, 
C Hampson, J Hart, D Hicks, K Hopper, P Lawton, J Measor, S Morrison, 
L Pounder, M Simmons, H Smith, M Stanton, P Stradling and W Stelling 
 
Faith Communities Representatives:  
Mrs A Swift 
 
Parent Governor Representatives:  
Mr R Patel 
 
Co-opted Members:  
Miss K Ashcroft and Mr D Kinch  
 
 
 
 
 

Contact:  Kirsty Gray Tel: 03000 269705 

 
 



 

DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE'S OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
At a Meeting of Children and Young People's Overview and Scrutiny Committee held 
in Committee Room 2, County Hall, Durham on Thursday 29 September 2016 at 9.30 am 
 
 
Present: 
 

Councillor C Potts (Chairman) 

 

Members of the Committee: 

Councillors J Armstrong, K Corrigan, O Gunn, D Hall, C Hampson, J Hart, S Morrison and 
H Smith 
 
Faith Community Representative: 

Mrs A Swift 
 
 
1 Apologies  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors D Bell, D Hicks, K Hopper, M 
Nicholls, M Simmons, P Stradling and Mr D Kinch. 
 
2 Substitute Members  
 
There were no substitute Members in attendance. 
 
3 Minutes  
 
The minutes of the meetings held on 1 July, 25 July and 5 September 2016 were agreed 
as a correct record and signed by the Chairman. 
 
4 Declarations of Interest, if any  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
5 Any items from Co-opted Members or Interested Parties  
 
There were no items from Co-opted Members or interested parties. 
 
6 Media Relations - Update on Press Coverage  
 
The Overview and Scrutiny Officer referred Members to recent press articles relating to the 
remit of Children and Young People’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  The articles 
were: 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



• County Durham Students – Durham County Council had issued a press release 
congratulating students with regards to their A Level results  

• Durham County Council was presented with the Young Carers Charter, developed 
by Family Action – The Bridge Young Carers Service, for its commitment to 
supporting young carers across the county 

• Sugar intake in children double recommended level – a national survey had found 
that four to ten year olds were consuming twice as much sugar as the 
recommended intake and teenagers were consuming three times as much 

• The Youth Offending Service had received three nationally recognised accolades 
 
The Chairman requested that a letter be sent to the Youth Offending Service, recognising 
the achievement and congratulating them on behalf of the Committee. 
 
7 County Durham Teenage Pregnancy  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Corporate Director of Children and Adult 
Services which provided an update on local plans and progress to reduce under 18 
conceptions and unplanned teenage pregnancies (for copy see file of minutes). 
 
Members received a presentation from Portfolio Lead for Public Health, (for copy see file 
of minutes) which gave an overview on the need to reduce teenage conceptions, an 
update on the current U16 and U18 conception rate, a summary of the findings from the 
teenage pregnancy HNA 2015 and six key actions to reduce teenage conceptions in 
County Durham. 
 
Members were advised that the information regarding the reduction of both under 18 and 
under 16 conceptions in County Durham related to 2014 and this was due to a data time 
lag.   
 
Councillor Hart referred to a time when there was significantly high rate of teenage 
pregnancy in Newcastle which had required government intervention and following the 
setup of a Teenage Pregnancy Unit, the figures had reduced by 51%.  The reduction had 
been in conjunction with a rise in sex education and there was always a worry that there 
would be another influx of unplanned teenage pregnancy if the measures in place were 
relaxed.  The Portfolio Lead in Public Health confirmed that even when considering 
reductions in budgets, teenage pregnancy was a priority and would continue to be 
monitored.  It was important that Schools and School Nurses continued to identify and 
support young people who may need it.  There was also a lot of support for teenage 
parents who were being encouraged to pursue aspirations.  There was funding available 
for 16-19 year olds and she referred to the Care to Learn scheme and the Teen Parents 
Support Programme which was a 20 week course to develop skills and knowledge such as 
self-esteem and confidence, sexual health awareness and money management.  The 
programme had been successful enough to be nominated for a national award, however 
funding was non-recurrent which was a continued concern. 
 
Councillor Gunn referred to the importance of childcare for young people and referred to 
the recently appointed shadow education secretary who, having been pregnant at 16 years 
old with no qualifications was an inspiration to young teenagers in the same situation.  The 
shadow secretary had publically credited Sure Start for helping her to overcome the 
difficulties she had faced being a teenage parent.  The Portfolio Lead for Public Health 

Page 2



confirmed that many of the parents on the Teen Parents Support Programme were 
anxious at being separated from their children and therefore it had been delivered within 
Children’s Centres in order to ensure that babies were cared for on the premises.  As a 
result of the programme some parents had gone on to higher education, employment, or 
had returned as a mentor. 
 
The Head of Children’s Services confirmed that since the review in 2014, Sure Start had 
improved and there was now consistent engagement with all young mothers. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Hart, the Head of Children’s Services confirmed 
that the possibility of registering births at Children’s Centres had been considered, 
however it was acknowledged that contact levels with new teenage mothers was 100% 
and therefore no improvement was required. 
 
Resolved 
 
That the report and presentation be noted. 
 
8 Update on School Funding Reforms  
 
The Committee considered a joint report of the Director of Transformation and 
Partnerships, Interim Corporate Director Resources and Interim Corporate Director 
Children and Young Peoples Services which provided information on School Funding 
Reforms (for copy see file of minutes). 
 
Members received a presentation from Finance Manager, Education Services (for copy 
see file of minutes), which provided Members with information on the ongoing Government 
consultation with regards to Authority proposals affecting  2017/18 school funding and 
changes to the National Funding Formulas (NFF) for; 
 

• Mainstream Primary and Secondary Schools 

• Early Years (nursery schools) 

• Special Educational Needs  
 
Early Years Funding was based on historical spend and proposals were for a national 
formula to allocate funding to local authorities from 2017/18.  Indicative allocations 
provided as part of the consultation indicated that Durham would receive a 3% increase in 
funding.  The early years funding formula would require greater equality in distributing 
funding to providers.  However the specific impact for County Durham, for Early Years 
providers and SEN Funding would not be known until the outcome of the consultation.  
 
Councillor Gunn referred to the information which had been presented to Members and the 
significant impact it would have on young people in County Durham for years to come.  It 
was not a case of a few changes or minor changes, but a significant amount of huge 
changes which would affect schools drastically.  A reduction of £7.5k was the difference in 
having a teacher or not having a teacher and although she had many unanswered 
questions, she acknowledged that they could not be answered until the consultation had 
ended. 
 

Page 3



Councillor J Armstrong acknowledged that the presentation had raised more questions 
than answers, however the changes which the Government were making were essentially 
leading up to remove the responsibility of education services from Councils and pushing 
schools to becoming Academies.  There was no clarity to the plans other than there would 
be a reduction to the budget and the Finance Manager, Education Services agreed that 
when more information was available, he would present it to the Committee. 
 
Councillor Hart referred to the potential impact the new formulas could have on small rural 
primary schools and the Finance Manager, Education Services confirmed that a potential 
reduction in budget of £30k would have a huge impact on any school, however until the 
outcome of the consultation, no modelling work could be undertaken as there was too 
much uncertainty. 
 
In response to a question from Councillor Smith, the Finance Manager, Education 
Services confirmed that sparsity funding may be applicable to small schools which were 
located in areas where pupils would have to travel long distances to the nearest alternative 
school. 
 
Mrs Swift commented that Governing Bodies were anxiously waiting for the consultation to 
end and queried what would happen to those schools who were sitting on large surplus 
budget balances which they had carried forward.  The Finance Manager, Education 
Services confirmed the capping mechanism had been removed a few years ago and 
however some schools were carrying money forward because of required capital works or 
to assist contingency plans following the Reform. 
 
Councillor Gunn suggested getting the information that this was a Government reform, into 
the public domain should to be a priority.  Councillor Armstrong agreed that the Portfolio 
Holder for Children and Young Peoples Services would be consulted in circulating 
information to all Members, Schools and how to address and keep the public informed.  It 
was agreed that a letter should be sent from the Children and Young People’s Services 
which advised the Portfolio Holder of the Committees concerns and requested a 
communication plan be put in place following the outcome of the consultation to ensure 
that the relevant information was disseminated and all concerned be informed that any 
future funding reductions as a result of the reforms were not within the Council’s control. 
 
Resolved 
 
That the report be noted and a letter be sent to the Portfolio Holder for Children and Young 
People’s Services, as requested. 
 
9 Children and Young People's Services Ofsted Single Inspection Framework  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Interim Corporate Director Children and Young 
Peoples Services which presented Members with the final improvement plan for 
submission to Office for Standards in Education, Children’s Services and Skills (Ofsted) 
following the Ofsted Inspection of Children’s Services in February 2016 (for copy see file of 
minutes). 
 
The Head of Children’s Services presented Members with an overview of the report and 
confirmed that the Service response was not entirely with regards to the outcome of the 

Page 4



Ofsted Inspection, as they had already been working towards making improvements 
before receiving the judgement.  She reassured the Committee that the whole workforce 
was committed to responding to the outcome of the Inspection. 
 
The Chairman confirmed that the work plan included a presentation to the Committee on 
the role of Social Workers and would give Members an idea of the problems that were 
faced within the Service. 
 
Councillor Hall queried the response of Local Authorities to make improvements on the 
outcome Ofsted Inspections and suggested that occasionally the response was to throw 
money at the Service.  The Head of Children’s Services agreed that was sometimes the 
case and referred to Stockton Borough Council who had been offering new employees up 
to £10000 for signing up with them.  She was pleased to report that Durham had only lost 
a couple of employees because of this, however there was a worry that the Social Work 
Programmes which were being offered by Durham, would be used to gain excellent skills 
through training would then be recruited by other Councils.  There was also an issue in 
recruiting Managers as people didn’t seem to want the responsibility.  A Management 
Development Programme had been started alongside South Tyneside Council, and now 
Durham was continuing to offer the programme in the hope that it would give people the 
confidence to put in for those roles that were proving difficult to fill. 
 
In response to a query from Councillor Hart, the Head of Children’s Service confirmed that 
cases were open longer, but the new model of work did take longer to complete.  In 
addition the Court process was taking a lot longer, which had in turn impacted on the time 
it took to go through the adoption process.  There had been a 20% increase in the number 
of care orders and interim care orders which required Court involvement and therefore 
impacting on cases.  Considering the problems in recruiting Social Workers, there had as 
also been an increase in LAC’s - there were 120 more than there had been in 2014. 
 
Councillor Hart then queried why £360k was being spent on agency staff and the Head of 
Children’s Services confirmed that it was simply because agency staff were paid more.  
People were signing up to agencies as they were paid twice as much for carrying out the 
same work and were not tied into the Councils terms and conditions. 
 
Councillor Hart referred to the extensive amount of work the Portfolio Holder had to do and 
suggested that like Newcastle City Council, it could be beneficial to have a Junior Cabinet 
Member to share the responsibilities.  The Head of Children’s Services confirmed that the 
Service was well supported by the current Portfolio Holder and Councillor Armstrong 
confirmed that should Councillor Hart wish to make suggestions about the structure of 
Cabinet, that he should put them in writing to the Group Secretary. 
 
With regards to the relationship with Children and Young People’s Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, the Head of Children’s Services confirmed that there had always been good 
engagement with Members, however it was acknowledged that there had been oversights 
with regards to the reports presented to the Committee.  For example, Members were 
regularly updated on performance but there were never any performance issues and this 
may have led to false assurances.  One of the themes covering the 14 recommendations 
identified by Ofsted was to strengthen political and management oversight and Members 
could be assured that there would be more transparency in future. 
 

Page 5



Councillor Armstrong confirmed that all Members of the Council were Corporate Parents 
and Children and Young People’s Overview and Scrutiny had a strategic role, therefore 
the Committee would receive an overview on the Role of the Social Worker to a future 
meeting of the committee. 
 
Resolved 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
10 Draft Oral Health Strategy For County Durham  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Interim Director of Public Health which 
presented Members with the Draft Oral Health Strategy for County Durham for 
consultation (for copy see file of minutes). 
 
The Portfolio Lead, Public Health presented Members with an Overview of the report. 
 
Councillor Armstrong confirmed that there was evidence in North West Durham that 
fluoridation worked and recommended that the information be presented to Adults 
Wellbeing and Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 
Councillor Gunn welcomed the report and commented on how far schools had come with 
regards to restricting the amount of refined sugar in schools and encouraging fruit as an 
alternative.  The problems with regards to adult oral hygiene, were compounded by a 
phobia that many people had of dentists was and also poor oral health in residential 
homes.  The Portfolio Lead, Public Health also drew members’ attention to the link 
between areas of deprivation and poor oral health.  
 
Resolved 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
11 CAS - Revenue and Capital Outturn 2015/16 and CAS - Quarter 1: Forecast of 
Revenue and Capital Outturn 2016/17  
 
The Committee considered reports of the Head of Finance which provided them with 
details of the actual outturn budget position for the CAS service grouping based on the 
final position at the year end, and details of the forecast outturn budget position based on 
the position to the end of June 2016 (for copies see file of minutes). 
 
Resolved 
 
That the reports be noted. 
 
12 Quarter One 2016/17 Performance Management Report  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Corporate Management Team which presented 
progress against the Council’s corporate basket of performance indicators, Council Plan, 
and service plan actions and other performance issues for the first quarter of the 2016/17 
financial year, covering the period April to June 2016 (for copies see file of minutes). 

Page 6



 
The Strategic Manager, Performance and Information Management presented Members 
with an overview of the report. 
 
Councillor Hart queried whether there had been a response a question he had raised at 
the meeting in July with regards to CASCYP 30 and the waiting times for CAMHS 
referrals.  The Strategic Manager, Performance and Information Management confirmed 
that a response had been received from the CCG and Tees, Esk and Wear Valley 
Foundation Trust.  Both had had acknowledged that the 22% increase in referrals needed 
addressing, possibly by re-evaluating the service in order for patients who require lower 
level services to be referred quickly and also free up clinical staff to treat patients requiring 
more complex treatment.  The Overview and Scrutiny Officer confirmed that the written 
response would be forwarded to Councillor Hart following the meeting. 
 
Resolved 
 
That the report be noted. 
 
13 Summary of Minutes from Children and Families Partnership  
 
Members received a copy of the Summary of Minutes from the Children and Family 
Partnership (for copy see file of minutes). 
 
Resolved 
 
That the minutes be noted. 
 
14 Such other business as, in the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting, is of 
sufficient urgency to warrant consideration  
 
Councillor Gunn confirmed that at the meeting on 1 April 2016, she had raised the issue 
with regards to the management of school exclusions and asked that it was included as 
part of the Work Programme. The Chairman confirmed that this issue would be covered at 
the meeting in February 2017. 
 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Children & Young People’s 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

9 November 2016 
 

Update - Young Carers in County 
Durham  
 

 

 

Joint Report of Lorraine O’Donnell, Director Transformation and 
Partnerships and Margaret Whellans, Interim  Corporate Director 
Children & Young People’s Services 
 

Purpose of the Report 
1. The purpose of this report is to introduce a presentation to members of the 

Children and Young People’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee which gives 
an update on Young Carers in County Durham.  The Presentation will be 
given by Julie Scurfield, Strategic Manager Children’s Services Reform. 

  

Background 
 

2. The number of children and young people with caring responsibilities for 
grandparents, parents, siblings or other adults within the family is unknown to 
a great extent.  In some cases a child or young person may be supporting a 
parent with caring responsibilities and therefore the young person is 
overlooked. 
 

3. The Children’s Society report Hidden From View indicates that according to 
census data released in May 2013 there are 166,363 young carers in England 
and as many young carers remain hidden from official sight making the figure 
above the ‘tip of the iceberg.’  
 

4. The Department for Education commissioned Loughborough University to 
investigate the lives of young carers aged 5–17 years in England and in 
February 2016 they published their report. The report highlights the 
importance of early intervention and the critical role all statutory services have 
in assessing and supporting families.  The report goes on that social care, 
health and educational professionals have a crucial role in identifying and 
assessing the needs of young carers. 
 

5. The key findings from the report highlight concerns which both parents and 
young carers have about the consequences of disclosing young caring 
responsibilities; they worry about involving statutory agencies and the 
possibility of their children being taken into care.  This can lead to children 
and young people with caring responsibilities and their wider needs going 
unrecognised and unsupported.  This adds to the ongoing challenge in 
identifying and engaging with ‘hidden’ young carers so that appropriate 
support can be provided to help young carers and their families moderate the 
impact of their caring responsibilities and to prepare for adulthood. 
 

 

Background to Young Carers in County Durham: 

Agenda Item 7

Page 9



 

6. In County Durham the number of known young carers is 4201 according to 
2011 census information.  Most young carers, (3029) commit 0-19 hours of 
unpaid care per week; 655 young carers provide 20-49 hours of unpaid care 
per week; 517 young carers provide 50 hours or more of unpaid care per 
week.  

 
7. The Children and Families Act 2014 gives young carers rights to ask for help 

and requires local authorities to carry out a Young Carers Needs Assessment 
as soon as they are aware of the young carer.  With agreement of both the 
young carer and the person being cared for the local authority can combine 
the assessment with that of the adult being cared for. 

 

8. In carrying out the assessment the local authority must consider and decide if 
the young carer has support needs in delivering care and to identify how 
those needs can most effectively be met to ensure the child achieves good 
outcomes. 

 
Update on Challenges and Priorities: 

 
9. The Children and Young People’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee received 

and initial overview on Young Carers in County Durham at its meeting on 2 
December 2015 and members requested a further update. 

 
10. At this meeting Children’s Services reported on the key challenges and 

priorities as follows:- 

• The identification of young carers and the need to work more closely 
with Adults Services  

• Supporting young carers as they make the transition to adulthood and 
continuing to work closely with the Horizon Programme – a voluntary 
sector service delivered by DISC 

• Awareness raising of the needs of Young Carers through the promotion 
and implementation of the Young Carer’s Charter 

 
11.  The presentation will provide an update on the actions and progress made to 

tackle the priorities and provide an outline of the work programme for the 
forthcoming year.   

 
Recommendations 
 
12. Members of the Children and Young People’s Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee are requested to note the information contained in the 
presentation and comment accordingly. 

 

Background Papers  

• None 
 

Contact: Julie Scurfield, Strategic Manager Children’s Services Reform Tel: 
03000 261630 
                 Ann Whitton, Overview and Scrutiny Officer, Tel: 03000 268143 
 

 
Page 10



 

 

Finance – None 

Staffing - None 

Risk - None 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty – The Equality Act 2010 

prohibits less favourable treatment of individuals based on nine protected 

characteristics. Young carers are protected by this legislation, both by virtue of their 

age and their association with people with a disability.  

Accommodation - None 

Crime and Disorder – None 

Human Rights - None 

Consultation – None 

Procurement - None 

Disability Issues – None 

Legal Implications – None 

 

 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



Children & Young People’s 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

9 November 2016 
 

Educational Attainment of Looked 
After Children 
 

 

 

Joint Report of Lorraine O’Donnell, Director of Transformation & 
Partnerships and Margaret Whellans, Interim Corporate Director 
of Children & Young People’s Services 
 

Purpose of the Report 
1. The purpose of this report is to introduce a presentation to members of the 

Children and Young People’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee on Young 
Carers in County Durham.  The Presentation will be given by Strategic Lead 
Special Educational Needs and Disabilities, Standards and Improvement, Virtual 
School Head. 
  

Background 
 

2. The concept of the ‘Virtual School Head’ for Children Looked After was first 
outlined in the White Paper ‘Care Matters: Time for Change’ (DCSF, June 
2007 and placed the statutory responsibility on Directors of Children’s 
Services to make sure that their local authority promotes the educational 
achievement of the children they look after, regardless of where they are 
placed. 

 
3. The Children and Families Act 2014 amended section 22 of the Children Act 

1989 and placed a statutory duty on all local authorities to appoint a Virtual 
School Head (VSH) to promote the educational achievement of its Children 
Looked After. It is the responsibility of the Director of Children’s Services and 
Lead Member for Children’s Services to ensure that these duties are met. 
 

4. In the DfE document ‘Promoting the education of Children Looked After, 
statutory guidance for local authorities’ July 2014, it prescribes that:  Virtual 
School Heads (VSHs) are in place and that they have the resources, time, 
training and support they need to discharge the duty effectively. 
 

5. The Durham Virtual School, under the current Head was established in 2015 
and encompasses the previous LACES team (Looked after children education 
support.) In September 2016 the team was restructured to include: a Deputy 
Head of the Virtual School, two Casework Managers, nine Caseworkers and 
two Education Inclusion Support Workers. The team is part of Durham 
Education and works closely with other teams within the Local Authority to 
ensure the best possible support and outcomes for Looked after Children in 
Durham.   
 

Agenda Item 8

Page 13



6. The number of Children Looked after by Durham is increasing and at the time 
of writing stands at 656, an increase from 2015. 468 are of school age, 26 of 
reception age and an additional 74 are post 16. The virtual school has a duty 
to promote the education of and support all Durham Looked after Children 
from Reception to year 13. 
 

7. In Durham, 78 of our Looked after Children are educated in out of county 
schools and there are 115 children who are looked after by other local 
authorities, placed in Durham schools. The Durham Virtual School also 
supports our schools with the education of none Durham Looked after 
Children. 
 

8. 73 of our school aged children are educated in special schools, 99 have either 
a Statement of special educational need or Education Health Care Plan. A 
further 188 have an identified special educational need. 

 
National Context  
 
9. Nationally, children who are looked after achieve better educational outcomes 

than children in need, but perform less well than non- looked after children. In 
addition, there is evidence to suggest, the earlier children enter the care 
system, the greater chance they have of reaching their educational potential. 

  
10.  Statistics also show that a greater proportion of looked after Children, have 

an identified special educational need, with the greatest need being Social, 
Emotional and Mental health (SEMH). When outcomes for non-looked after 
children with similar needs are compared to the outcomes for Looked after 
Children, the achievement gap is much narrower and closes completely for 
younger (primary aged) children.   
 

11. Regular attendance at school is a major factor in improving outcomes for all 
children and national statistics show Looked after Children attend less 
regularly and are twice as likely to be permanently excluded as their peers. 
For Fixed term exclusions, this figure rises to five times as likely.   
 

12. In 2015 53% of our care leavers ( aged 19 to 21) were in education, 
employment or training compared to a national figure of 48% and 5% 
compared to a national figure of 6% were in higher education. 
 

13. The presentation will focus on end of key stage Outcomes of Durham’s 
Looked after Children and will include attendance, exclusion and SEND 
data. 

 
Recommendations 
 

14. Members of the Children and Young People’s Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee are requested to note the information contained in the 
presentation and provide comment accordingly. 

 

 

Page 14



Background Papers  

• None 
 

Contact: Irene Lavelle  Strategic Lead Special Educational Needs and 
Disabilities, Virtual Head     Tel:03000 265801 

Page 15



 

 

 

Finance – None 

 

Staffing - None 

 

Risk - None 

 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty - None 

 

Accommodation - None 

 

Crime and Disorder – None 

 

Human Rights - None 

 

Consultation – None 

 

Procurement - None 

 

Disability Issues – None 

 

Legal Implications – None 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

Page 16



CYP Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
 

9th November 2016 
 

Education Services Update 
 

 

 

Report of Phil Hodgson, Strategic manager Education Development Services 

 
 

Purpose of the Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to provide updated information to the CYP 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee on educational outcomes in County 

Durham, and related updates on the focus and provision of education 

services. 
  

Background 
 

2. Durham County Council’s education department continues to provide support 

and intervention, including intensive support for schools in most need, to 

ensure the best educational outcomes for children and young people in 

Durham.  
 

3. The results from tests and examinations at the Early Years Foundation Stage, 

Key Stage 2 and Key Stage 4/5 for 2016 which, when compared with national 

averages, provide the key outcome measures for early years, primary and 

secondary education respectively, indicate that schools and settings continue 

to perform very well. The support they receive from the County’s education 

service contributes to these positive outcomes. 

Early Years outcomes 

4. Early years outcomes are measured by the percentage of children reaching a 

good level of development (GLD) according to national Early Years Profile 

criteria. At the end of the Early Years Foundation Stage, children are 

assessed by the percentage reaching a good level of development in relation 

to the Early Learning Goals. Assessments are made against pre-set levels, 

with internal and external moderations. 

 

5. Early Years Foundation Stage outcomes are as follows: 

Early Years % GLD  

 

2014 2015 2016 

Durham 

LA 
National 

Durham 

LA 
National 

Durham 

LA 
National 

All 57 60 64 66 69 69 

Boys 48 52 56 59 62.3 62.1 

Girls 66 69 72 74 76.2 76.8 

Agenda Item 9

Page 17



6. As the table above indicates, Durham’s outcomes are in line with national 

outcomes, and this has been achieved in 2016 for the first time. This is a very 

significant achievement considering levels of deprivation in parts of the 

County which always put pressure on our Early Years outcomes when set 

against a national benchmark. It also marks an exceptional trajectory of 

improvement as Early Years outcomes were significantly below national 

outcomes until the gap began to close in 2014. 
 

7. The gender gap has been closed by 2 percentage points, as boys have made 

particular improvement in 2016. There has also been a marginal improvement 

in EYFS outcomes in terms of the gap between children receiving free school 

meals and all children (20 percentage points in 2015 closing to 19 percentage 

points in 2016), although there is still work to be done in this area. 
 

8. There are three main areas of activity on which the Early Years team is 

focused currently, namely: 

• early identification and intervention in schools and settings requiring 

support 

• the establishment of a new early years panel of professionals to target 

support more effectively 

• developing new models of support for early years children with 

particular educational needs, including reviewing the current outreach 

provision 
 

9. The table below shows the highly effective work done by the Early Years team 

to secure free early education places in line with national targets: 
 

 2015 2016 

National 63% 70% 

Regional 35% 81% 

Durham 73% 87% 

These figures place Durham 24th out of 152 local authorities nationally; 2,025 

2-year olds have been placed in Durham during the current term. 

 

10.  In terms of Ofsted outcomes, Durham is also a highly effective local authority: 
 

% of good or better PVI settings 

 2014 2015 2016 

National 78% 85% 85% 

Durham 77% 85% 90% 

% of good or better primary schools 

National  82% 85% 86% 

Durham 89% 91% 93% 
 

 

Key Stage 1 outcomes 

11.  In all key measures at Key Stage 1, Durham’s outcomes are ahead of 

national, as the table below indicates: 

Page 18



 National Durham 

Phonics – Year 1 80.5% 82.1% 

Phonics – Year 2 66.7% 67.8% 

KS1 Expected standards + 

Reading 74.0% 75.3% 

Writing 65.5% 69.9% 

Maths 72.6% 75.0% 

RWM 60.3% 64.6% 
 

12.  For Key Stage 1, the benchmark for expected attainment in 2015 was level 

2B+. In 2015 81% of KS1 children in County Durham reached this level, with 

Durham lagging slightly behind the national average (82%). This benchmark 

has now been altered to the percentage of children reaching expected 

standards or better (EXS+). In fact, in 2016, on both the previous and the new 

measure Durham’s outcomes exceeded national. 
 

13.  This was a particular achievement as Key Stage 1 outcomes had been a 

priority for improvement for the local authority in recent years, and while the 

gap between local authority outcomes and national had consistently 

narrowed, this is the first year where national figures were exceeded. 

Key Stage 2:  

14. At the end of the primary stage of education there are still formal, national 

assessments of pupils’ attainment in mathematics and English, through 

externally set and marked tests for all 11 year-olds. Writing is judged by 

teacher assessments, moderated by the local authority. Assessments are 

made against “age related expectations” (AS) for this age group. 

 

15. The table below sets out the percentage of pupils in Durham and nationally 

that achieved KS2 AS in English (reading), English (writing), mathematics, 

grammar/punctuation/spelling (GPS) and RWM combined.  

KS2 (AS) National Durham 

Reading (test) 65.7% 69.3% 

Writing (teacher assessment) 74.1% 78.3% 

Mathematics (test) 69.8% 74.7% 

G/P/S 72.4% 75.4% 

RWM combined 53.3% 58.9% 

 

16. Attainment levels across the local authority continue to be very strong against 
national levels and the significant trend of improvement in Durham continues 
year on year.  

17.  The same outcomes for Free School Meals pupils (FSM) indicate that 
Durham’s schools perform exceptionally well in supporting the education of 

Page 19



our most vulnerable children. The table below shows data for pupils who have 
been in receipt of FSM at any point in the previous 6 years (known as ‘FSM 
ever-6’ or ‘FSM E6’) 

 

KS2 (FSM E6) National Durham 

Reading (test) 52.6% 57.5% 

Writing (teacher assessment) 63.5% 68.3% 

Mathematics (test) 56.9% 63.5% 

G/P/S 60.3% 65.1% 

RWM combined 38.5% 44.6% 

 
Key Stage 4: 

 
18. Assessment at Key Stage 4, which represents the end of compulsory 

schooling, continues to be through externally set and marked GCSE and 
GCSE equivalent examinations across a wide range of subjects and courses. 
These are graded from A*-G with national benchmarks of achievement. 
Annual results from examinations at each of Key Stages 4 and 5 (sixth form) 
are analysed in order to identify trends across the local authority and to inform 
discussions with specific schools regarding challenge and support. 
 

19.  Key Stage 4 outcomes in 2016 are reported in a different way from previous 
years, with a focus now on ‘Basics’ (% of pupils achieving A* - C English and 
Maths), ‘Attainment 8’ (pupils’ performance across their best 8 qualifications 
measured on a points award basis, with each grade worth points on an 
ascending scale), and ‘Progress 8’ (pupils’ progress across their best 8 
qualifications expressed as a decimal where +0.01 and above indicates a 
measure of progress from a predetermined start point and -0.01 and below 
indicates insufficient progress against expectations). 

20. The table below shows 2016 Key Stage 4 outcomes for the local authority 
against national, although these remain unvalidated until later in the school 
year.  
 

Provisional Key Stage 4  - 2016 

 National Durham 

% Basics (A*-C Eng & Maths) 62.6% 62.1% 

Attainment 8 49.8 49.0 

Progress 8 -0.03 -0.12 

 

21. Although as yet unvalidated, these results show that the progress of pupils 
within English has significantly improved this year at both expected and more 
than expected rates of progress.  Moderate improvements in maths progress 

Page 20



are evident with this still being a future focus for improvement.  There have 
been subject attainment and progress improvements within Durham schools 
outside of the core which should be reflected in the final progress 8 figures 
from the DFE releases.   
 

22.  In spite of the changes in reporting outcomes that are described above, 
analysis by officers in the Education Development Service indicates that  
Durham’s KS4 results in 2016 have more than recovered after the small and 
unprecedented dip in 2015.  
 

 
Sixth form results 

23. AS levels, A levels and vocational qualifications have gone through major 

reforms in the last few years so, as anticipated, there was more variability in 

results this year than in the past. The content of new A level and AS level 

courses have been changed, and courses are no longer divided into modules 

or contain coursework except where it is required to assess specific skills.  
 

24. Additionally new accountability measures for 2016 mean yearly performance 

comparisons are more difficult to make with previous cohorts than has been 

the case in the past. Nationally the proportion of A* and A grades has 

continued to fall for the fifth successive year as part of the Department for 

Education’s standards agenda. 
 

25. Despite this, the results for County Durham students have remained broadly 

consistent with the successes of previous years.  Our academic and 

vocational outcomes continue to be above national figures with an increased 

number of students achieving the higher grades. Although the full national 

attainment and progress statistics are not yet validated, the overall picture 

remains positive.  

National update 

26.  It was announced at the end of October that the government has dropped its 

plan for a bill that would have forced some schools to become academies and 

removed the role of councils in driving up standards in education. The 

Education Secretary, Justine Greening, said the government had “reflected on 

its strategic priorities” and will now not attempt to implement measures 

announced in the Queen’s Speech and outlined in the ‘Education for All’ white 

paper. 
 

27.  Consultation will continue on the ‘Schools that Work for Everyone’ green 

paper, which includes lifting the ban on new grammar schools and allowing 

faith schools to select 100% of pupils based on their faith. 
 

28.  It is a generally held view amongst County Councils that the forced 

academisation of schools and the removal of the council role in school 

improvement goes against evidence that council-maintained schools perform 

Page 21



more highly than academies and free schools in Ofsted inspections, and that 

conversion to academies does not in itself lead to better results. In Durham in 

2016, maintained schools performed better than academies in terms of KS4 

outcomes for the first time. 

 
Recommendations 
 

29. Members of the Children and Young People’s Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee are requested to note the information contained in the report. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact: Phil Hodgson, Strategic Manager, Education Development Service. 

 

Page 22



 

 

 

Finance – none 

 

Staffing - none 

 

Risk - none 

 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty – n/a 

 

Accommodation – n/a 

 

Crime and Disorder – n/a 

 

Human Rights – n/a 

 

Consultation – n/a 

 

Procurement – n/a 

 

Disability Issues – n/a 

 

Legal Implications – n/a 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

Page 23



Page 24

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
Children and Young People’s 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 
 9 November 2016 
 
Annual Report of the Adoption Service 

and Adoption Panel Report - April 2015 - 

March 2016 

 
 

Report of Margaret Whellans, Interim Corporate Director Children 

Services 

 
Purpose of the Report  
 
1 The purpose of this report is to present to Children and Young People’s 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee the Annual Report of the Adoption Service 
and Adoption Panel Report April 2015 – March 2016 which is attached at 
appendix 2. 

 
2 To highlight: 

• Key activities and achievements of the Adoption Service and Adoption 
Panels from 1st April 2015 to 31st March 2016. 

• Significant changes in Adoption practice in England and Wales 

• Priorities for the next period. 
 
Background 
 
3 Significant focus has been on adoption and permanence over recent years as 

part of the DfE Adoption Reform Programme.  Key legislative drivers for 
Children’s Services are: 
 

• The Children and Families Act 2014 

• The Adoptions Agencies (Miscellaneous Amendments) Regulations 
2013 
 

4 The Local Authority provides the Annual Report to Cabinet and the Corporate 
Parenting Panel.  

 
Conclusion 
 
5 The Adoption Services continues to focus on achieving the best outcomes for 

children and to prevent delay in achieving permanence for the child with a 
plan for adoption. 

 

Agenda Item 10

Page 25



 

 

6 There will be more challenges in the forthcoming year for the Adoption 
Service and the Adoption Panel.  These have been highlighted in the attached 
report.   

  
Recommendation 
 
7 Children and Young People’s Overview & Scrutiny Committee is asked to: 

• Note the attached Annual Report of the Adoption Service and Adoption 

Panel Report at appendix 2. 

Contact: Carole Payne, Head of Children’s Services  Tel: 03000 268657 

 

Page 26



 

 

 

 

 

Finance – One adopted, children are no longer looked after and therefore incur 

fewer costs, post adoption support is provided.  Currently this is paid for from a 

national government grant but this is likely to end in 2020. 

 

Staffing - None 

 

Risk - None 

 

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty – None 

 

Accommodation - None 

 

Crime and Disorder – None 

 

Human Rights – Adoption supports children’s right to a family life. 

 

Consultation – None 

 

Procurement - None 

 

Disability Issues – Specific adoptive placements are recruited for disabled children.  

 

Legal Implications – None 

 
 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

                        

                                                                                                                         

Durham County Council 

Adoption Service 

Annual Report of the Adoption Service and 

Adoption Panel Report 

1
ST

 April 2015 - 31
ST

 March 2016 

 

 

 

 

Appendix 2 

Page 29



2 

 

INTRODUCTION 

2015-16 has been another busy and successful year for the DCC Adoption Service. 
Durham is outperforming the North East and England to ensure that children with a 
plan of Adoption are linked, matched and placed with suitable adopters at the 
earliest possible opportunity.  

The purpose of this report is to highlight: 

• Key activities and achievements of the Adoption Service and Adoption 
Panels from 1st April 2015 to 31st March 2016. 

• Significant changes in Adoption practice in England and Wales 
 

SIGNFICANT CHANGES IN ADOPTION: EXTERNAL DRIVERS 

This past year has been marked by the following significant changes: 

May 2015 – the Adoption Support Fund was implemented. This provides 
additional therapeutic support for adopted children and their families initially post 
order although in February 2016 this was extended to include children placed for 
adoption who had not yet been granted an Adoption Order. Initially Durham were not 
able to make significant use of this fund due to the extensive support offered by the 
Full Circle Service, so we were unable to claim for anything in house that was 
available on 1st March 2015. However in November 2015 we were notified that the 
referral criteria had changed and since then have made full use of the fund. To date 
Durham has claimed £145,122.27 from the fund. The majority of this has been for 
service delivery to adopted children and their families by Full Circle. 

June 2015 - ‘Regionalising Adoption’. The government published a paper 
highlighting the intention to radically reform Adoption services within the timescale of 
this parliament (i.e. by 2020) by moving towards Regional Adoption Agencies. 
Collaborative work is underway in order to determine the way forward for Durham 
Adoption Service 
 
27 March 2016 - ‘Adoption – a vision for change’. This published document 
confirmed the government’s determination to radically reform Adoption Services by 
the end of this parliament. The included further changes to the Adoption Support 
Fund to allow children and Families placed under Special Guardianship Orders to 
access funding for therapeutic support from the fund.  
 
The above report also clarified that COURT OF APPEAL JUDGEMENTS Re B-S 
AND Re B had not brought about any change in the law, rather there was a greater 
responsibility on the local authority to ensure that the evidence presented to the 
court was robust enough to assist the court in decision making but that the 
government remains committed to adoption as the most positive solution for children 
who can no longer be brought up within their birth families. The government 
expressed concern in the reduction in the number of children receiving Agency 
Decision Maker approval across the country since those judgements and promised 
judicial reform to ensure that Adoption is considered as a positive outcome for 
children. 
 

Page 30



3 

 

 
OFSTED SINGLE INSPECTION FRAMEWORK 
 
Durham County Council Children’s Services Single Inspection began on 22nd 
February 2016 and lasted for 4 weeks. The Adoption Service was closely 
scrutinised during this inspection. 
 
The informal feedback received during the inspection was positive in regard to the 
Adoption Service although concerns were raised regarding the lack of Fostering for 
Adoption Placements and the lack of clarity in matching recruitment to the needs of 
Durham children.  
 
The OFSTED report published in May 2016 found that adoption performance was 
assessed to be ‘Good’ whilst overall Durham ‘Required Improvement to be Good’. 
 
A number of outcomes have improved, for example for children whose plan is 
adoption. The adoption service is a strength within the authority. Work is child 
focused to ensure that a lifelong placement for children and young people is at the 
heart of all practice. The adoption service is stable, experienced and well led. A 
dedicated senior practitioner effectively monitors and tracks the individual progress 
of children. Plans for children are discussed at weekly team meetings and at 
fortnightly link meetings. This ensures that children awaiting placement are known to 
the managers and the team, keeping them at the forefront of the process 
 
Children’s progress through care proceedings and planning is effectively tracked to 
avoid unnecessary delay. However further work is needed to ensure that there is 
targeted recruitment of adopters which is informed by clear analysis of need, the 
area of focus identified by Ofsted. 
  
British Association for Adoption and Fostering (BAAF) 

On 31st July 2015 it was announced that BAAF was to close as it was no longer 
possible to sustain the organisation in the face of “significant changes and prevailing 
economic conditions”. 

BAAF, who had been supporting, advising and campaigning for children in care for 
three decades, transferred some of its functions to children’s charity Coram to be 
housed in a newly created entity, CoramBAAF Adoption and Fostering Academy. 
Like BAAF they will operate as an independent membership organisation and take 
on BAAF’s research, policy, professional advice and development work and 
administer the National Adoption Register for England, the Independent Review 
Mechanism and will run National Adoption Week. The Independent Review 
Mechanism evaluates adoption agencies’ decisions not to approve an individual as 
an adopter on behalf of the Department for Education. 

 

 

 

Page 31



4 

 

DCC ADOPTION SERVICE AND ADOPTION PANELS’ ACTIVITIES AND 
ACHIEVEMENTS 
 

• The Head of Children’s Services is Carole Payne. 
 

• Karen Robb, Strategic Manager, for Looked After Children and Permanence 
Services, continued to serve as the Agency Decision Maker (ADM).  
 

• Mark Gurney, Strategic Manager for Child Protection and Disability, became 
temporary ADM. 
 

• Bronwen Keegan, Operations Manager for Fostering, Adoption and Full 
Circle was appointed as temporary ADM in February 2016 to cover the 
sickness absence of the Strategic Manager.  
 

• There continues to be a core group of experienced and highly skilled social 
workers in the team.  
 

• In September 2015 Wendy Ellis was appointed as Permanent Team 
Manager.  
 

• Lindsey Gray remains as Senior Practitioner with responsibility for Post 
Adoption and is the Adoption Support Senior Practitioner (Decision maker) 
for the Adoption Support Fund.  
 

• Clare Bewley remains as Senior Practitioner with responsibility for 
Recruitment.  
 

• In November 2015 Sarah Fitzpatrick was appointed as Senior Practitioner for 
Family Finding. This was following a successful ‘Invest to Save’ application. 
 

• In January 2016 Sarah Riches joined the team as an Adoption Social Worker 
again following a successful ‘Invest to Save’ application. Sarah has a 
temporary contract until June 2017. 

 

• There were 25 Adoption Panel meetings during the period 1st April 2015 to 
31st March 2016. 
 

• Stella Chambers has continued to serve as Adoption Panel Administrator, 
supported by Catherine Dawson.  
 

• Wendy Ellis remained Agency Advisor, together with senior practitioners 
Clare Bewley, Lindsey Gray and Sarah Fitzpatrick.  
 

• The Adoption Panels continue to work in close partnership with the Adoption 
Service.   
 

Page 32



5 

 

• The Adoption Panel Independent Chair, Agency Medical Agency/Vice-
Chairman and Independent Panel Members continue to contribute to the 
training and preparation courses for prospective adopters. 
 

• Appraisals for Adoption Panels members continue to be conducted annually 
and are all complete. 
 

• Adoption Panel training took place in 2015 in respect of recent changes in 
practice with regard to legal issues, and Learning from Disruptions. This was 
joint training with Panel Members and the Adoption Service/LAC 
Permanence Team in attendance. Further relevant joint training is planned 
for the next financial year to include siblings together or apart, contact and 
the matching and selection processes.  
 

• Most members of Adoption Service have individual laptops and the majority 
of the team members are enabled to access DCC IT systems and services 
remotely via the Juniper programme.  This enables team members to work in 
a more efficient and effective manner, in planning their work and reducing 
travelling time. 

 

• The Adoption Service reviewed its Recruitment and Marketing Strategy for 
2015-2018. Regular monthly information drop in sessions were held and the 
number of training and preparation and counselling courses continued at 6 
per year  

 

• Members of the service continued to develop guidance and forms to meet 
the changes in regulation, including Prospective Adopters Report which 
marks the key stages of the prospective adopters’ journey into adoption. 

 

• DCC continues to provide excellent adoption support services with 
therapeutic input from Dr Joyce Powell, consultant Clinical Psychologist, and 
other members of the Full Circle Therapeutic Team.   

 

• The number of children receiving adoption financial support and allowance 
remains high.  On 27th March 2016 111 children’s families were in receipt of 
an adoption allowance at a weekly cost £13,569.50. Over the period of 1 
April 2015 to 31 March 2016 the number of children in receipt of an adoption 
allowances was 159 and the total expenditure for adoption allowances was 
£815,505. 

 

• The majority of the children placed with prospective adopters enjoyed 
stability and security in their new permanent families.  Unfortunately, in spite 
of intensive social work and multi-agency support, one child’s adoptive 
placement disrupted on 21.4.15 (a child who had been in placement with his 
sister, whose placement disrupted in November the previous year). A 
Disruption Meeting was convened on 26.6.15 and the report of this meeting 
was never received due the demise of BAAF who had provided the 
independent chair.   

 

Page 33



6 

 

• The Annual Family Summer Fun Day took place in July 2015, and the 
popular Christmas Party was held in December 2015. Both events were well 
received and attended. 
 

• Although there were a number of Regional Activity Days held across the 
South of the country we did not feel it was appropriate to feature any of our 
children due to the distances involved. However Senior Practitioner for 
Family Finding arranged our own Future Families event on 18th March 2016 
with support from other members of the team where 10 of our harder to 
place children (children in sibling groups or children with complex needs) 
were featured via DVD and information stalls.  

 

• The featured children’s social workers, fostering social workers and foster 
carers attended the event and waiting adopters were given the opportunity to 
find out extensive information about the children. The event was very well 
attended and the feedback from attenders was excellent. At the time of 
writing this report the outcome is still being evaluated. 

 

• Fostering For Adoption: This is an aspect of adoption practice advocated by 
government where the risks are taken by the Adopters rather than the child.  
Children are placed prior to the granting of a Placement Order with families 
who are resilient enough to manage the complex task of fostering the child 
throughout Care Proceedings, with the child being ‘placed for adoption’ only 
following the granting of the Placement Order. This enables the child to build 
attachments with their permanent carers from an early age and reduces the 
need for broken attachments when children move on to an adoptive 
placement. This places the risk firmly on the adopters and their family, as a 
court may not agree to the plan of adoption for the child and may decide to 
return the child to the care of birth family.   

 

Fostering for Adoption continues to be discussed with all prospective 
adopters during training and assessment.  However, until recently there has 
been little interest in this form of adoption as enquirers feel they are unable 
to take the risk of a court deciding to return the child to their birth family. Also 
the demography of people wishing to adopt in this area tend to be people 
who work outside the home and are unable to make the financial 
commitment that this form of adoption requires.  
 
However, this area continues to be pursued by the Adoption Service in line 
with government focus. In September 2015 an advertising campaign 
focussed particularly on Fostering to Adopt but met with little response. 
 
The Adoption Service have developed printed information and the referral 
form to the team has been revised to ensure that Fostering for Adoption is 
considered by the child’s social worker at the earliest opportunity and plans 
are already in place to access Approved Fostering for Adoption carers from 
Voluntary Agencies if this need cannot be met through DCC adopters. 
 
 

 

Page 34



7 

 

VISION, VALUES AND AIMS OF DURHAM ADOPTION TEAM 
 

The Adoption Service’s vision, values and aims are:   
 

• Our values will always be:  “Children Come First”, and will be at the centre of all 
our work. 

 
We seek to: 

 

• Be the best, approachable, professional and supportive Adoption Service. 
 

• Be an Adoption Service that people choose. 
 

• Value and celebrate the diversity, differences and background of our potential 
adopters. 

 

• Be respectful, flexible, honest and transparent in the manner we work with 
prospective adopters, children and young people, and professionals from 
multi-agencies. 

 

• Be a highly skilled and experienced team, with excellent mix of skills and 
abilities, seeking continual improvement in our work. 

 

• Promote and provide a robust post adoption support service for all affected 
by adoption. 

 

• Maximise use of technology and social media to enable us to be competitive 
in the changing face of adoption work. 

  

Page 35



8 

 

RECRUITMENT AND ASSESSMENT OF PROSPECTIVE ADOPTERS: 

April 2015 - March 2016 
 

1 Initial Enquiry 
 
Table 1:  

 April May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Total 

Initial Contact 24 11 21 15 14 21 10 19 19 22 17 10 203 

Number of 

Enquiry Forms 

19 9 19 10 11 14 7 15 13 9 11 7 144 

Initial Visits 

 

2 3 4 7 3 3  7 3 3 1 6 3 45 

Registration 

of Interest 

(ROI)Accepted 

3 3 6 2 7 2 1 4 2 2 2 3 37 

Training 

 

- 4 - 9 - 3 - 5 - 4 - 6 31 

 

Previous year figures in brackets. This table demonstrates the reduction in Initial 
contacts that have been received over the period when compared with the previous 
12 months (252), this has led to a reduced number of Enquiry forms (207), Initial 
visits (52), ROI’s accepted (44) and people attending training (31). We continue to 
ensure that enquiries are screened and evaluated so that only people with the 
necessary skills to meet the needs of Durham Children are invited to progress to 
complete the Registration of Interest (ROI) and training 
 
The Recruitment and Marketing Strategy has continued to generate interest from 
prospective adopters to apply to adopt with Durham County Council throughout the 
year although the interest in Adoption has not been high on the media profile which 
has a big impact on recruitment. We continue to advertise continually on Durham’s 
website and Facebook page as well as more broadly in the community. 
 
There is currently a mismatch between adopters waiting and children with a plan of 
adoption who are waiting to be matched which is common across the northern 
consortium and the whole country. We have a number of Adopters approved at 
panel and awaiting a link (currently 16 although 4 are currently being considered for 
tentative links to children). The majority of those waiting wish to adopt a female child, 
or a child without complexity, or both. We currently have 10 children who have 
complex needs that we are actively family finding for. 
There were limited opportunities for collaborative work amongst the twelve Local 
Authorities in the North East Region. The reason for this was that there continues to 

Page 36



9 

 

be a reduction in the numbers of children with a plan of adoption across the region 
and our partner agencies largely decided to reduce their advertising accordingly, 
because they were only accepting enquiries from people wishing to adopt older 
children, sibling groups or children with more complex needs. In Durham we have 
continued to recruit any suitable adopters who express an interest although this 
situation may be reviewed in the near future if the pool of adopters we have waiting 
continues to increase. 
 
There were a total of 203 initial contacts with 45 progressing to Initial Visits. There 
were a high number of enquiries where it was not appropriate to progress to initial 
visit.  The following are some of the reasons for not progressing:  
 

• Ongoing fertility treatment 

• Ongoing serious mental health issues 

• Poor home conditions  

• Could not be contacted 

• Withdrew prior to the initial visit 

• Had no spare bedroom 

• Had not been as a couple  for three years 

• Smoking, or recent cessation of smoking 
 
The assessment process remains robust to ensure that only carers who can meet 
the needs of children throughout their childhood and into adulthood are progressed. 
Of the initial visits 31 prospective adoptive families have currently undergone 
training. This is due to the high level of screening and preparation work that is 
carried out with prospective applicants during and following the initial home visit to 
ensure that only enquirers with the necessary skills to adopt are progressed to Stage 
1 of the adoption process.  
 

2      Prospective Adopter Assessment 
 

2.1  Recruitment Target 
 
DCC Adoption Service aimed to recruit and approve enough families of prospective 
adopters during 2014/15 to meet the needs of Durham children with a plan of 
adoption and 35 adoptive families were actually approved. The reasons for this 
reduction in performance compared to the previous year are outlined below. 
 

• There has been a reduction in the numbers of enquiries from prospective 
adopters and the majority wished to adopt a child without complex needs in 
order to meet their own needs to become parents often following issues with 
their own fertility.  

• There continues to be a reduction in the numbers of children requiring a plan 
of adoption, along with an increase in the number of children with complex 
needs who require permanence through adoption.   

 
The Adoption Service is robust during assessment processes and were successful in 
ensuring people without the necessary skills to adopt withdrew or were counselled 
out during the process.  

Page 37



10 

 

 
The adoption process states that enquirers cannot move from Stage 1 to Stage 2 of 
the process until references, medicals and DBS’s have been received and the 
Adoption Service is constantly seeking to address delay caused particularly by 
medicals and DBS disclosures (currently up to 18 week timescale) not being 
processed by outside agencies in a timely manner. Many of these processes are 
beyond our control but impact on our performance.  
 

2.2  Number of Prospective Adopters Approved 1st April 2015 – end March 2016 

(Timescale Prospective Adopters Application Form received to Agency Decision 
Maker approval) 
 
Table 2: 

 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Total 

 

Number 

of 

approvals 

0 4 2 4 5 1 4 4 3 3 4 1 35 

0-1 

months 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

1-3 

months 

0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 3 

3-6 

months 

0 4 1 2 2 1 0 2 1 0 3 1 17 

6-12 

months 

0 0 1 2 1 0 4 2 1 3 1 0 15 

12 

months + 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 
This table shows the length of time between the ROI being received and the Agency 
Decision Maker (ADM) approval of prospective adopters as suitable to adopt. This 
demonstrates that although the majority of adopters are approved within 6 months in 
accordance with Government requirements, where timescales are exceeded this 
was due to medical concerns (4), Applicants delay in providing information (1), 
Applicants took a break within the process for medical or personal reasons (7) 
applicants choosing to take a 6 month break between Stage 1 and Stage 2, 
Applicants not making themselves available for assessment (3), DBS issues (1) and 
availability of panel (1). 
 

Page 38



11 

 

The Adoption Service continues to have a clear focus on recruitment with a robust 
Recruitment Strategy to enable the recruitment of sufficient adopters to meet the 
needs of children who have a plan of adoption.  All team members continue to be 
actively involved in recruitment and training activities.  
 

2.3 Inter-Agency Placements of children with DCC adopters 
 
DCC approved adopters have been matched with children from other Local 
Authorities in 2015/16 due to the high level of waiting adopters in our own and all 
other local authorities: 
 

3   Children Approved for Adoption 
 

3.1  Number of Children Approved for Adoption by Agency Decision Maker-  
 
Table 3:  

 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Total 

 

2015/16 10 1 10 6 3 5 3 0 5 2 6 2 53 

2014/15 6 0 9 2 2 1 2 5 1 6 7 5 46 

2013/14 11 6 14 4 7 5 7 4 4 2 3 0 67  

2012/13 8 7 12 2 7 1 9 4 0 6 9 2 67 

 

 
There has been an increase in the number of looked after children in DCC approved 
for permanence through adoption compared to 2014/15.  
 

3.2  Children with a plan of adoption whose plans have changed. 
 
Table 4:  

 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Total 

 

2015 0 0 1 0 1 4 6 2 1 1 0 3 19 

 
The majority of the children were given ADM approval but the courts did not approve 
a plan of adoption. 
 
Children with an Adoption Plan Waiting for Placement  
As at 31 March 2016 there were 33 children with a plan of adoption awaiting 
placement 
 

Page 39



12 

 

Number of children with Placement Order at 31 March 2016 
There were 25 children who were the subject of a Placement Order  

Number of children with ADM but awaiting a Placement Order 31 March 2016 
There were 8 children whereby adoption was the agreed plan and for whom a 

Placement Order was not yet in place. 

DCC has an overall strategic aim to secure permanence at the earliest opportunity 
and reduce delay for children moving onto their ‘Forever Family’.  There has been an 
increase in the numbers of children placed with family and friends with a view to 
securing permanence through a Child Arrangement Order or Special Guardianship 
Order, although this could change following the recent publication of the Government 
paper: ‘Adoption- a vision for change’ where it is clarified about the expectations that 
local authorities will consider adoption plans for children over family placements 
wherever this is in the best interests of the child and the government has stated 
there will be legal changes to ensure that this happens where necessary 
 

4  Matching 
 

4.1  Number of DCC Adopters Matched to a Child 1.4.15 – 31.3.16 
 

(Date of Agency Decision Maker approval of prospective applicants to date of the 
Agency Decision Maker approval of the Match) 
 
A total of 37 matches were made (an increase on the previous year related to the 
increase in children with a plan of adoption) 
 
Table 5: 

 

Projected Matches planned at panel April/May 2016 

Table 6: 

Apr May Total 

5 1 6 

 

 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Total 

 

2015/16 1 3 1 2 7 5 7 2 4 1 3 1 37 

2014/15 8 3 4 2 2 0 6 2 3 1 1 0 32 

2013/14 4 7 3 2 3 4 0 5 6 1 5 6 46 

2012/13 3 2 6 6 3 2 9 10 1 5 4 4 55 

Page 40



13 

 

4.2 Inter-Agency Placements of Children with DCC Adopters 
 
As all local authorities across the country have a surplus of adopters for children 
without complex needs there have been no children from elsewhere placed with 
Durham approved adopters 
 
 

5  Children Placed for Adoption 
 

5.1  Number of Children Placed for Adoption April 2015 – March 2016 
 
Table 7: 

 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Total 

 

DCC 

 

1 3 1 5 6 3 11 2 4 2 3 0 41 

DCC- FC 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

VAA 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 2 

OLA 0 0 4 0 0 3 0 0 0 0 3 0 10 

Total 1 3 5 6 6 6 11 2 4 2 6 1 53 

2014/15 10 3 5 2 2 0 4 6 4 0 1 0 37 

2013/14 12 6 3 6 3 4 0 3 6 5 3 1 52 

Key: DCC – Durham County Council, VAA – Voluntary Adoption Agency, OLA – other Local Authority, FC – Foster Carer 

 
 

5.2  Number of Children Placed for Adoption Awaiting Adoption Order as at  
31.3.16  

 
There were 42 children placed for adoption and awaiting an adoption order as at 
31.3.16 
 
The majority of prospective adopters continue to make their application to adopt 
following the 10 week review in order to progress their adoption at the earliest 
opportunity. It is expected that a significant proportion of these children will  have 
their Adoption Orders granted by 31st March 2017 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 41



14 

 

6. Adoption Orders 

6.1  Number of Children Adopted 
 
Table 8: No. of Adoption Orders granted 1.4.15-31.3.16 

 

 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Total 

DCC 2 4 4 4 0 0 2 0 2 3 3 1 25 

VAA 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

OLA 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

DCC-FC 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Total 3 4 4 4 0 0 4 0 2 3 3 1 28 

2014/15 3 2 7 2 3 6 4 6 2 2 3 3 43 

2013/14 3 4 5 5 5 11 8 10 7 4 8 

(9) 

1 73 

  

• 28 adoption orders were granted between 1.4.15 – 31.3.16 
 

• There has been significant delay in the granting of Adoption Orders in the past 
12 months as a number of birth parents have contested the Placement Order 
at the Initial Birth Parent Hearing to consider the application for the Adoption 
Order has increased and is now the norm. In the majority of cases their 
appeal has not been granted but this has caused the Hearings to be 
adjourned until a later date causing delay in the granting of the Adoption 
Order.  This creates anxiety for adopters which require and receive extensive 
support from their adoption worker at this time. 

 

6.2  Pre-Adoption Order Disruption 
 
1 child who had been placed for adoption by DCC was returned to the care of the 
Local Authority following an Adoption Disruption despite receiving comprehensive 
adoption support. This child was the full sibling of the child whose placement 
disrupted the previous year. 

 
7 Non-Agency Adoption Orders 

 
Table 9: 

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Total 

 

0 0 3 0 0 1 3 0 1 0 0 1 9 

Page 42



15 

 

The majority of non-agency adoptions are processed and assessed by Adoption 
Social worker who has extensive experience in this area of work. 
 
9 non-agency adoption orders were granted in 2015/16  

8  Adoption Support 
 
It is acknowledged that children placed for adoption and their families often require 
additional support over the period of their childhood. Durham has been a forerunner 
in the provision of support due to The Full Circle Therapeutic Service which provides 
bespoke therapeutic interventions in a timely manner.  

 
This sets us apart from our regional neighbours and is often the reason why 
prospective adopters choose to come to Durham Adoption Agency 

 
Adoption support systems and processes have been reviewed and re-designed to 
provide a more effective, efficient and responsive service for all affected by adoption 
which underpins the implementation of Durham Adoption Support Passport.  
Adopters and their families are informed that they have a right to request an 
assessment of their adoption support needs throughout the life time journey of their 
adoption experiences until the child reaches the age of majority at 18. 

Adoption support needs are evaluated during assessment, match and placement in 
order to achieve positive outcomes and where required additional support from a 
wide range of services is available: 

• Dedicated Looked After Nurses, life story co-ordinator, Full Circle Therapeutic 
Service, Clinical Consultant Child Psychologist and Medical Adviser all 
contribute to provide excellent support to adopters and professionals in 
addressing any health issues.  
 

• Informal “buddy” support from approved adopters for newly approved 
adopters and those who need “friendly” support and advice. 

 

• The LACES Service offers a wide range of support, advice and guidance to 
adopters and professionals with regard to educational issues. Use of Pupil 
Premium Plus continues to be promoted 

 

• Out of Hours support is available for adopters through the Durham County 
Council Emergency Duty Team (EDT).  
 

• The dedicated Consultant Clinical Child Psychologist provided 74 
consultations to adopters during the period April 15 to end March 16.  This 
consultation and support to adopters helped them to understand the impact of 
trauma and neglect upon children’s behaviour and relationships as well as 
thinking about the children and young people’s developmental, emotional and 
mental health issues and concerns and promoted placement stability. This is 
especially important during matching. 
 

Page 43



16 

 

• The adoption support Fund has been available to access funds for therapeutic 
support for adopted children and their families. To date a total of £145,122.27 
has been claimed from the fund to fund the support of children placed by and 
within County Durham 
 

• Attachment Training is delivered by The Full Circle Team and receives 
excellent feedback from adopters and is invaluable to assist them in their 
understanding of the needs of children and some of the challenges their 
behaviour may bring ensuring that adopters offer suitable therapeutic 
parenting to children from the outset..    

 
Additional Adoption Support Events:   

• Two family fun day events are organised each year by the Adoption Service in 
July and December. These are well attended and received and give adopted 
children the opportunity to meet with other children and families 
 

• The Service level agreement for providing post adoption support to birth 
parents, adoptive families, their children and young people continues to be 
held by PAC UK. This service has been extended for a further year in line with 
the original agreement 

  

• Family and Friends of Adoption Events take place 6 times a year.  These 
events are well received by the friends and families of prospective adopters 
and the feedback received is excellent. 

 
A wide range of adoption support services with multi team/agency input is provided 

and these include regular training events, seminars, social events, drop in sessions, 

and individual casework 

 
8.1  Birth Records Counselling 

 

Table 10: 

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Total 

 

1 2 3 3 2 0 4 3 1 3 1 3 26 

 
When a child reaches the age of 18 they can apply to view their birth records and 

make an application to DCC and are supported to do so. Records are sought and 

they’re supported to view them. 

 

 
 

Page 44



17 

 

8.2  Enquiries to Access to Adoption Information Adopted Adults 
 

Table 11: 

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Total 

 

1 1 3 1 1 2 6 3 4 2 4 0 28 

 

8.3  Referrals to Parents & Children (PAC) UK 

Table 12: 

 

8.4  Number of Indirect Contact Arrangements In Place 
 

We have 1,213 post adoption events from 31.3.15- 1.4.16 which include adoption 
allowance reviews, indirect contact with adopters and birth families (292 birth others, 
210 birth fathers, 103 maternal grandparents, 47 paternal grandparents and 39 
significant others) and 23 new Adoption Allowances 
 

8.5  Request for an Assessment of Post-Adoption Support Needs 
 

Table 13: 

 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Total 

 

 Ap

r 

Ma

y 

Ju

n 

Ju

l 

Au

g 

Sep

t 

Oc

t 

No

v 

De

c 

Ja

n 

Fe

b 

Ma

r 

Tota

l 

 

Family 

support 

0 0 0 0 2 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 3 

Adopters 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Adopted 

Adults 

0 0 0 0 0 0 3 0 0 2 0 0 5 

Contemporar

y Birth 

Parents 

3 7 3 0 3 2 2 1 3 2 1 2 28 

Birth 

Relatives 

(Post AO) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 0 2 

Total 3 7 3 0 5 2 6 2 3 5 1 2 38 

Page 45



18 

 

2015/16 0 1 3 2 1 2 7 2 18 4 1 1 42 

 

8.6  Number of referrals to Adoption Support Fund 
 

Table 14: 

 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Total 

 

2015/16 0 1 0 1 0 7 2 18 4 3 8 2 46 

 
8.7  New Adoption Allowance Agreed 

 

Table 15: 

 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Total 

 

2015/16 0 1 8 1 3 0 4 0 3 2 0 1 23 

 

The total number of children in receipt of an adoption allowance in 2015-16 =159 

(expenditure £815.5k) 

Contact Plans and ‘The Post Box’ 

The Adoption Service operates an efficient and proactive Post Box system. This 
promotes the exchange of information in accordance with contact plans and 
agreements to assist the child and birth parents through varying stages of 
development. There are robust mechanisms to monitor and control information 
exchanged to safeguard the child and placement.  The Adoption Service scan and 
retain information exchanged between adopters, adopted children and birth family 
members to have a backup of the information received in the event of this being 
required.   

The provision of adoption support in maintaining indirect contact plans between 
adopters, adopted children and birth family members has increased in the last 5 
years and can be complex and resource intensive.   This reflects the increase in the 
number of children placed.  

The opportunities presented by social networking sites such as Facebook also 
present considerable challenges in adoption placements as this has become a 
mechanism for tracing or unsolicited contact. This has caused significant distress to 
adopters and the dangers of this are highlighted within the ICP training. 

 

 

Page 46



19 

 

9 Life Story Work Consultations 
 

Table 16: 

 
 

10 Feedback from Adopters: 
 
The Adoption team has received positive feedback at all stages of the adoption 
process.  
 

11  Key Priorities for 2015/16 

The Adoption Service “Statement of Purpose” 2015/16 sets out the aims and 
objectives of the team. 

The main priorities of The Adoption Service will continue to focus on Recruitment & 
Assessment, Family Finding and Adoption Support.  

Month Social 

Workers 

Social Work 

Assistant 

Residential 

Workers 

Foster 

Carers 

Adopters Others e.g 

social 

workers, etc 

Total 

April 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

May 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

June 0 0 0 2 7 0 9 

July 3 0 0 4 7 0 14 

Aug 3 0 0 3 7 0 13 

Sept 2 0 0 3 5 1 11 

Oct 6 4 0 2 10 0 22 

Nov 2 0 0 2 5 0 9 

Dec 2 1 0 1 2 1 7 

Jan 16 3 0 0 3 6 0 12 

Feb 2 2 0 3 7 0 14 

Mar 2 4 0 2 9 0 17 

Total 23 7 0 23 56 2 128 

2014/15 22 17 8 23 29 4 103 

2013/14 85 43 22 34 58 19 261 

Page 47



20 

 

• Recruitment & Assessment of adopters will be prioritised and targeted in order 
that in- house resources are available locally and within the region for children 
who need adoption placements. This will be directly linked to the needs of 
children with a plan of adoption. 
 

• Family Finding will be proactive in order to provide placement choice and to 
avoid unnecessary delays in placing children in new families. In order to do 
this children are allocated a Family Finder on referral to the Adoption Service 
so their needs can be considered and they can be featured appropriately.  
This will allow every child with a plan of adoption to have the greatest 
opportunity to be matched with an adoptive family who can meet their needs 
throughout their lives as soon as possible. 

 

• The Adoption Support Fund has brought changes to Adoption support 
services as the funding for therapeutic support has moved to an external fund 
managed by a Government appointed organisation. There is an obligation on 
the part of the Local Authority to assess the Adoption Support needs of any 
adopted child within Durham County Council. It is the Local Authority’s 
responsibility to make this obligation known and the main impact of this has 
been felt within the Full circle Team rather than the adoption team as they 
provide the majority of therapeutic interventions within County Durham. 

 

• The priority of the Adoption Service is to make and sustain stable adoption 
placements and to ensure that the lifelong needs of those affected by 
adoption are met. 
 

• The Government have announced plans to regionalise adoption services in 
order to consolidate resources and reduce delay for children with a plan of 
adoption. This will present opportunities and challenges for the Adoption 
Service in the future.  

 
12 SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION: 

 
The Adoption Service continues to focus on achieving the best outcomes for children 
and to prevent delay in achieving permanence for the child with a plan of adoption 
and children remain the focus and the centre of everything we do.  

See Appendix 2 which shows positive performance by DCC in relation to key targets 
in comparison to the national and regional picture. 

The past year has brought new challenges which are reflected nationally including: 

• The decrease in the numbers of children with a plan of adoption 

• The reduction in the numbers of people coming forward to adopt 

• The increase in the number of adopters who do not feel they have the 
necessary skills to consider older children or children with complex needs 

• The increase in the number of birth parents who have sought to appeal the 
granting of the Placement Order at the point the adopters make their 
application for the Adoption Order.  This has led to a significant increase in 

Page 48



21 

 

the continued support required for Adopters at this time, as well as delay for 
both children and adopters alike 

There will be more challenges ahead in 2016/17 for the Adoption Service and the 
Adoption Panel.  These have been highlighted in the report above.  The key priority 
areas to continue in the new financial year include:  

• The drive to match and place children with adoption plans swiftly (in 
accordance with the timescale/targets set by DfE )  

• The continued recruitment of adoptive carers to meet the needs of Durham 
children so that these children can be placed with their prospective adopters 
without undue delay,  

• The continued assessment of adopters within the timescales set by DfE 

Detailed action plans have been developed for each of these priorities, for 
implementation by the service.  
 
Bronwen Keegan 
Operations Manager 
Fostering, Adoption and Full Circle 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 49



22 

 

 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

 
Finance – The provision of post adoption support is currently provided via a 
government grant, which is time limited to 2020.  A budget pressure is possible 
thereafter.  
 
 
Staffing – There are no implications for staffing. The Adoption Service is stable and 
experienced. 
 
 
Risk – Liability to recruit adopters would limit placement choice, changes in national 
policy and Family Court practice can impact significantly on adoption practice.  
 
 
Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty – Efforts are made to ensure 
all children are considered for adoption, including those with complex and special 
needs. 
 
 
Accommodation – No implications 
 
 
Crime and Disorder – No implications 
 
 
Human Rights – The right to a family life is established in family practice 
 
 
Consultation – No implications 
 
 
Procurement – No implications 
 
 
Disability Issues – Children with a disability are targeted for specific adoption 
recruitment  activity and support 
 
 
Legal Implications – None at present, although government have signalled likely 
future change in legislation in this area  
 

 
 
  

Page 50



23 

 

 

Appendix 2 

 

Quarterly Adoption Survey Quarter 4 2015-16 (Period: 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016) - Adoption data 

Coverage: Local Authorities in England 

  

Children waiting Progress through the adoption process 
Timeliness for children who have been 

adopted 

  
With a decision 

but not yet 

placed as at 

With a 

placement 

order but not 

yet placed as 

at 

With a place-

ment order 

but not yet 

placed  

(18 months or 

more since 

entering care) 

as at 

Average length of 

time spent 

waiting (since 

entering care) for 

those with a 

placement order 

not yet placed 

(days) 

Percentage of 

children waiting 

with a placement 

order at 31 Mar 

2016 per looked 

after children at 

31 Mar 2015 

Number of  

ADM decisions 

Number of  

placement 

orders 

granted 

Number of 

children  

matched  

with adoptive 

families 

Number of 

children  

placed  

with adoptive 

families 

Number of  

children 

adopted 

(AS1) Average 

number of days 

between a child 

entering care and 

moving in with its 

adoptive family 

(AS2) Average time 

between an LA receiving 

court authority to place a 

child and the LA deciding 

on a match to an adoptive 

family 

  31 Mar 2016 

31 Mar 

2016 

 31 Mar 

2016 31 Mar 2016 31 Mar 2016 

Q1 - Q4 

2015-16 

Q1 - Q4 

2015-16 

Q1 - Q4 

2015-16 

Q1 - Q4 

2015-16 

Q1 - Q4 

2015-16 

Q1 - Q4 

2015-16 

Q1 - Q4 

2015-16 

ENGLAND 3,190 2,050 640 543 3 4,780 3,870 4,170 4,220 4,310 522 244 

NORTH EAST 220 130 50 538 3 310 250 250 270 250 563 211 

841  Darlington 15 15 x 449 7 15 15 5 5 10 x x 

840  Durham 30 25 x 389 4 55 50 50 50 30 420 173 

390  Gateshead 30 15 5 538 4 30 30 25 25 30 696 170 

805  Hartlepool x x x x x x x 10 10 10 x x 

806  Middlesbrough 15 15 10 682 4 10 10 10 15 15 531 141 

391  Newcastle upon Tyne 30 15 10 765 3 30 25 25 25 25 479 157 

392  North Tyneside 10 x x x x 20 15 15 15 20 563 278 

929  Northumberland 30 10 0 x 3 35 20 35 35 35 704 246 

807  Redcar and Cleveland x x 0 x x 5 5 x x 10 x x 

393  South Tyneside 5 x x x x 20 25 15 25 20 467 x 

808  Stockton-on-Tees x x 0 x x 15 10 10 15 20 656 340 

394  Sunderland 50 25 15 615 4 65 40 35 35 30 594 188 

P
a
g
e
 5

1



24 

 

OTHER ST. NEIGHBOURS 470 310 100 541 2 740 630 700 720 790 512 255 

876  Halton 20 15 0 363 7 30 25 10 10 15 446 135 

342  St. Helens 10 10 x x 2 25 25 35 35 50 603 359 

359  Wigan 15 10 x x 2 40 35 45 50 40 457 220 

370  Barnsley 20 20 x 443 7 40 35 25 25 35 541 255 

384  Wakefield 30 25 10 656 5 .. .. .. .. .. .. .. 

 

Note:  DfE rounds counts to the nearest 5 at local authority level, nearest 10 at national and regional level.  (x) means data has been suppressed due to low numbers i.e. less than 5. (..) means no data was submitted. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
a

g
e
 5

2



25 

 

 

Quarterly Adoption Survey Quarter 4 2015-16 (Period: 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016) - Adopter data 

Coverage: Local Authorities in England 

 

 

 Progress through the adoption process Prospective adopters waiting Timeliness for adopters 

 

Number of 

registrations 

Number of 

approvals 

Number of 

adoptive families 

matched to 

children 

Number of 

adoptive 

families with 

children 

placed with 

them 

Number 

of  adoption 

orders granted 

Number of 

prospective 

adoptive 

families not 

yet approved 

Number of 

approved 

adoptive 

families 

waiting to be 

matched with 

children Number of adoptive families approved Number of adoptive families matched 

 

Q1 - Q4 

2015-16 

Q1 - Q4 

2015-16 

Q1 - Q4 

2015-16 

 

Q1 - Q4 

2015-16 

Q1 - Q4 

2015-16 

31 Mar 

2016 

31 Mar 

2016 

within 6 months 

of registration in 

2015-16 

after 6 months 

of registration in 

2015-16 

Information not 

available 

within 3 

months of 

approval in 

2015-16 

after 3 

months of 

approval in 

2015-16 

Information 

not available 

ENGLAND 2,700 2,940 2,570 2,540 2,600 1,710 2,520 780 1,870 290 680 1,850 30 

NORTH EAST 170 200 170 170 160 120 200 60 120 10 40 140 x 

841  Darlington x 5 x x 5 5 10 0 5 0 0 x 0 

840  Durham 30 35 35 30 25 10 25 20 15 0 5 30 0 

390  Gateshead 15 10 15 15 15 15 10 0 10 x 5 10 0 

805  Hartlepool 5 15 10 10 10 25 15 x 10 x 0 10 0 

806  Middlesbrough 10 15 x x 5 x 15 0 10 x x x 0 

391  Newcastle upon Tyne 25 40 30 30 25 20 55 5 35 0 x 25 0 

392  North Tyneside 10 15 10 10 15 5 5 x 10 x x 10 0 

929  Northumberland 10 10 5 10 10 x 15 x x x x x 0 

807  Redcar and Cleveland 5 10 x x 5 x 10 0 10 0 0 x 0 

393  South Tyneside 20 20 25 25 15 10 10 20 0 x x 20 x 

808  Stockton-on-Tees 15 10 5 5 10 10 15 x 10 0 0 5 0 

394  Sunderland 20 20 20 20 15 10 5 5 10 x 10 10 0 

P
a
g
e
 5

3



26 

 

OTHER ST. NEIGHBOURS 340 480 420 410 430 230 430 130 300 50 130 290 x 

876  Halton x 10 5 x 0 x 5 x x 0 x x 0 

342  St. Helens .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. 

359  Wigan .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. 

370  Barnsley 35 25 25 20 15 20 15 x 20 x 10 15 0 

384  Wakefield .. .. .. .. .. x 15 .. .. .. .. .. .. 

 

Note:  DfE rounds counts to the nearest 5 at local authority level, nearest 10 at national and regional level.  (x) means data has been suppressed due to low numbers i.e. less than 5. (..) means no data was submitted. 

 

 

 

P
a

g
e
 5

4



 
 

CYPS Overview & Scrutiny  
 

9 November 2016 
 
Annual Report of the Fostering Panels 
and the Fostering Service 2015/16 

 

 

 
 

Report Carole Payne, Head of Children’s Services 

  
 
1 Purpose of the Report  
 
 The National Minimum Standards for Fostering (2011) require that 

Fostering Agencies report the activity of the fostering service to its 
governing bodies. The purpose of presenting this report therefore is to 
comply with the legislation and ensure the activity presented within this 
report progresses through appropriate management meetings and onto 
Cabinet.  

 
2 Context 
 
 The purpose of presenting this report on the activity of the fostering 

service and related panel activity for the period 2015/16 is to apprise 
senior officers and Members on the business of the service which looks 
after the majority of our looked after children. The fostering service is 
key to the department fulfilling its duties to looked after children.  The 
ongoing developments within the service are fundamental to the 
department achieving improved outcomes for our children and 
efficiencies over the forthcoming years. Section 8 highlights the key 
priorities which are the focus for development over the short, medium 
and long term. 
 

 The report outlines the activity of the service in relation to key strategic 
priorities and the work of the Fostering Panels throughout the year. 

 
 The Corporate Parenting Panel take an active and focussed interest in 

the services delivered for Durham’s looked after children.  Reporting on 
key areas of activity ensures Members have a comprehensive 
knowledge of what is happening at the ‘front line’ and ensure they have 
oversight of key areas of service delivery in order to effectively 
challenge and drive up service standards to ensure outcomes for 
children are constantly improving.  

 
 Elected members are represented on each of the Fostering and 

Adoption Panels.  
 
 

Agenda Item 11

Page 55



 2

3 Future Priorities  
 
The annual report of the Fostering Panels and the Fostering Service 
Sets out 4 main priorities for the next year, designed to improve and 
expand this key area of service: 

• Development of a robust Marketing Strategy to increase the 

number of fostering applicants to Durham to meet 100% of 

Durham’s needs and achieve vacant capacity. This will enable 

matching of needs to carer skills and reduce reliance on external 

resources; 

 

• Further Development of The Fostering Plus Scheme in order to 

provide a family based service to care for some of our children with 

most complex needs; 

 

• Implementation of a review of the fostering service to ensure the 

resources channelled into the service are utilised in the most 

effective and efficient way and that the service is able to meet 

future demand; 

 

• Deliver initiatives already in train to promote fostering, such as 

Durham County Council liveried vehicles, a concerted social media 

campaign and targeted recruitment to specialist fostering 

programmes.  

4 Recommendation 
 

 That the CYPS Overview & Scrutiny Committee:  

• Approve the attached Annual Report of the Fostering Panels 

and the Fostering Service 2015/16; 

• Approve the future priorities;  

• Support initiative to promote fostering. 

 

Contact: Carole Payne, Head of Children’s Services    Tel: 03000 268657 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 56



 3

 
 

Durham County 
Council Fostering Service 
 
 
The Annual Report of  
The Fostering Panels and the  
Fostering Service 
2015-16 
 
      

 

Page 57



 4

 
Contents 

 
 
                 Page 
 
 

1. Introduction        3. 
 

2. Durham County Council (DCC)  
Fostering Service       4. 
 

3. Looked After Children           15. 
 

4. Independent Reviewing Officer (IRO)        16. 
 

5. DCC Fostering Panels           17. 
 

6. The Fostering Panel           20. 
 

7. The Permanence Panel           26. 
 

Appendix 1 
Legal Framework of Panels          33.
     

   

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 58



 5

 
 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 

 
The information presented in this report relates to the activity within Durham 
County Council Fostering Service and the activity of the three Fostering 
Panels 

 
This report demonstrates that 2015/16 was another busy year for both the 
Fostering Service and the Fostering Panels.  The work of the Panels and its 
membership is central to The Fostering Service and the Service is most 
appreciative of the skills, knowledge and commitment of all of its Panel 
members.  

 

Legal perspective 

The legislation, guidance and regulation relating to Fostering Services and 
Fostering Panel are enshrined in; 

• The Fostering Services (England) Regulation 2011, 

• Fostering Services: National Minimum Standards 2011. 

• The Children Act 1989 Guidance and Regulations Volume 4: Fostering 
Services. 

• The Care Planning, Placement and Case Review (England) 
Regulations 2010 

• Family and Friends Care: Statutory Guidance for Local Authorities 
2010 

• The Children Act 1989 Guidance and Regulations Volume 2: The Care 
Planning Placement and Case Review 

• The Care Planning, Placement and Case Review and Fostering 
Services (Miscellaneous Amendments) Regulations 2013 which came 
into force on 1st July 2013. 
 

• The Care Planning, Placement and Case Review and Fostering 
Services (Miscellaneous Amendments) Regulations 2015, which came 
into force on 1st April 2015 
 

2. DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL FOSTERING SERVICE 
 
2.1 CONTEXT 
 

The Fostering Service comprises four separate teams and during the year 
benefitted from stability within the staff group. The teams within the 
service are 

 

• The Short Term Support Team 

Page 59



 6

• The Permanence Team  

• The Recruitment Team 

• The Placement and Kinship Team 
 

This provides: 

• A focus on the recruitment of foster carers   

• A focus on children and young people requiring a permanent or long term 
foster care 

• A focus on the assessment and support of Family and Friends foster 
carers 

• A focus on children requiring short term foster placements and the 
identification of the best match for them 

• A focus on maximising the resources of the Fostering Service 

 

Achievements in 2015/16   

The Fostering Service, foster carers and Panels have achieved the following:   

• There has been a continued, albeit gradual net increase in the number 
of mainstream carer households. This has risen from 226 on 31st 
March 2015 to 234 on 31st March 2016 taking into account de-
registrations as well as registrations. 

• There has been a continued increase in the number of approved 
placements in the Fostering Service. In the last three years this has 
risen from 513 placements in March 2013 to 630 placements.  

• There has been an increase in the number of children placed in family 
and friends foster care over the year from 88 to 101 (see Section 3 for 
looked after children statistics). 

• There has been an increase in matched permanent placements - 109 
in 2014 to 170 in 2016. 

• The approval of Family and Friends foster carers has continued to be 
an important aspect of the work of the Fostering Service. Importantly, 
51children successfully achieved  permanence with family/connected 
people by becoming subject of Adoption, Special Guardianship Orders, 
Residence Orders or Child Arrangement Orders during 2015/16 

• Over the 12 months period, the average length of time to complete a 
Form F Fostering assessment from application to approval at panel is 
4.70 months. This is important for attracting potential foster carers who 
are keen for the assessment to be completed as quickly as possible 
and regularly ask how long the assessment will take.  
 

Changes and Developments in 2015/16  

There have been a number of changes to the management within the 
Fostering Service: 

Page 60



 7

• In June 2015, Bronwen Smith was appointed temporary Operations 
Manager Fostering, Adoption and Full Circle, following Dorothy 
Alexander moving to Specialist Projects post. 

• Bronwen Smith’s substantive post was back-filled by Jessica Cowan, 
and currently Andy Jennings is in post on a temporary basis. 

• Lorraine Botcherby was appointed to the permanent post of Team 
Manager Permanence Team in October 2015 

The Fostering Service has also worked on the following 
developments/changes: 

• Review and consolidation following the Payment for Skills Review. This 
has helped to raise standards and improve consistency across the 
fostering service. There has been a reduction in the number of children 
in respite care, as the changes to Payment for Skills discourages foster 
carers from routinely taking respite. This has improved placement 
stability.  We have also achieved significant financial savings. 

• Continued development of the Fostering Plus initiative which aims to 
provide a multi-agency approach to meet the needs of both 
children/young people with the most complex needs and challenging 
behaviour, through providing increased support to foster carers. 
Although we have not achieved the target for recruitment of foster 
carers, the Fostering Plus Support workers have been providing “wrap 
around” support to children and mainstream carer’s which has been 
invaluable in promoting placement stability and providing practical 
support to foster carers in crisis 

• We continue to prioritise promoting placement stability for children and 
young people. Our NI62 and NI63 indicators (for short and long term 
stability respectively) remain good, and the Looked After and 
Permanence Management Team meet on a monthly basis to review 
placement stability, and also to focus on achieving permanence for 
children. The Panels approved the match of 45 children to permanent 
carers, including two sibling groups for 4 children and smaller sibling 
groups too 

• Development of a “welcome pack” to ensure new carers have 
information about the support they can receive, and fostering policies 
and procedures at the point of approval. 

• Development of the Launch Pad support group for newly approved 
carers to offer tailored support to carers in their first year. This group 
developed as a result of consultation which highlighted the need for 
bespoke support in year one. This also gives carers an opportunity to 
build relationships with others which offers mutual support as well as 
reinforcing key messages from the service to achieve positive outcomes 
for children. 

• Re-establishment of the support group for Family and Friend carers on 
a quarterly basis, enabling carers to receive both support and training. 
This has strengthened informal networks for carers and identified and 
identified other areas of support, for example “The Relative Experience” 
voluntary service 

Page 61



 8

• Continued development of the training provided to foster carers through 
the provision of additional courses to meet their needs. We promote a 
strong culture of learning for foster carers 

• Ongoing promotion of the M8’s group for foster carers own children. 
Research indicates that where children are engaged with the fostering 
task, outcomes are more positive for all involved parties. The group 
meets during every school holiday period, with approximately 20 young 
people attending. Feedback from the young people evidences that they 
value the opportunity to share their experiences and any concerns they 
have about fostering  

• Work is ongoing towards the continued Investing in Children status for 
2016 – 18. This is based upon the views of children and young people 
and how this has impacted upon the development of the service 

• The Service has been involved in reviewing the process for temporary 
approval of Family and Friends foster carers to ensure that children are 
in regulated and supported care arrangements. Panel training will be 
developed to update panel members to reflect the changes that have 
taken place. 

• Work has been undertaken to update the Fostering website, so that it is 
more user friendly and a stronger marketing tool. Changes have been 
positive, and work is ongoing with the DCC web team to make further 
improvements. Feedback to date in relation to the improvements from 
foster carers has been positive. 

• Promotion of educational achievement for children continues to be an 
important focus and we have a consultation session planned for carers 
to look at how they can raise aspirations for the children and young 
people they care for. We are also developing regular training from the 
Virtual School Team for foster carers to ensure they are up to date with 
best practice in supporting children to achieve their potential. An 
increasing number of young people are attending University or moving 
into employment  

• Promotion of improved health outcomes for children – the work of The 
Full Circle Therapeutic Team is very important in promoting the 
emotional wellbeing of children and young people and increasing the 
understanding that foster carers have of a range of issues, including 
attachment 

• In line with best practice, foster carers are to be invited to Panel from 1st 
July 2016 for any reviews presented. This will ensure we are an open 
and transparent service, and provide formal acknowledgement of the 
work that foster carers do, as well as giving them an opportunity to 
share their experiences with the Panel 

• Representation on the Missing and Exploited Group and the Child 
Sexual Exploitation group. This ensures that the fostering perspective is 
included and that key messages can be disseminated within the 
fostering service 

• Consolidation of the policy changes required by “Staying Put: 
arrangements for care leavers aged 18 years and above, and service 

Page 62



 9

wide meetings to ensure consistent practice facilitated by the Fostering 
Service. This enables young people to receive ongoing support as they 
move towards independence, whilst remaining with their previous foster 
carer’s, where both the foster carer and the young person want the 
placement to continue and the social worker is in agreement 

• Work is ongoing to implement the amendments made to the Care 
Planning and Fostering (Miscellaneous Amendments) (England) 
Regulations 2015 which came into force on 1st April 2015.  These 
amendments predominantly focus on how local authorities support 
looked after children who are placed in long-term fostering 
arrangements. 

• Close partnership working continues to be developed on an individual 
and service wide level to achieve best outcomes for children. We have 
quarterly development sessions for all staff in the Looked After and 
Permanence Service 

 

2.2   FOSTER CARER INFORMATION 
 

Numbers and type of foster care provision 

Table 1 below gives the breakdown of foster carers by the type of foster care they 
provide 

 

 
The above shows that on 31st March 2015 there were 306 registered foster 
carers, which included 28 carers who had temporary approval under 
Regulation 24 of The Care Planning, Placement and Case Review (England) 
Regulations 2010 

This data represents a snapshot picture on this date.  However, it masks the 
movement of carers during the year particularly Family and Friend carers,  a 
proportion of whom are approved and de-registered within the year when a 
permanent order is made, for example, Special Guardianship Order, Child 
Arrangement Order (refer to approval and de-registration details) 
 

Type of Care 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

Short Term Care 129 135 108 101 98 

Both Short Term and Permanent 
Care 

27 35 69 70 85 

Permanent Care 45 39 42 55 51 

TOTAL MAINSTREAM 201 209 219 226 234 

      

Family & Friends Care  20 26 36 39 44 

Family & Friends  Temp Approved 33 30 45 32 28 

TOTAL FAMILY&FRIENDS 53 56 81 71 72 

      

Foster carer support respite 07 05 04 00 00 

TOTAL MAINSTREAM AND 
FAMILY & FRIENDS 

 
261 

 
270 

 
304 

 
297 

 
306 

Page 63



 10

Summary and Analysis 
 

• In relation to mainstream foster carers (short term approval; dual 
approval for short term and permanence approval ;and permanence 
approval) there has been a net increase of 8 foster carers (226 to 234 
carers) when the number of mainstream de-registrations are taken into 
account. This is the same increase as last year.  It reflects: 

o the difficulty in attracting new carers to the service. 
o an increase in carers counselled out during the assessment 

process if they were deemed unsuitable 
o the natural loss of carers through normal life events, eg 

retirement, ill health etc 
 

• The biggest increase in the approval category of carers relates to those 
carers who are approved for both permanent and short term care. This 
has risen from a total of 70 carers able to offer both short term and long 
term placements to 85 carers. This relates to a change of policy in the 
assessment process where assessments for dual approval for both 
short term and permanence are completed with carers who have the 
potential in the future to consider a long term placement. It also relates 
to a change of policy in the consideration of permanent carers having 
the capacity and ability to offer short term placements alongside a 
permanent placement if this is appropriate in relation to the children 
already placed permanently. 
This provides 

o Greater placement choice through flexibility of terms of approval. 
o Allows foster carers to gain experience of fostering before 

committing to a long term placement. 
o Is efficient in use of resources as dual approval registration in 

the original assessment avoids the subsequent need to 
complete a reassessment for permanence. 

• The number of permanent only carers has fallen slightly, as has the 
number of short term only carers, but as stated above both categories 
have greater capacity due to the increase in carers approved for both 
types of fostering. 

 

• It is particularly important that the number of carers who are approved 
for permanence has increased from 125 to 136. This is because of the 
continuing increase in the number of children requiring permanent 
families. This has been achieved by:- 

o The recruitment strategy which has had a specific campaign to 
attract new mainstream permanent carers. 

o The reassessment of current carers for permanence for a 
particular child/children already in placement short-term 

o The promotion of the need for permanent carers across the 
service. 

o Promoting wide approval categories for carers which includes for 
short term and permanent placements as stated above. 

 

Page 64



 11

• Two new carers were assessed and approved for Fostering Plus which 
is a new initiative in relation to caring for children with particularly 
complex behaviours. 
 

• There was a continued slight increase in carers who are fully approved 
Family and Friend Foster Carers which has risen from 39 to 44 carers. 
However this masks the actual number of carers who were approved 
during the year and were subsequently de-registered when permanent 
orders were made in respect of children in placement. (See de-
registration information) 

 

• In relation to carers with temporary approval this number fluctuates 
considerably throughout the year and the number does not represent 
the throughput during the year. Temporary approval is only initially 
granted for 16 weeks. 

 

• The category of foster carers support respite is currently not utilised. 
These were relatives and friends of approved foster carers who were 
willing to care for a child if the foster carers required respite. 

 
Ethnicity of children and carers on 31/03/16  

 

 

 

Foster Children Foster Carers 

White 

British 
Irish 

Any other white 
background 

 

424 
00  
05  

 

540 
02 

07 

Mixed 

White and Black 
Caribbean 

White and Black African 

White and Black Asian 

 

02 
00 

01 
 03 

 

00 
00 

00 

Asian 00 01 

Black/Black British 

Black Caribbean 
Black African 

Any other Black 

 

00 
01 

00 

 

00 
01 

01 

Any other ethnic group 01 02  
 437 554 

 
 
 
 
Analysis 

• The majority of Foster Carers approved by Durham County Council are 
White British and the majority of children Looked After are White 
British. 
 

Page 65



 12

Location of Approved Foster Carers 
 
Table 2 below shows approved foster carers by geographic location.  It 
excludes Family & Friends carers as they do not offer placements to 
unconnected children and therefore the foster carer geographical 
characteristics are not relevant. 
 

 
Analysis 

 

• The locality of approved mainstream foster carers is not evenly 
distributed.   
 

• Approximately a quarter of all carers live within Chester-le Street and 
Durham and this has continued to increase. This is the most populated 
area within Co Durham and centrally located and therefore within easy 
travelling distance for all Durham children. 

 

• Only one locality within Co Durham has seen a decrease in approved 
carers. This is the Dales. All others have either remained static or 
increased slightly. 
 

• The number of carers living outside the DCC boundary has risen. 
In most cases they live just outside the county boundary and many live 
in the east with easy access to the Easington area. In particular there is 
a group of carers living in Houghton-le Spring and another cluster in 
Darlington. 

 

• Two thirds of carers living outside the County boundary offer 
permanent placements. 
 

Foster Carer Approvals 2015-2016  
 
Table 3 shows approval of foster carers by type of provision 

 

Type 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

New mainstream 
foster carers 

33 21 27 24 22 

Reassessment of 11 12 15 13 5 

Locality 
 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

Derwentside 37 40 39 41 41 

Durham & Chester le 
Street 

53 53 55 60 63 

Easington 29 26 27 27 28 

The Dales 33 33 35 35 33 

Sedgefield 26 29 33 34 36 

Out of County South 9 13 17 9 12 

Out of County North 14 15 13 20 21 

TOTAL 201 209 219 226 234 

Page 66



 13

carers 

Family and Friend 
Carers 

17 33 28 41 39 

Total 62 66 70 78 66 

 
Analysis 
 

• The number of Family and Friends approvals has fallen very slightly 
from the previous year 
 

• There was a slight decrease in the number of mainstream carers 
approved in comparison to the previous year. This was partly due to a 
decrease in the number of prospective foster carers coming forward. 

 

• It was also partly due to the number of assessments which were 
started, but were not completed due to issues which arose during the 
assessment.  There were 12 assessments which were not completed. 
The reasons were as follows: 
 

o Significant debt not disclosed.(1) 
o Withdrew because of ill health of family members (3) 
o Withdrew because of effect on their son (1) 
o Couple decided to have their own child and therefore timing 

not right. (1) 
o Couple pursuing adoption (1) 
o Pets behaviour (1) 
o Negative references (1) 
o Failed to disclose their own child had been fostered.(1) 
o Home conditions not satisfactory (1) 
o Carer already approved as an IFA carer remained with the 

agency (1) 
  

• The number of reassessments of short term carers for permanence 
also reduced .This was anticipated because of the change to 
assessing prospective carers for long term fostering as well as short 
term fostering if they are motivated and have the potential. 
 

•  No reassessments were undertaken due to concerns about the 
carers’ suitability to foster. 

 
Foster Carer De-registrations  
 
Table 4 shows Foster Carer De-registrations by provision  

 

Type 
 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

Short term 
carers only 

6 8 6 8 12 

Permanent 
carers 

0 4 8 7 05 

Temporary 12 42 49 55 31 

Page 67



 14

approval 

Family & 
Friends 
care 

5 27 14 35 32 

Foster 
carer 
support 
respite 

3 1 1 4 0 

Partner of 
carer who 
has 
separated 

 1 1  0 

TOTAL 26 83 79 109 80 

 
Analysis 

 

• 80 carers were de-registered during the year 2015-2016. 
 

• The majority of de-registrations were Family and Friends foster carers 
who were either temporarily approved or fully approved: 
 

• Temporary approved Family and Friends carers de-registration    
decreased to 31 compared to 55 the previous year.   
 

• Fully approved Family and Friend carers who were de-registered 
remained at a similar level to the previous year. 
 

• 17 mainstream carers were de-registered which is a similar number to 
last year. This is lower than national figures which estimate that 10-
15% of carers leave the service each year. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 68



 15

Table 5 shows Foster Carer De-registrations by reason for  
de-registration 
  

 

It is important to recognise that foster carers own family situations impact on 
their ability/availability to foster and can result in them deciding not to continue 
fostering for example life events such as births, deaths, relationship 
breakdowns and employment changes. 

Analysis 

• 50% of the de-registrations were because a legal order had been made 
in respect of children being cared for. These were all positive outcomes 
and secured permanence for these children. 

• In total 40 Family and Friends foster carers were de-registered as the 
result of Court Orders which secured permanence for children meaning 
they were no longer Looked After 
 

o 34 carers became Special Guardians  
o 5 carers were granted Child Arrangement Orders.  
o 1 carer had an Adoption Order granted 

 

• 13 Family and Friends carers de-registered because young people 
returned home to family. 

• 17 mainstream carers resigned for the following reasons: 
o 6 carers retired from fostering after long service 
o 2 carers resigned following unplanned endings of placements 

Reason for De-registration 
 

2011/12 2012/13 
 

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

Family circumstances 
ie house move, change of 
employment, health, birth/deaths 

1 3 8 2 5 

Retired/Resigned 3 15 9 19 8 

Carer withdrew from process 
(following temporary approval) 

- - 3 4 5 

Concerns from the Service 2 2 5 9 4 

Child moved on/ to 
independence 

1  1 3 0 

Child returned to family 2 17 11 17 13 

Supported lodgings/staying put 
conversion 

2 - 3 3 1 

Legal orders in respect of 
children 

- SGO 
- CAO 
- RO/IRO 
- Adoption 

 

12 
 

10 
- 
2 
- 

36 
 

25 
- 

11 
- 

31 
 

19 
- 

13 
- 

50 
 

41 
5 
3 
1 

40 
 

34 
5 
1 
 

Other     4 

TOTAL 26 83 79 109 80 

Page 69



 16

o 5 carers family circumstances changed – ill health, births, 
employment 

o 2 carers resigned following concerns raised with them about the 
care they provided 

o 2 carers were de-registered following concerns about their 
suitability to foster 

• One of these carers above chose to appeal to the Independent Review 
Mechanism (IRM). The IRM agreed with the recommendation from 
Durham Fostering Service and the carers were de-registered. 

 
Views of foster carers regarding the fostering assessment 
 
October 2015 – assessment and training described as “good, very 
comprehensive, training very good and enjoyable, it did open our eyes” 
 
July 2015 – “enjoyed the assessment and initial training, leaned a lot and 
thought about things in a different way. You learn a lot about yourself” 
 
March 2016 - “the preparation which has been done has been 
outstanding” 
 
 
Views of foster carers and children and young people about the 
Fostering Service 
 
We seek to obtain the views of children and young people and foster 
carers using a variety of methods: 
 

• Foster carer annual reviews 

• Fostering Panel 

• Monthly supervision with foster carers 

• Consultation meetings 

• Regular support groups facilitated by Fostering Supervising Social 
Workers 

• Specific focus group meetings 

• Use of survey monkey for recruitment 

• Close liaison with children’s social workers and Independent Reviewing 
officers 

• Attendance at Looked After Reviews, Care Team Meetings etc where 
possible. 
 
Foster Carers advise us that they feel well supported by the Fostering 
Service, for example: 
 
- A foster care at her annual review described her Fostering Supervising 

Social Worker as “a God send” and was impressed with her hard work, 
support and sound advice (June 2015) 

- A foster carer said they felt well supported and reported regular 
communication from their Fostering Supervising Social Worker (Feb 
2016) 

 

Page 70



 17

 
3.  LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN          
 
Table 6 shows number of Looked After Children and fostered children 

 
This gives the number of Looked After Children in Durham on 31st March 
each year and the number placed with foster carers on these dates during the 
same period. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Analysis 
 

• The number of Looked After Children has increased since last year 
from 619 to 680. The trajectory is upwards for the last three years. 

•  The number of children placed in foster care has increased for the last 
four years. 

 
 
The number of children placed with foster carers by age 
 
Table 7 below gives the number of children placed with foster carers by age range on 
31

st
 March each year 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0

10 0

2 0 0

3 0 0

4 0 0

5 0 0

6 0 0

7 0 0

3 1.3 .09 3 1.3 .11 3 1.3 .13 31.3 .15

Numbe r Looke d Afte r

Numbe r foste red

0

5 0

10 0

15 0

20 0

25 0

30 0

3 1.0 3 .2 0 11 3 1.0 3 .20 12 3 1.03 .2 013 3 1.3 .14 31.3 .15 3 1.3 .16

unde r 1

1- 4ye ars

5 - 10 yea rs

11- 15  ye ars

16 +

Page 71



 18

Analysis Need  

• The number of baby placements has fallen slightly 

• The number of 1-4 years old has increased from 73 children to 118 
children 

• The number of children 5-10 years old has remained static 

• The number of children 11-15 years old has increased considerably. 

• The number of young people over 16 years has also increased 
 

Views of children  
 
Children and young people are invited to provide feedback for their foster 
carer’s annual review, and their social worker assists them to provide this. 
The feedback, which is in the form of a questionnaire is evaluated, and 
discussed at the review.  
 
The Fostering Supervising Social worker speaks with the children in 
placement when they visit, and liaises closely with the child’s social worker 
so that any issues or concerns about the child or the foster carer are 
picked up quickly 
 
An analysis of the feedback provides evidence that children and young 
people feel safe and well cared for in their foster placements 
 
Views of birth parents 
 
Feedback is sought from birth parents where appropriate for the foster 
carer’s annual review. Very few questionnaires are returned, but verbal 
feedback is occasionally provided, which is discussed at the review. Any 
issues raised by birth parents are addressed by the Fostering Service and 
the child’s social worker 

 
 
4.  IRO INFORMATION 
 
The IRO (Independent Reviewing Officer) Service chair foster carer annual 
reviews. Foster Carer reviews is a separate statutory function under the 
Children Act (1989), Guidance and Regulations (2011), the National Minimum 
Standards (DfE 2011a) and the Fostering Service (England) Regulations (DfE 
2011b) and this forms the regulatory framework for fostering services in 
England under the Care Standards Act 2000. Standards require the Foster 
Carer Review to be chaired by an independent person. 
 
The Fostering Service Regulations state that Foster Carers are required to 
have a review not more than one year from approval and thereafter at 
intervals of not more than a year or whenever the Service consider it 
necessary. First review, contentious reviews and reviews every 3 years are 
presented to the Fostering Panel. 
 
When chairing foster care reviews the IRO is responsible for scrutinising the 
Local Authority’s recommendations in relation to foster carer’s approval and to 
make recommendation to the Agency Decision Maker about what carers’ 

Page 72



 19

future approvals should entail. This in turn enables the local authority to 
appropriately match children with carer’s specific skills and expertise ensuring 
that children are safeguarded in their foster placement and their care needs 
are met. 
 
The reviewing processes also allows the IRO service to scrutinise the training 
needs and developed skills of carers to ensure that carers are banded at the 
appropriate level and that they are receiving good support from the service. 
 
 
Table 8 shows the number of foster carer reviews completed 

 

 2014/15 2015/16 

Number of Foster care reviews 230 272 

Number of reviews held within time-scale 99.2% 98.2% 

 
 
5.  DURHAM COUNTY COUNCIL FOSTERING PANELS 

 

In broad terms the role of a Fostering Panel is to: 

• provide an independent perspective, informed by a range of 
expertise and skills 

• monitor and quality assure social work practice in the best interests 
of children and young people placed in foster care.  

• provide recommendations to the Agency Decision Maker that 
accurately reflect the facts of the case presented to it in relation to 
the approval of foster carers, matches of children for permanence 
and children’s plans 

The Legal Framework of Fostering Panels is contained in Appendix 1.   

 

In April 2013, the Fostering Service established a third Panel to manage the 
increasing volume of work reflecting the increased activity of the service.  

The current configuration of Fostering Panels is 

• Two Permanence Panels (including Family and Friends work) 

• One Panel focussing primarily on short term carers 

This framework has ensured that matters are presented to Panel in a timely 
manner. Further consideration will be required to the structure of the Panels 
should the current volume of work continue to increase. 

5.1  Membership of the Panels 

 
On 1st April 2011 The Fostering Services (England) Regulation 2011 came 
into effect. This resulted in changes to the composition, quoracy and 
processes in Panel. 
 
 

Page 73



 20

It is recognised that Panels operate most effectively when there is a diverse 
membership with an understanding of the fostering tasks and the needs of 
children. Panel composition therefore includes a wide range of professional 
backgrounds, adults who have experienced foster care/adoption, and foster 
carers from other agencies as well as elected members. 
 
Prospective Panel members complete an application form and are interviewed 
for the post. Disclosure and Barring checks are undertaken and personal 
references taken up. There is a clear induction process, induction pack and an 
opportunity to observe a Panel prior to sitting as a member. Panel members 
are expected to sign a confidentiality statement and receive an annual 
appraisal. They are also offered the opportunity to attend training, including 
specific panel training. 
 
A new Fostering Panel Induction Handbook has been developed and 
distributed to Panel members giving substantial information about fostering 
and Panel processes and practices. 
 

5.2 The Role and Function of the Permanence and Fostering Panels 

The Fostering Panels are required to: 

• Consider each application of prospective foster carers for approval as 
foster carers offering placements of a short term nature or permanent 
placements. 

 

• Make recommendations to the Fostering Service regarding the terms of 
approval for those applicants and their suitability to become foster 
carers. 

 

• Consider those applications made by Family and Friends following their 
temporary approval as foster carers under Regulation 24 of The Care 
Planning, Placement and Case Review (England) Regulations 2010 to: 

 
o offer permanent or short term placements and 
o to recommend whether or not the applicants are suitable to 

become foster carers for named child/children. 
 

• Consider all First Annual Foster Care reviews (regulatory requirement) 
and subsequently Foster Carer reviews every 3 years (Durham County 
Council policy) 

 

• To consider any contentious reviews of approved foster carers and 
make recommendations regarding terms of approval and continued 
registration. 

 

• Ensure feedback to the Agency Decision Maker and Senior Managers 
of the Durham County Council on Fostering Service policy, procedures 
and practice matters 

 
 

Page 74



 21

5.3 Agency Adviser to the Fostering Panels 
 
Each Fostering Panel is supported by an Agency Adviser. During the period of 
this report the Agency Advisers to the Panels were: 
 

• Paul Lundie and Lorraine Botcherby (Team Managers, Permanence 
Team)  for the Permanence Panel 

• Andy Jennings and Jessica Cowan (Temporary Team Managers) for 
the second Permanence Panel 

• Florence Coulter (Team Manager, Recruitment Team) for the Fostering 
Panel 

 
Agency Decision Maker 
 
During this period The Agency Decision Makers for the Fostering Panels 
were: 

� Karen Robb, Strategic Manager, Looked After Children and 
Permanence 

� Dorothy Alexander, Operations Manager, Fostering, Adoption and Full 
Circle. 

� Bronwen Smith, Operations Manager, Fostering, Adoption and Full 
Circle 

 
 
5.4 The Independent Review Mechanism 
 
From April 2009 the Independent Review Mechanism was extended to cover 
fostering matters having previously been only focussed on adoption issues. It 
provides an independent review of the suitability of fostering applications 
presented to it from potential and current foster carers in cases where the 
decision has been not to approve them as a foster carer, or to terminate or 
change the terms of their approval.  This year one Durham applicants or foster 
carers made representations to the Independent Review Mechanism. 
 

5.5 Training 

 
The training needs of Panel members are identified through their individual  
annual appraisals, Panel activity and processes.  
 

  Panel have access and training programme information which has given them 
access to CAMHS, LACES and the general courses which are available to 
Foster Carers.  

 All Panel members have also completed e-learning Data Protection training. 
During the year training was provided to Panel regarding the new structure of 
Children’s Services, an update on the Fostering Regulations and Standards, 
and training delivered by young people related to their perspectives 

 

 

Page 75



 22

Fostering Panel Business Meetings  

These meetings occur twice a year. These meetings consist of the Chairs, 
Vice Chairs, Agency Advisers, Panel members and Senior Managers.   

They are chaired by the Strategic Manager, Looked After Children and 
Permanence or Operation Manager, Fostering and Adoption. The purpose of 
these meetings is to share information, to promote consistency across the 
Panels, to improve Panel practice/processes, to identify training needs and to 
discuss strategic Service Developments which may impact on Panel business.  

Permanence Review/Placement Stability Meetings 
 
Bi-monthly Permanence Review Group meetings are held to monitor the 
progress of all aspects of permanence and placement stability.  These 
meetings and are attended by Operation Managers and Team Managers 
across Looked After and Permanence Service.  They ensure that all plans of 
permanence are progressed within the desired timescales and children’s 
carers are reviewed to ensure any drift and delay is addressed. 
 
 
6 THE FOSTERING PANEL 
  
The Fostering Services (England) Regulations 2011 stipulated the 
establishment of a Central List of panel members and Durham’s Central List 
includes health, education, foster carers, care experienced members, County 
Councillors and social workers.  
 
The membership and experience of individuals serving on the Fostering Panel 
is as follows: 

 
Chair Independent, Cherryl Pharoah 
Vice Chair Social Work Representative, Kathy Welch, Team Manager 
Vice Chair Education Representative, Susan Dolphin, Education Team 
Manager 
 
Core members from the central list 
County Councillor   DCC           Anne Bonner  
Foster Carer    Independent   Dorothy Gibson 
Social Work Representatives   DCC             Bayna Brown 
Social worker    Independent            Anne Welsh 
Looked After Nurse   Independent  Claire Roebuck 
Care experienced   Independent            Sarah Dawson 
 
Additional central list members attend when required. 
 

The Fostering Panel, in accordance with regulations, is chaired independently 
of the Fostering Service.  Gareth Lambert, a BAAF Trainer/Consultant had 
been appointed and completed his induction period, but unfortunately was 
unable to take up the post due to the demise of BAAF. 
We are delighted that a new Chair, Cherryl Pharoah, has taken up the role 
and she brings to the post a long established career in Children’s Services 
and experience of chairing Panels. 

Page 76



 23

 
During the year the Panel welcomed one new Panel member, Bayna Brown, 
who is a Team Manager in Durham Residential Services with extensive 
experience of Looked After Children. 
 
6.1  Fostering Panel Activity 

The Panel met 11 times during the year.  

 

Summary of Panel Activity 

Table 9 below summarises Panel Activity  

 

Activity 
 

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

Form F 
assessments of 
short term carers 
presented to Panel 
* 

34 20 
 
 
 

15 17 20 

Reassessments 
presented to Panel 

  5 3 4 

Review of short 
term carers 
 

29 32 69 36 35 

Deregistration of 
short term carers 

07 8 0 8 7 

Matches of children 
with carers 

   3 13 

* Please note this includes assessments re-presented to Panel because of initial deferments  

Analysis  

• The number of Form F’s presented to this Panel increased slightly from 
17 to 20. Similar to the previous year, a number of the assessments 
were undertaken for foster carers who would be approved for 
permanence only and therefore they were presented to the 2 
Permanence Panels.  

• There were 4 reassessments of carers. Three were reassessments of 
short term carers to provide permanent care for child/children in 
placement. One was a reassessment of a carer as a single carer 
following the break up with her partner.  

• The number of foster care reviews presented to Panel remained at a 
similar level. 
 

• There were two reviews which were brought to Panel because of 
concerns about the standard of care provided. Panel considered the 
information and recommended de-registration in both cases. This was 
subsequently endorsed by the Agency Decision Maker  

 

Page 77



 24

• The number of de-registrations was similar to the previous years but 
remains below the national average for de-registrations of carers. 

 

• Panel’s workload was expanded to consider reassessments and 
matches for carers whose original approval was presented at the Panel 
for short term. The match of 13 children placed with 8 different families  
were recommended for approval by Panel. 

 
6.2  The Terms of Foster Carers Approval at the Fostering Panel  
 
There has been a change in policy to approve carers for a wider age range 
but within this having a clear assessment of the best match in terms of age 
 
Table 10 below gives a breakdown of carers by preference for age of placements 

 

  
Analysis 

 

• The majority of newly approved carers’ skills lie in the 0-11 age group 
with 15 carers being approved for this category. 

• No carers were approved for babies only, in line with the priorities in 
the service, but 8 carers terms of approvals included approval to care 
for babies. 

• 4 households were approved and are able to foster children with a very 
wide age range. This relates to their considerable previous experience. 

• 1 household only was particularly interested in fostering teenagers. 

Age Range 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

0 – 2 years 
only 

2 1 2 1 0 

Under 11 
years 

11 12 9 13 15 

11 years 
plus 

5 2 2 1 1 

Wide age 
range 

8 2 1 2 4 

TOTAL 26 17 14 17 20 

Page 78



 25

 
6.3  Foster Carers by Locality  

Table 11 gives a breakdown of new foster carers by area        

 

 
Area 

 
2010/11 

 
2011/12 

 
2012/13 

 
2013/14 

 
2014/15 

 
2015/16 

Durham & 
Chester-le 
Street 

9 7 2 5 3 7 

Derwentside 5 5 6 1 6 3 

Easington 4 1 0 0 1 2 

Sedgefield 1 3 5 2 3 3 

The Dales 3 7 2 4 3 2 

Out of 
County 

3 3 2 2 1 3 

TOTAL 25 26 17 14 17 20 

 
 
Analysis 

 

• There was an uneven distribution across the County of carers 
approved 
 

• The highest numbers of new carers live in the Durham area which is 
the most central locality. 
 

• There was no targeted marketing of any geographical area during this 
year. 
 

• The carers living out of the county live near the border of County 
Durham in Darlington and the Sunderland area 

 
 

6.4  Foster Carer Reviews 
 

Table 12 below shows the type of reviews. 

Type 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

First reviews 25 24 20 10 12 

Reviews called 
following a 
specific issue 

4 4 2 1 1 

3 year reviews  4 47 25 19 

TOTAL                                                             29 32 69 36 32 

 

 

Page 79



 26

Analysis 

 

• There was a similar number of reviews presented to Panel this year. 

• The majority of reviews presented to Panel were third reviews – 19 in 
the year. 

 

• Two foster carer reviews  were presented to Panel as a result of 
concern. The Panel recommended de-registration and this was 
endorsed by the Agency Decision Maker 

De-registrations 

 

There were 6 de-registrations of short term foster carers and Table 13 below 
show the reasons for de-registration.  

      

Reason 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

Family circumstances 
ie house move, change of 
employment, health, birth/deaths 

3 4 7 5 3 

Retired/Resigned 1 3 1 3 2 

Carer withdrew from process      

Concerns from the Service 2 1   2 

Foster carer respite support no 
longer needed 

1 1    

Child moved on/ to 
independence 

     

Child returned to family      

Supported lodgings/staying put 
conversion 

     

Legal orders in respect of 
children 

- SGO 
- CAO 
- RO/IRO 
- Adoption 

 

     

      TOTAL                                              7 9 8 8 7 

Analysis 

 

• There were less de-registrations of short term carers this year than 
previous years. 
 

• 1 couple retired. 
 

• 2 carer’s health problem resulted in resignation. 
 

• 1 couple resigned due to a change of employment 
 

Page 80



 27

•  2 carers were de-registered because of concerns. The Panel 
recommended de-registration in both cases which was endorsed by the 
Agency Decision Maker. One couple appealed this decision through 
the Independent Review Mechanism who also recommended de-
registration and the Agency Decision Maker subsequently confirmed 
this decision.   
 

• 1 carer resigned. There were concerns about the care she provided 
and she resigned prior to the matter being presented to panel.  
 

 
6.4  Key Themes from The Fostering Panel 
 

Quality of Reports   

• The quality of reports to Panel this year has been good with Panel 
regularly commenting about the high standard of the Foster Carer 
assessments. Importantly feedback from carers in Panel confirms their 
view that the reports were accurate and thorough. 

 
Positive Views from Panel 
 

• Panel members in their appraisals commented positively about the 
management of the Service and Chairing of the Panels. 

 

• Panel members were appreciative of the high quality of administrative 
support to Panels. 
 

Feedback from applicants & social workers about Panel  
 
Applicants and social workers are given the opportunity to feedback via a 
questionnaire when they attend Panel.  2015-16 feedback examples included: 
 

� The Panel were fair and relevant with their questions. We were treated 
with respect. 

� Although it was a daunting experience, we were made to feel at ease 
immediately. We were given the opportunity to answer and ask 
questions. 

� A good experience as appropriate questions were asked and it was 
nice the answers we gave were listened to, knew a lot about us which 
was reassuring. 

� At first terrified- but within minutes of arriving we were met, made to 
relax, feel lots better. We felt it was really pleasant, were fairly treated 
and listened to 

 
The majority of returned questionnaires stated they had waited approximately 
5 minutes, although a couple stated they waited a longer period. 
 
Most applicants stated they did not have any suggestions for improvements. 
However, one carer stated that the panel could be more diverse which had 
already been identified as an action. 

Page 81



 28

 

7 PERMANENCE PANELS     APRIL 2015 – MARCH 2016 

 
The membership and experience of individuals serving on the Permanence 
Panel A is as follows: 
 

Chair     Alison Walton (Independent) 
Vice Chair    Elizabeth Varley (Independent - Education)  
 
Regular members from the central list: 
 
Representative for Children Sarah Dawson 
Foster Carer    Andrea Lawson (Independent) 
Health (Medical Advisor)  Dr Jo Poot (Independent) 
County Councillor   Cllr Mamie Simmons 
Social Work Representative  Deborah Hood 
Social Work Representative Ann Haigh  

            
 Additional central list members attend when required 

  

The membership and experience of individuals serving on the Permanence 
Panel B is as follows: 

Chair     Sheila Sunter (Independent) 
Vice Chair              Dave Hodgson (Social Work Representative) 
 
Regular members from the central list: 
 
Representative for Children Sarah Dawson 
Health     Zoe Lister (Independent) 
Education    Pamela Norman (Independent) 
County Councillor    Cllr Maureen Stanton 
Social Work Representative Delia Jack 

 
 Additional central list members attend when required.                                  
  

Each of the Permanence Panels are chaired by someone independent of the 
Agency, in accordance with regulations.  

• Alison Walton became the Independent Chair of Permanence Panel A, 
initially on a temporary basis from June 2015 and on a permanent basis 
from October 2015. Alison is an experienced Social Worker and Senior 
Manager in children's social care. 

• Sheila Sunter continues as the Independent Chair of Permanence Panel 
B. Sheila is an experienced Social Worker and Team Manager in 
children's social care. 

 
Sheila and Alison bring a wealth of experience in family placement, Looked 
After children and child care to their chairing roles.  Dr Jo Poot, Consultant 

Page 82



 29

Paediatrician became the Medical Advisor to the Permanence Panels in 
2015/16 and attends as a continuing member of Permanence Panel A. 
 
During the year there have been changes in the composition of the Panels: 

• Councillor Maureen Stanton joined Panel B in April 2015. 

• Fostering Supervising Social Worker, Permanence Maxine Santos was 
replaced by Deborah Hood of the same team, in April 2015. 

• Delia Jack, Fostering Supervising Social Worker, Recruitment & 
Assessment was a member of Panel B throughout the 2015/16 year. 

• Independent Foster Carer Andrea Lawson from Sunderland City Council, 
replaced Andrea Brady in the same role in May 2015.  

• Dave Hodgson, Senior Practitioner, Short Term, became Vice Chair of 
Panel B in October 2015, replacing Alison Walton upon her taking over 
the Independent Chair of Panel A on a permanent basis.  

 

7.1 Permanence Panel Activity 

Panel A met 11 times and Panel B met 10 times during the year. There was 
one Extraordinary Panel meeting held on 30 March 2016. 

 
Table 14 - Summary of Permanence Panel Activity 

 

Panel Workload 
 

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

Approvals of permanence foster 
Carers  

2 12 6 2 

Approvals of permanence foster 
Carers via reassessment 

11 11 9 0 

Approval of Family Friends foster 
carers (Form C) 

30 28 41 39 

Approval of children as suitable for 
permanence via long term fostering 

47 52 22 24 

Match of children approved for 
permanence with an IFA 
permanence foster carers 

1 (2 

children) 
11 (14 

children) 
9 (9 

children) 

7 (8 children) 

Match of children approved for 
permanence with permanence foster 
carers 

13 (15 

children) 
22 (29 

children) 
42 (54 

children) 

16 (24 

children) 

Reviews of foster 
carers 

1st Reviews 9 14 22 18 

3rd Reviews 3 42 25 16 

Other 0 0 0 2 

Total 12 56 47 36 

De registrations of foster carers 71 70 97 73 

Page 83



 30

Analysis 
 

• The significantly increased level of Family Friends Foster Carers 
recommended for approval at Panel over 2014/15 has broadly been 
maintained (39). 

• In fact the number of children matched to permanent foster carers (32) is 
greater that the number of children's plans approved for requiring 
permanence through long term fostering in each of the last 2 years (24 and 
22). 

• The 24 children's plans recommended by Panel in the last year for children 
requiring permanence through long term fostering represents consistent 
performance with the previous year, 2014/15, following two years in which 
a significant backlog of cases was addressed. 

• Slightly more First annual reviews (18) as required by regulations, were 
presented to Panel, than other reviews at the discretion of the Fostering 
Service, which would include those recommending change of approvals, 
contentious issues and 3 yearly reviews (16).  

• Deregistrations returned to their 2013/14 levels, with almost three quarters 
(72.6%) following the granting of Court orders as to the long term 
residence of one or more children, one or more children returning to live 
with parents or other family members or a young person achieving 
independence. Each of these represent a positive permanent outcome for 
the children concerned. 

 

7.2 Approval of Permanence Plans for Children/Matching  

 
Table 16 shows approval of permanence plans for children and their match with 
permanent carers 

 

Permanence Plans/Matching 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

Approval of children as suitable for 
permanent placement 

47 
 
 

52 22 24 

Match of children approved for 
permanence with an IFA permanence 
foster carers 

1 (2 children) 11 (15 

children) 
9 (9 children) 7 (8 children) 

Match of children approved for 
permanence with permanence foster 
carers 

13 (15 

children) 

22 (29 

children) 
42 (54 

children) 
16 (24 

children) 

 
Analysis 

• There have been 24 children's plans recommended by Panel in the last 
year for children requiring permanence through long term fostering. This 
represents consistent performance with the previous year, 2014/15, 
following two years in which a significant backlog of cases was addressed. 

Page 84



 31

• The Permanence Team continues to work closely with the Adoption Team 
and on occasions when a plan of adoption cannot be achieved within the 
child's timescale, these cases are transferred to the Permanence Team so 
permanence via long term fostering can be considered; usually reflecting 
the contingency agreed at Court upon the granting of the Care Order. 

• There have been 8 children matched with Independent Fostering Agency 
carers over this period, which is again consistent with the previous year. 

• 24 children were matched with ‘In House’ carers in this year, which is 
consistent with the average performance for 2012/14. 

• The number of children matched to permanent foster carers (32) is greater 
that the number of children's plans approved for requiring permanence 
through long term fostering in each of the last 2 years (24 and 22). 
 

Foster Carer Reviews 
 
There were 36 reviews of foster carers presented to Panel and Table 17 
below shows the type of reviews. 

 

 

 

 

 

Analysis 

 

• The first annual review is presented to Panel in accordance with 
regulations. 18 such reviews were considered by Permanence Panels in 
year. 

• Third annual reviews are presented to Panel and subsequent reviews at 
least 3 yearly, providing independent scrutiny of the progress and 
development made by foster carers at various stages of their fostering 
careers. 16 such reviews were referred to Panels. 

• Reviews are also presented to Panel when a significant issue is raised 
and/or a change in approval is recommended. 2 of these were considered.  

 

De-registrations 

There were 73 de-registrations of permanent foster carers which also 
incorporate Relative Friend Carers.   Table 18 below shows the reasons for 
de-registration. 

 
 
 

TYPE No 

First Reviews 18 

Third Annual Reviews 16 

Other Reviews   2 

    TOTAL                                                                              36 

Page 85



 32

Reason 
 

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

Carer moved 0 0 0 0 

Carer unable to meet standards and 
uncooperative/unsuited to care 

0 6 8 0 

Carer adopted child 0 0 1 1 

Residence Order/Child Arrangement Order 
granted 

11 13 5 5 

Special Guardianship Order granted 25 19 63 33 

Breakdown/disruption of placement 3 2 0 0 

Move to supported lodgings scheme 0 3 2 0 

Changes in family circumstances 1 0 0 0 

Rehabilitation to family 17 11 10 13 

Retirement 0 1 0 4 

Young person moved to independence 0 1 0 1 

Resignations 9 3 3 7 

Change of Care Plan 5 0 0 0 

Child moved to foster care/adoption  4 1 1 

Carer withdrew  3 4 8 

Another family member came forward  3 0 0 

Remains on independent TC basis  1 0 0 

TOTAL 71 70 97 73 

Analysis 

 

• The trend for more than half of de-registrations to follow the granting of 
Court orders as to the long term residence of one or more children has 
continued, with 53.4% following the granting of Adoption (1), Residence or 
Child Arrangement (5) or Special Guardianship (33) Orders. These cases 
represent positive outcomes for children under Court scrutiny. 

• Taken together with the number of de-registrations (13) following one or 
more children returning to live with parents or other family members, 
without the need for such Orders, and 1 de-registration following a young 
person achieving independence, 72.6% of de-registrations followed one or 
more children achieving a form of permanence. 

• 8 relative friend carers withdrew as they requested not to continue with 
the assessments. 

• 4 mainstream permanent carers retired. 

• 6 mainstream permanent carers resigned due to various reasons.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 86



 33

Family and Friends Foster Carers 
 
Table 19 

 

Approvals 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 

 
Approval of Family Friends foster 
carers (Form C) 

 
33 

 
28 

 
41 

 
39 

 
Analysis 
 

• The significantly increased level of Family Friends Foster Carers 
recommended for approval at Panel over 2014/15 has been maintained, 
reflecting positive consideration of the child’s family network within the 
assessment process, in line with the Children Act 1989 and the Care 
Planning, Placement and Case Review (England) Regulations 2010. 

• The BAAF Form C Assessment tool has been continually used across 
Durham County and there have been 39 Relative and Friend 
Assessments presented to Panel and approved this year.   

 
 
 
7.3  Key Themes from Permanence Panel  
 

• Within the reports presented to Panel this year, the Fostering Service’s 
Form F Reports remain comprehensive. Matching Reports from 
Fostering Supervising Social Workers and children's Social Workers 
have also continued to be to a good standard.  

• Form C Assessments of kinship, friends and family connected persons 
to the child, have maintained improvement, with few exceptions 
requiring deferment for additional information. 

• Contact issues and the health needs of both applicants and children, 
have been key themes within Form C assessments, as has 
consideration of how both younger and older applicants will manage 
currently placed younger children during their teenage years. 

• A significant issue towards the close of the year has been a delay in 
the return of some DBS  (Disclosure and Barring Service) enhanced 
clearances and a number of Medical assessments for Form C 
applicants under regulation 24, necessitating a greater number of 
extensions of temporary approval for assessment under regulation 25 
and the re-scheduling of Panels' business.  

• The quality of Child Permanence Reports (CPR) has been good, 
informing positive Panel recommendations and Agency decisions as to 
the need for permanence via long term fostering. 

• The improvement in the representation of children’s views within 
reports presented to Permanence Panels in 2014/15 has been 
maintained and further embedded in practice in 2015/16. 

Page 87



 34

• Panel continues to be served very well by dedicated administrative 
support, including an Extraordinary Panel meeting required to meet 
demand in March 2016. 

• The Panels' workload continues to be significant, and further work has 
been undertaken by the Agency Advisors and Panel Administrators to 
enhance quality assurance and timeliness at all stages of the process, 
prior to and following Panel, in the coming year. 

 

7.4  FEEDBACK FROM PERMANENCE PANEL 

 
Feedback questionnaires are offered to all applicants and professionals who 
attend Panel. Pre-paid envelopes are provided so that they can be completed 
later and sent to the Panel Administrator if this is preferred.  
 
Feedback from professionals attending Panel 
 

• Professionals reported that their experience of attending Panel was 
positive.   

• They stated that Panel members were welcoming, introduced 
themselves and were friendly.   

• They felt questions were fair, that answers were listened to, that Panel 
members were sensitive, and Panel was objective and gave 
appropriate consideration. 

• Waiting times were generally satisfactory ie 0-15 minutes but 1 hour 25 

minutes in one case. 

 
Feedback from applicants 
 

• Applicants reported that the process of attending Panel was explained 
to them before Panel. 

• They said that they were shown to the Panel room if they had not 
attended before. 

• Waiting times were satisfactory ie 0-20 minutes. 

• They felt listened to, treated with respect and had the opportunity to 
ask questions within Panel. 

• The Panel Chair and Agency Advisor clearly explained the Panel's 

recommendation outside Panel, immediately following it being made, 

and explained the process of consideration by the Agency Decision 

Maker. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 88



 35

8.   Conclusion and Future Priorities 

 

The majority of looked after children are placed within Durham’s fostering 

service. It has become increasingly challenging to manage the growing 

demand for placements in-house due to the increase in the looked after 

children population. Use of Independent Fostering Agencies has grown as 

a result.  This does not necessarily provide better outcomes for children, 

but it does have an adverse effect on resources for the County as 

expenditure increases in line with increased usage. 

 

Achieving efficiencies, despite the increase in the looked after children 

population, is predicated upon significant developments taking place 

regarding the fostering service. On that basis there are four specific priority 

areas to focus upon over the forthcoming year. These are as follows: 

 

• Development of a robust Marketing Strategy to increase the 

number of fostering applicants to Durham to meet 100% of 

Durham’s needs and achieve vacant capacity. This will enable 

matching of needs to carer skills and reduce reliance on external 

resources; 

 

• Further Development of the Fostering Plus Scheme in order to 

provide a family based service to care for some of our children with 

most complex needs; 

 

• Implementation of a review of the fostering service to ensure the 

resources channelled into the service are utilised in the most 

effective and efficient way and that the service is able to meet 

future demand; 

 

• Deliver initiatives already in train to promote fostering, such as 

Durham County Council liveried vehicles, a concerted social media 

campaign and targeted recruitment to specialist fostering 

programmes.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 89



 36

 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

 
Finance – The development of the Fostering Plus model aims to reduce 
expenditure regarding children with complex needs by diverting the need for 
them to be cared for in internal residential care and in high cost external 
fostering and residential placements where appropriate. 
 
Investment into the Fostering Marketing Strategy on an ‘Invest to Save’ basis 
aims to reduce expenditure in the long term by achieving sufficient capacity of 
internal resources to meet the needs of Durham’s looked after children 
 
 
Staffing – The Fostering Review may have staffing implications but it is too 
premature at this stage to provide any detail 
 
 
Risk – Failure to develop the Fostering Service risks the Council’s ability to 
meet demand for looked after children.  
 
 
Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty – The fostering 
service endeavours to ensure the carer population is reflective of the children 
it serves 
 
 
Accommodation – No implications 
 
 
Crime and Disorder – No implications 
 
 
Human Rights – Provision and ongoing development of fostering services 
aims to ensure all children who need to be cared for away from their home 
have the opportunity where possible to live within a family setting. 
 
 
Consultation – No implications 
 
 
Procurement – No implications 
 
 
Disability Issues – The Fostering Recruitment Campaign aims to recruit 
carers who can meet the needs of looked after children who are disables. 
They form one of the targeted groups for fostering recruitment 
 
 
Legal Implications – No implications 

Page 90



 37

 

 

APPENDIX 2 

 
THE LEGAL FRAMEWORK OF PANELS 
 
ACTS   The Children Act 1989 

The Data Protection Act 1998 

The Protection of Children Act 1999 

The Adoption and Children Act 2002 

The Children Act 2004 

 

 

REGULATIONS  

   Fostering Services (England) Regulations 2011 

The Care Planning, Placement and Case Review 

(England) Regulations 2010 

The Care Planning, Placement and Case Review and 

Fostering Services (Miscellaneous Amendments) 

Regulations 2013  

 

STANDARDS UK National Standards for Foster Care 1999 

Code of Practice on the recruitment, assessment, 

approval, training, management and support of carers 

1999 

Fostering Services National Minimum Standards 2011 

 

 

GUIDANCE  The Children Act 1989 Guidance vol 4: Fostering 

Services 2011 

 The Children Act 1989 Guidance vol 2: Care Planning, 

Placement and Case Review 2011 

 Family and Friends Care: Statutory Guidance for Local 

Authorities 2011 

   Effective Fostering Panels BAAF 2011 

Page 91



Page 92

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 5 

 
 

Children and Young People’s Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee 
 

09 November 2016 
 

Durham Local Safeguarding Children 
Board Annual Report 2015-16 
 

 

 

Report of  Jane Geraghty, Independent Chair Local Safeguarding 
Children Board 

 
Purpose of the Report 
 

1. The purpose of this report is to present the Children and Young People’s 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee with the Durham Local Safeguarding Children 
Board Annual Report 2015-16 (attached at Appendix 2). 

 
Background 
 

2. Durham Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) is a statutory body 
established under the Children Act 2004. It is independently chaired (as required 
by statute) and consists of senior representatives of all the principle stakeholders 
working together to safeguard children and young people in County Durham. 

 
3. Its statutory objectives are to: 

 
a. Coordinate local work to safeguard and promote the welfare of children; 
b. Ensure the effectiveness of its work. 

 
4. The LSCB’s primary responsibility is to provide a way for local organisations that 

have a responsibility in respect of child welfare, to agree how they will work 
together to safeguard and promote the welfare of children in County Durham and 
to ensure that they do so effectively. 
 

5. Working Together to Safeguard Children (2015) requires each Local 
Safeguarding Children Board to produce and publish an Annual Report 
evaluating the effectiveness of safeguarding in the local area. 
 

6. The LSCB has had a year of development during 2015/16.  Following the Local 
Government Association peer review in October 2014 a self-improvement plan 
was implemented which culminated in a “good” Ofsted rating in May 2016.       

 
Annual Report 
 

7. The Durham LSCB Annual Report 2015/16 sets out the work of multi-agency 
partners to ensure effective arrangements are in place to safeguard and protect 
vulnerable children and young people from abuse and neglect.  

 

Agenda Item 12

Page 93



Page 2 of 5 

8. The report describes the work undertaken against the 2015-16 priorities and sets 
out the future priorities for 2016-19.  It describes the local governance 
arrangements and structure of Durham LSCB; the linkages to other strategic 
partnerships across County Durham; and working with other LSCBs. 

 
9. The report also provides an overview of the performance monitoring framework 

as well as providing a brief summary of safeguarding privately fostered children; 
the use of restraint in secure centres; Serious Case Reviews; Child Death 
Reviews; and the single and multi-agency training provision.   

 
LSCB Priorities for 2016-19 
 

10. Durham LSCB held a development day in February 2016 to review progress on 
the priorities; consider key challenges; and to set its future priorities. In setting 
the priorities for 2016-19 the Board considered a number of presentations and 
information sources which resulted in reaffirming the following strategic priorities: 

 

• Reducing Child Sexual Exploitation 

• Improving Early Help   

• Reducing Neglect (contributory factors are domestic abuse; alcohol 
misuse; substance misuse; parental mental health)  

• Reducing self-harm and improving young people’s self-esteem  

• Increase the voice of the child 

• Ensuring that each agency is accountable for delivery of its own 
safeguarding responsibilities 

 
Achievements and Progress Highlights 
 

11. Below are some examples of achievements and progress made by the LSCB in 
2015/16:  
 

• Refreshed the Early Help and Neglect Strategy to include more focus on 
Hidden Harm (domestic abuse; alcohol misuse; substance misuse and 
parental mental health). 

• Developed the Early Help and Neglect Practice Guidance to provide 
updated toolkits and strategies for practitioners to use and implement. 

• Revised the 0-19 Level of Need threshold document which provides a 
quick-reference guide to support professionals in their decision-making. 

• Development and launch of the ‘ERASE’ brand and website has increased 
our capability to raise awareness about Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE).  

• Delivered taxi driver awareness training of CSE with over 1,000 trained to 
date. 

• Delivered a comprehensive training plan for frontline staff and managers 
and extending the number of e-learning packages available with the aim of 
impacting on frontline practice. 

• Revamped the performance scorecard to provide a realistic number of 
outcome measures that are aligned to our priorities. 

• Completed the section 11 audit which provided evidence that 
organisations safeguard and promote the wellbeing of children and young 

Page 94



Page 3 of 5 

people and followed this with a number of Challenge Clinics to hold 
organisations to account. 

• Completed a number of multi-agency audits including attendance by 
relevant organisations at Section 47 Strategy Meetings.  

• Increased visibility and partnership working through implementation of the 
LSCB Marketing and Communication Strategy, including revising the 
LSCB website and developing a LSCB Newsletter. 

• Increased the voice of the child by widening the engagement networks for 
children and young people. 

• Developed and implemented a child death review database.  This allows 
the LSCB to identify and monitor developing trends through better analysis 
of data. 

• Carried out a number of Lessons Learned events for managers and 
frontline staff following publication of Serious Case Reviews.    

 
Areas for Development – Ofsted Inspection 

 
12. Following the Ofsted inspection an action plan was put in place to address the 

recommendations made to the LSCB which included: 
 

• ensuring that quality assurance and performance management processes 
are further developed to offer a detailed and comprehensive picture of the 
quality and impact of frontline practice in all service areas to underpin 
strategic understanding, challenge and development. 

• ensuring that quality assurance and audit work contribute to 
understanding the impact of training and the embedding of lessons 
learned from Serious Case Reviews. 

• developing more effective feedback processes from children, young 
people and families who have received child protection services to 
support ongoing service improvement. 

 
Conclusion 

 
13. The Durham LSCB Annual Report 2015-16 was agreed at the LSCB Board 

Meeting on the 22 September 2016.  
 

14. The report is available on the Durham LSCB Website www.durham-lscb.org.uk 
and will be disseminated through partners own organisational governance 
structures. 
 

Recommendations 
 

15. The Children and Young People’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee is 
recommended to: 
 

a. Note the content of this report. 

b. Accept the LSCB Annual Report for information as an overview of the 
work undertaken in 2015-16 and priorities for action in 2016-17. 

 

Contact:    Jacqui Doherty, LSCB Business Unit Manager Tel 03000 263989 

 

Page 95



Page 4 of 5 

 

Appendix 1:  Implications 

 
 
Finance 
Yearly financial contributions to Durham LSCB are received from partner agencies 
and are detailed in the LSCB Annual Report.   
 
Staffing 
The priorities identified in the LSCB Annual Report will be delivered using existing 
resources.  Durham County Council will contribute to the delivery of the priorities in 
partnership with other responsible authorities.   
 
Risk  
No adverse implications. 
 
Equality and Diversity/ Public Sector Equality Duty 
The LSCB Annual Report identifies the actions to safeguard the needs of vulnerable 
children and young people. 
 
Accommodation 
No adverse implications.   
 
Crime and disorder 
The LSCB Annual Report reflects priorities and action that impact positively on crime 
and disorder in County Durham.  The report shows effective partnership working with 
the Safe Durham Partnership. 
 
Human rights 
No adverse implications. 
 
Consultation 
Consultation with partner agencies and stakeholders has been undertaken as part of 
the development of the LSCB Annual Report. 
 
Procurement  
No adverse implications. 
 
Disability Issues 
No adverse implications.   
 
Legal Implications  
Durham Local Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) is a statutory body established 
under the Children Act 2004. Working Together to Safeguard Children (Statutory 
Guidance) requires each Local Safeguarding Children Board to produce and publish 
an Annual Report evaluating the effectiveness of safeguarding in the local area.  
 

 
 
 

Page 96



Page 5 of 5 

Appendix 2:   
Durham Local Safeguarding Children Board Annual Report 2015-16 
 
Attached in a separate file. 
 
 

Page 97



Page 98

This page is intentionally left blank



 

1
 

     A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

  
2

0
1

5
 /

 2
0

1
6

 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 C

h
il

d
re

n
 i

n
 C

o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a

m
 

 
 

Page 99



 

2
 

 C
o
n
te

n
ts

 

1
. 

F
o
re

w
o

rd
 b

y
 I

n
d
e

p
e
n

d
e
n

t 
C

h
a

ir
 ..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
 3

 

2
. 

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 ..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

. 
4

 

3
. 

L
o

c
a

l 
D

a
ta

 ..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

. 
6

 

4
. 

G
o

v
e

rn
a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 S

tr
u

c
tu

re
 ..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
 8

 

5
. 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
 P

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 .
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
. 
1

5
 

6
. 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 M

o
n

it
o
ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 Q
u
a

lit
y
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 ..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

. 
2

9
 

7
. 
T

ra
in

in
g
 a

n
d

 C
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o
n

 .
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
. 
3

8
 

8
. 

F
u
tu

re
 P

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 ..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

. 
4

1
 

L
S

C
B

 m
e

s
s
a

g
e

s
 t
o

 P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

ls
 a

n
d

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 ..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
. 
4

3
 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 1
 –

 L
S

C
B

 M
e

m
b
e

rs
h
ip

 a
n

d
 S

ta
ff

in
g

 ..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

 4
5

 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 2
 –

 L
S

C
B

 S
ta

ff
in

g
 a

n
d

 B
u

d
g
e

t 
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
..

..
 4

7
 

      
 

 Page 100



 

3
 

 1
. 

F
o

re
w

o
rd

 b
y
 I

n
d

e
p

e
n

d
e

n
t 

C
h

a
ir

 
T

h
is

 i
s
 t
h

e
 s

e
c
o
n

d
 A

n
n
u

a
l 
R

e
p
o

rt
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 s
in

c
e

 I
 b

e
c
a

m
e

 t
h
e

 

In
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n

t 
C

h
a

ir
 o

f 
D

u
rh

a
m

 L
o

c
a

l 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n

 B
o
a

rd
 

(L
S

C
B

).
  
T

h
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 

th
e

 C
h

a
ir
 i
s
 t

o
 b

ri
n

g
 i
n

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n

t 
s
c
ru

ti
n

y
 a

n
d

 

c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

 t
o

 t
h
e

 w
o

rk
 o

f 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
. 

S
in

c
e

 b
e

in
g
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 I
 h

a
v
e

 

im
m

e
rs

e
d

 m
y
s
e

lf
 i
n

 s
c
ru

ti
n

is
in

g
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 

D
u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 a
n
d

 I
 a

m
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
a

lly
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 g
o

o
d

 w
o

rk
 o

f 

o
u

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 i
n

 C
o

u
n
ty

 D
u

rh
a

m
. 

  

 2
0

1
5

/1
6
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 y
e

a
r 

o
f 

h
u

g
e

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 f
o

r 
D

u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

. 
 

F
o

llo
w

in
g
 t

h
e

 p
e

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
4

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 e
m

b
a

rk
e
d

 o
n

 a
 

jo
u

rn
e

y
 o

f 
s
e

lf
-i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

w
h

ic
h
 c

u
lm

in
a

te
d
 i
n
 a

 r
ig

o
ro

u
s
 a

n
d

 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
O

fs
te

d
 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 F
e

b
ru

a
ry

 2
0

1
6

. 
  

  
  

 W
h
ils

t 
th

e
 i
n
s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

 b
y
 O

fs
te

d
 r

a
te

d
 D

u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 a
s
 ‘
G

o
o

d
’ 
th

e
re

 

is
 n

o
 r

o
o
m

 f
o

r 
c
o
m

p
la

c
e

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 I
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 s
c
ru

ti
n

is
e
, 

c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

 a
n

d
 a

s
k
 t
h

e
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
 q

u
e

s
ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
p
a
rt

n
e

r 
o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n

s
. 

 

I 
w

ill
 d

o
 t

h
is

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
v
e

ly
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 a
lw

a
y
s
 s

e
e

k
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
d
 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

 T
h
e

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 m

a
d
e

 b
y
 O

fs
te

d
 w

ill
 

b
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u

r 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n

 f
o

r 
2
0
1

6
/1

7
. 
  

 T
h
e

 L
S

C
B

 A
n

n
u
a

l 
R

e
p
o

rt
 2

0
1

5
/1

6
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 l
o
c
a

l 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 a
n
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
o
f 

th
e

 B
o

a
rd

’s
 w

o
rk

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 p

a
s
t 

y
e

a
r 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 s

a
fe

ty
 

a
n

d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 a

c
ro

s
s
 C

o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a
m

. 
 

T
h
e

 r
e
p
o

rt
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
h
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 o

f 
D

u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 a
n
d

 i
ts

 s
u
b

-g
ro

u
p

s
 

a
g
a

in
s
t 

it
s
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 f
o

r 
2

0
1
5

/1
6

. 
  

O
v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

 k
e

y
 a

re
a

s
 a

n
d

 

re
s
p

o
n
d

e
d
 t

o
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e
d

 r
e
fo

rm
s
 a

n
d

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 t

o
 p

u
b

lic
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 a

 

w
a

y
 t

h
a

t 
s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

s
 o

u
r 

p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
. 

T
h
e

 a
n

n
u
a

l 
re

p
o

rt
 c

o
v
e

rs
 t
h

e
 m

a
jo

r 
c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
f 

o
u

r 
p
a

rt
n

e
rs

’ 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

, 
w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

y
 l
in

k
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 B

o
a

rd
’s

 

o
v
e

ra
ll 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

n
d
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 h
a
d

. 
 I

t 
a

ls
o
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 o

n
 t
h
e

 

S
e

ri
o

u
s
 C

a
s
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d
 C

h
ild

 D
e

a
th

 R
e

v
ie

w
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 a

n
d
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

s
 t

h
e
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 w

e
 w

ill
 t
a

k
e

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 i
n

to
 2

0
1

6
/1

7
. 

 A
s
 a

lw
a

y
s
, 

th
e

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 o

f 
C

o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a
m

 a
re

 a
t 

th
e

 h
e

a
rt

 o
f 

a
ll 

w
e

 d
o

 a
n

d
 o

u
r 

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

‘E
v
e

ry
 c

h
il
d

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 

p
e
rs

o
n

 i
n

 C
o

u
n

ty
 D

u
rh

a
m

 f
e
e

ls
 s

a
fe

 a
n

d
 g

ro
w

s
 u

p
 s

a
fe

 f
ro

m
 

h
a
rm

’ 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 d

ri
v
e

 u
s
 f
o

rw
a

rd
. 

 

 W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 ‘
v
o

ic
e

 o
f 

th
e

 c
h

ild
’ 
in

 o
u

r 
p

la
n

s
 a

n
d

 

a
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 m

o
re

 f
u

lly
 t

h
e

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 o
f 

th
e
 c

h
ild

 o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
rs

o
n

 r
e
c
e

iv
in

g
 h

e
lp

 a
n
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
. 

 

 M
y
 t

h
a

n
k
s
 g

o
 t

o
 t
h

e
 m

a
n

y
 p

a
rt

n
e

r 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 f
o

r 
th

e
ir
 h

a
rd

 w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 

d
e

d
ic

a
ti
o

n
 d

u
ri
n

g
 a

 t
im

e
 o

f 
h

u
g
e

 d
e
m

a
n
d

 a
n

d
 w

h
o

s
e

 c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 

a
n

d
 m

o
ti
v
a

ti
o

n
 h

e
lp

s
 d

e
liv

e
r 

o
u

r 
s
h
a

re
d

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
. 
 

 I 
w

o
u

ld
 a

ls
o
 l
ik

e
 t
o

 w
e

lc
o
m

e
 t

w
o

 n
e

w
 

la
y
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
; 

E
la

in
e

 T
ro

tt
e

r 
a
n

d
 

A
m

a
n

d
a

 T
a

y
lo

r-
S

a
u

n
d
e

rs
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

D
u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 B
o
a

rd
 a

lo
n

g
 w

it
h

 N
H

S
 

E
n

g
la

n
d

, 
H

a
rr

o
g
a

te
 &

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
N

H
S

 

F
o
u

n
d
a

ti
o
n

 T
ru

s
t 
a

n
d
 C

it
y
 H

o
s
p

it
a

ls
 

S
u

n
d
e

rl
a

n
d
 N

H
S

 F
o

u
n
d

a
ti
o
n

 T
ru

s
t 
a

s
 

n
e

w
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

s
. 

 

 

J
a

n
e

 G
e

ra
g
h

ty
 

In
d

e
p

e
n
d

e
n

t 
C

h
a

ir
 

 

Page 101



 

4
 

 2
. 

In
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 

D
u
rh

a
m

 L
o

c
a

l 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n

 B
o
a

rd
 h

a
s
 a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 d

u
ty

 t
o

 

p
re

p
a

re
 a

n
d

 p
u

b
lis

h
 a

n
 A

n
n
u

a
l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 w
h

ic
h
 d

e
s
c
ri
b

e
s
 h

o
w

 o
u

r 

p
a

rt
n
e

rs
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

 v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 C
o
u

n
ty

 

D
u
rh

a
m

. 
 O

u
r 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 i
s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 w
a

y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 l
o

c
a

l 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n

s
 t
h

a
t 

h
a

v
e

 a
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 i
n

 r
e
s
p

e
c
t 
o
f 

c
h

ild
 w

e
lf
a

re
, 
to

 

a
g
re

e
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
y
 w

ill
 w

o
rk

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
to

 s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

 a
n
d

 p
ro

m
o
te

 t
h

e
 

w
e

lf
a

re
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 C
o

u
n

ty
 D

u
rh

a
m

 a
n

d
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
y
 d

o
 s

o
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
. 

 

 S
e

c
ti
o

n
 3

 o
f 

th
e

 r
e
p

o
rt

 h
ig

h
lig

h
ts

 s
o

m
e

 s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 a
b

o
u
t 

C
o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a
m

 a
n

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o

n
te

x
t 

fo
r 

o
u

r 
w

o
rk

. 
  

It
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 o

u
r 

lo
c
a

l 
c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
d

ri
v
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
w

o
rk

 

a
n

d
 i
n

n
o

v
a

ti
o

n
. 

  
  

 In
 S

e
c
ti
o

n
 4

 w
e

 d
e

s
c
ri
b

e
 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n

d
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 o

f 
D

u
rh

a
m

 L
o
c
a

l 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n

 B
o
a

rd
, 

th
e

 l
in

k
a

g
e
s
 

to
 o

th
e

r 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 C

o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a

m
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
in

g
 

w
it
h

 o
th

e
r 

L
S

C
B

s
. 

  

 In
 S

e
c
ti
o

n
 5

 w
e

 h
ig

h
lig

h
t 

s
o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 

th
a

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
d

e
 i
n
 t
h

e
 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g
 o

n
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e
n

 a
g
a

in
s
t 
th

e
 2

0
1
5

/1
6

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
. 
  

 S
e

c
ti
o

n
 6

 c
o

v
e

rs
 o

u
r 

P
e

rf
o
rm

a
n

c
e

 M
o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 

Q
u

a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 P

la
n

. 
It

 d
e

s
c
ri
b

e
s
 t

h
e

 m
u

lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 a

u
d

it
s
 w

e
 

h
a

v
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

n
. 
 I

t 
a

ls
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

n
 o

v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 

p
ri
v
a

te
ly

 f
o

s
te

re
d
 c

h
ild

re
n

, 
th

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

re
s
tr

a
in

t 
in

 A
y
c
lif

fe
 S

e
c
u

re
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 C

e
n

tr
e

, 
S

e
ri
o
u

s
 C

a
s
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d

 C
h
ild

 D
e
a

th
 R

e
v
ie

w
s
. 

  

 

S
e

c
ti
o

n
 7

 o
u

tl
in

e
s
 o

u
r 

s
in

g
le

 a
n

d
 m

u
lt
i-

a
g
e

n
c
y
 t

ra
in

in
g
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

. 
  

It
 d

e
s
c
ri
b
e

s
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e
n

 t
o

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n
 a

n
d

 

e
n

h
a

n
c
e

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g
 w

h
ile

 a
v
o

id
in

g
 d

u
p

lic
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

p
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

c
e

 o
f 

in
te

r-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
. 

T
h

is
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 a

ls
o
 

d
e

s
c
ri
b

e
s
 t
h

e
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
. 

 L
a

s
tl
y
, 

S
e

c
ti
o
n

 8
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 t
h

e
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 D

u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 w
ill

 t
a

k
e

 

fo
rw

a
rd

 i
n

to
 2

0
1

6
/1

7
. 
 

 T
h
e

 A
n

n
u
a

l 
R

e
p
o

rt
 2

0
1

5
/1

6
 d

e
m

o
n

s
tr

a
te

s
 t
h
e

 e
x
te

n
t 
to

 w
h

ic
h
 t

h
e

 

fu
n

c
ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
th

e
 D

u
rh

a
m

 L
o

c
a

l 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n

 B
o
a

rd
, 
a

s
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
in

 t
h
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
s
ta

tu
to

ry
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 ‘
W

o
rk

in
g
 T

o
g
e

th
e

r 
to

 

S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

 C
h

ild
re

n
’ 
(M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

5
) 

a
re

 b
e

in
g
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 d

is
c
h
a

rg
e

d
. 

            T
h

e
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

is
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p
o

rt
 i
s
 d

ra
w

n
 f

ro
m

 a
 w

id
e

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 f

ro
m

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n
ty

 D
u

rh
a

m
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
. 

T
h

e
s
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n

ty
 

D
u

rh
a
m

 I
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 N

e
e
d

s
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
(I

N
A

);
 L

e
s
s
o

n
s
 L

e
a
rn

e
d

 f
ro

m
 l
o

c
a

l 
S

e
ri

o
u

s
 

C
a

s
e

 R
e
v
ie

w
s
; 
th

e
 L

o
c
a

l 
C

h
ild

 S
e

x
u

a
l 
E

x
p

lo
it
a

ti
o

n
 P

ro
fi
le

; 
th

e
 C

h
ild

 D
e

a
th

 R
e

v
ie

w
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 
R

e
p

o
rt

; 
th

e
 S

a
fe

 D
u

rh
a
m

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t;
 D

u
rh

a
m

 

C
o

n
s
ta

b
u

la
ry

 T
h

re
a
t 

a
n
d

 T
a

c
ti
c
a

l 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t;
 a

n
d

 a
 r

a
n
g

e
 o

f 
D

u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 d

o
c
u

m
e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
s
. 

 

Page 102



5
 

O
fs

te
d
 I
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
D

u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

  

O
fs

te
d
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
a

n
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
D

u
rh

a
m

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 

C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
D

u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 o
v
e

r 
a
 f
o

u
r-

w
e

e
k
 

p
e

ri
o

d
 i
n
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 a

n
d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

6
. 

T
h
e

 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
 i
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

a
 

S
in

g
le

 I
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 (
S

IF
) 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
e

d
 b

y
 O

fs
te

d
 i
n

 2
0

1
3

. 
  

O
fs

te
d
 r

a
te

d
 t

h
e

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
D

u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 a
s
 ‘

G
o

o
d

’.
 I

n
 t
h

e
ir
 

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

 d
o

c
u
m

e
n
t 

O
fs

te
d

 r
e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
h

a
t:
 

·
 

D
u
rh

a
m

 L
o

c
a

l 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n

 B
o
a

rd
 i
s
 a

n
 a

m
b

it
io

u
s
 

a
n

d
 r

e
fl
e

c
ti
v
e

 B
o

a
rd

 w
h

o
s
e

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 a

n
d
 f

u
n

c
ti
o

n
in

g
 h

a
s
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 s

in
c
e

 t
h
e

 p
e

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
4

 

·
 

T
h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 c
u

lt
u

re
 o

f 
o

p
e

n
n
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 c
h
a

lle
n

g
e

  

·
 

D
u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 h
a

s
 c

le
a

r 
g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n
ts

 w
it
h

 

p
a

rt
n
e

r 
B

o
a

rd
s
, 

w
it
h

 w
h

o
m

 t
h
e

re
 a

re
 a

lig
n

e
d

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 

·
 

A
n

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
d

 a
n
d

 w
e

ll-
m

a
n

a
g
e
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 u

n
it
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 g

o
o

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t
o

 t
h
e

 B
o

a
rd

 

·
 

A
 t

im
e

ly
 a

n
d

 t
h

o
ro

u
g
h

 S
e

c
ti
o

n
 1

1
 a

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 

e
n

s
u

re
s
 t
h

a
t 

s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 i
s
 a

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 

·
 

T
h
e

 E
a

rl
y
 H

e
lp

 o
ff

e
r 

is
 w

e
ll 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
d

 a
n
d

 e
m

b
e

d
d

e
d

, 
w

it
h

 

c
le

a
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 d
ir
e

c
ti
o
n

 

·
 

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 t

o
 c

h
ild

 s
e
x
u

a
l 
e

x
p

lo
it
a

ti
o

n
 a

re
 w

e
ll 

c
o

o
rd

in
a

te
d

 a
t 

b
o

th
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
n
d

 o
p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a

l 
le

v
e

l 

·
 

E
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

re
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 
re

v
ie

w
in

g
 a

n
d
 

d
is

s
e
m

in
a

ti
n

g
 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 f

ro
m

 s
e

ri
o

u
s
, 

c
h

ild
 d

e
a
th

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 

c
a

s
e

 r
e
v
ie

w
s
 

·
 

T
h
e

 B
o

a
rd

 h
a

s
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

la
n
n

in
g
, 

m
o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

a
n

d
 o

v
e

rs
ig

h
t 

o
f 

tr
a
in

in
g
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
, 

c
le

a
rl

y
 l
in

k
e

d
 t

o
 B

o
a

rd
 

p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
, 

a
n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 S
e

ri
o

u
s
 C

a
s
e

 

R
e

v
ie

w
s
 

 F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 O
fs

te
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
 a

c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
 w

a
s
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e

 t
o

 

a
d

d
re

s
s
 t
h

e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti
o
n

s
, 

th
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e

s
: 

·
 

E
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a
t 

q
u

a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 a
n
d

 p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n

c
e

 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
p

ro
c
e

s
s
e
s
 a

re
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 t
o

 o
ff

e
r 

a
 

d
e

ta
ile

d
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
p

re
h
e
n

s
iv

e
 p

ic
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

fr
o
n
tl
in

e
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
n
 a

ll 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

s
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
rp

in
 s

tr
a

te
g
ic

 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
, 

c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

·
 

E
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a
t 

q
u

a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 a
n
d

 a
u

d
it
 w

o
rk

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t
o

 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 t

h
e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

tr
a
in

in
g
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 e

m
b
e

d
d

in
g
 o

f 

le
s
s
o

n
s
 l
e
a

rn
e
d

 f
ro

m
 c

a
s
e

 r
e
v
ie

w
s
 

·
 

D
e
v
e

lo
p

in
g
 m

o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 f
e
e

d
b
a

c
k
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e
s
 f

ro
m

 c
h

ild
re

n
, 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 f
a

m
ili

e
s
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 r
e
c
e

iv
e

d
 c

h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 o

n
g
o

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

 
 

:
 D

o
w

n
lo

a
d

: 
O

fs
te

d
 I
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
D

u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 2
0

1
6

. 
 

Page 103



 

6
 

 3
. 

L
o

c
a

l 
D

a
ta

 

In
 2

0
1

5
, 

th
e

re
 w

e
re

 a
n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

d
 5

1
9

,6
9

5
 p

e
o

p
le

 l
iv

in
g
 i
n

 C
o

u
n

ty
 

D
u
rh

a
m

. 
 T

h
e

 c
o
u

n
ty

 s
tr

e
tc

h
e

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 r
u
ra

l 
N

o
rt

h
 P

e
n

n
in

e
 A

re
a

 o
f 

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g
 N

a
tu

ra
l 
B

e
a

u
ty

 i
n

 t
h

e
 W

e
s
t 
to

 t
h
e

 H
e

ri
ta

g
e

 C
o

a
s
tl
in

e
 i
n
 

th
e

 E
a

s
t 
a

n
d
 i
s
 t

h
e

 h
o
m

e
 t
o

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

tr
e
a

s
u

re
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 D

u
rh

a
m

 

C
a
th

e
d

ra
l 
a

n
d

 C
a

s
tl
e
, 
a

 U
N

E
S

C
O

 W
o
rl
d

 H
e

ri
ta

g
e

 S
it
e

. 
 

 T
h
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 h

a
s
 1

2
 m

a
jo

r 
c
e

n
tr

e
s
 o

f 
p

o
p
u

la
ti
o
n

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 D

u
rh

a
m

 

C
it
y
, 

C
h
e

s
te

r-
le

-S
tr

e
e

t,
 N

e
w

to
n

 A
y
c
lif

fe
, 

C
o

n
s
e

tt
 a

n
d

 P
e

te
rl
e

e
. 

 B
e

tw
e

e
n

 2
0

0
1

 a
n

d
 2

0
1

5
, 

th
e

 0
-1

7
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n
 i
n

 C
o

u
n

ty
 D

u
rh

a
m

 h
a

s
 

fa
lle

n
 b

y
 5

.9
%

 c
o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 a
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 o
f 

4
.2

%
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 

s
a

m
e
 p

e
ri
o
d

. 

 T
h
e

 f
a

ll 
in

 t
h
e

 1
0

 t
o
 1

4
 a

g
e

 g
ro

u
p

 i
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 l
o
w

 b
ir
th

 r
a
te

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

p
e

ri
o

d
 2

0
0
0

/2
0

0
2
. 

 H
o
w

e
v
e

r,
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 b
ir
th

s
 s

in
c
e

 2
0
0

8
 h

a
s
 

m
e

a
n

t 
a

 r
is

e
 i
n
 t

h
e

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

g
e

d
 u

n
d
e

r 
1
0

 y
e

a
rs

. 
  

 T
h
e

s
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 w

ill
 h

a
v
e

 f
u

tu
re

 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
 w

it
h

 r
e
g
a

rd
s
 t

o
 s

c
h

o
o

l 

p
la

c
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 w
h

ic
h
 i
s
 m

a
p

p
e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

D
u
rh

a
m

 C
o

u
n
ty

 

C
o
u

n
c
il 

in
 i
ts

 p
u

p
il 

p
ro

je
c
ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

. 

 P
ro

je
c
ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

o
u
n

ty
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d
 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
ill

 g
ro

w
, 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 5
.6

%
 g

ro
w

th
 b

y
 2

0
2

4
 t
o

 

7
.6

%
 g

ro
w

th
 b

y
 2

0
3

9
. 
G

ro
w

th
 a

c
ro

s
s
 E

n
g
la

n
d

 w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 r
is

e
 

o
v
e

r 
th

is
 p

e
ri
o

d
, 
w

it
h

 8
.6

%
 g

ro
w

th
 b

y
 2

0
2

4
 a

n
d

 1
0
.6

%
 g

ro
w

th
 b

y
 

2
0

3
9

. 

 D
a
ta

 s
o
u
rc

e
: 
O

ff
ic

e
 f

o
r 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
S

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 (

O
N

S
) 

 

 C
h
ild

 p
o

v
e

rt
y
 i
n
 C

o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a

m
 i
s
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a
n

 t
h
e

 E
n

g
la

n
d

 a
v
e

ra
g
e
, 

w
it
h

 2
2

.5
%

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 u

n
d
e

r 
1
6

 y
e

a
rs

 l
iv

in
g
 i
n

 p
o

v
e

rt
y
. 

G
ro

w
in

g
 u

p
 

in
 p

o
v
e

rt
y
 h

a
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 

a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 b

o
th

 d
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

ir
 c

h
ild

h
o
o

d
 a

n
d

 b
e

y
o

n
d

. 
W

o
rk

 i
s
 

b
e

in
g
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 t
o

 a
d
d

re
s
s
 c

h
ild

 p
o

v
e

rt
y
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 a
 P

o
v
e

rt
y
 A

c
ti
o

n
 

G
ro

u
p

 c
h

a
ir
e

d
 b

y
 D

u
rh

a
m

 C
o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il.

 

 
 

Page 104



 

7
 

 C
h
ild

re
n
 o

n
 a

 C
h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 

d
a
ta

 a
t 
3

1
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

6
 i
n
d

ic
a
te

s
 t
h

a
t 
3

5
0

 c
h

ild
re

n
 w

e
re

 

s
u

b
je

c
t 
to

 a
 C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 (
3
4

.9
 p

e
r 

1
0

,0
0
0

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 a

g
e

d
 

0
-1

8
).

  

 T
h
e

 p
e

rc
e
n

ta
g
e

 o
f 

C
h

ild
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

s
 t

h
a

t 
la

s
te

d
 t

w
o

 y
e

a
rs

 o
r 

m
o

re
 i
s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

a
ll

y
 2

.7
%

. 

 T
h
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
 f
o

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 o

n
 a

 C
h

ild
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 f

o
r 

a
 s

e
c
o

n
d

 o
r 

s
u

b
s
e

q
u

e
n

t 
ti
m

e
, 
w

it
h

in
 t

w
o

 y
e

a
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 p

la
n

 h
a

v
e

 f
a

lle
n

 t
o
 

7
.6

%
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 r
e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
2

.5
%

 o
n

 2
0

1
4

/1
5
 f

ig
u

re
s
. 

 P
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 

fi
g

u
re

s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
o

s
t 
fr

e
q
u

e
n
t 

re
a
s
o

n
 f

o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n

 b
e

in
g
 

p
la

c
e

d
 o

n
 a

 C
h

ild
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 i
n

 2
0

1
5
/1

6
 w

a
s
 N

e
g
le

c
t 

(3
0

1
/4

6
6

).
 

 P
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 

fi
g

u
re

s
 s

h
o

w
 t

h
a

t 
6

1
.7

%
 o

f 
c

h
il
d

re
n

 w
h

o
 w

e
re

 m
a

d
e

 

s
u

b
je

c
t 
o
f 

a
 C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 u
n
d

e
r 

fi
v
e

 y
e

a
rs

 o
ld

, 
(2

0
1
5

-1
6

) 

w
e

re
 m

a
d

e
 s

o
 d

u
e

 t
o

 N
e
g
le

c
t.

  
 

  

P
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 

fi
g

u
re

s
 s

h
o

w
s
 

th
a

t 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 a

b
u

s
e

 

c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
s
 t
o

 b
e

 t
h
e

 m
a
in

 

p
a

re
n

ta
l 
ri
s
k
 f

a
c
to

r 
le

a
d

in
g
 t

o
 

c
h

ild
re

n
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

o
f 

a
 C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
, 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 f

o
r 

2
8

%
 o

f 
c

h
il
d

 

p
ro

te
c

ti
o

n
 c

o
n

fe
re

n
c
e

s
 

re
c
o

rd
e

d
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
5

/1
6

. 
  

 P
a

re
n

ta
l 
m

e
n

ta
l 
h
e

a
lt
h
, 

s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

 m
is

u
s
e

 a
n

d
 

a
lc

o
h

o
l 
m

is
u
s
e

, 
a

re
 t

h
e

 n
e

x
t 

m
o

s
t 

c
o
m

m
o

n
. 

   L
o
o
k
e
d
 A

ft
e
r 

C
h
ild

re
n

 

W
h
e
n
 c

h
ild

re
n

 b
e

c
o
m

e
 L

o
o

k
e

d
 A

ft
e

r 
it
 i
s
 i
m

p
o
rt

a
n

t 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t
h

e
m

 

w
it
h

 p
la

c
e

m
e
n

t 
s
ta

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 

o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 e
q
u

ip
 t

h
e

m
 f
o

r 
lif

e
 b

e
y
o

n
d

 t
h

e
 c

a
re

 s
y
s
te

m
. 
W

e
 k

n
o

w
 

th
a

t 
b

y
 u

n
d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 t
h

e
 r

e
a

s
o

n
s
 w

h
y
 c

h
ild

re
n

 b
e

c
o

m
e

 L
o

o
k
e

d
 

A
ft

e
r 

e
n

a
b

le
s
 a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 t

o
 t
a

rg
e

t 
th

e
ir
 e

a
rl
y
 h

e
lp

 a
n
d

 f
a

m
ily

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

 

 P
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 

fi
g

u
re

s
 s

ta
te

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

L
o

o
k
e

d
 A

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

t 
3
1

 M
a

rc
h
 2

0
1

6
 w

a
s
 6

8
0

. 
 

T
h

is
 i
s
 6

7
.8

 p
e

r 
1

0
,0

0
0
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
p
u

la
ti
o
n

 a
g
e

d
 0

-1
8

. 
 

 
 

Page 105



 

8
 

 4
. 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
n

d
 S

tr
u

c
tu

re
 

L
o
c
a
l 
S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n
 B

o
a
rd

 

E
a

c
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

re
a

 i
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e

d
 b

y
 L

a
w

 t
o

 h
a

v
e

 a
 L

o
c
a

l 
S

a
fe

g
u
a

rd
in

g
 

C
h
ild

re
n

 B
o
a

rd
. 
T

h
e

 L
S

C
B

 i
s
 a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 b

o
d
y
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 i
n

 

le
g
is

la
ti
o

n
 (

C
h
ild

re
n

 A
c
t 

2
0
0

4
) 

a
n

d
 w

o
rk

s
 a

c
c
o

rd
in

g
 t

o
 n

a
ti
o
n

a
l 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 ‘
W

o
rk

in
g
 T

o
g
e

th
e

r 
to

 S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

 C
h

ild
re

n
 2

0
1

5
’.
 

 O
u

r 
p
ri
m

a
ry

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 i
s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 w
a

y
 f

o
r 

th
e
 l
o

c
a

l 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n

s
 t
h

a
t 

h
a

v
e

 a
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 i
n

 r
e
s
p

e
c
t 
o
f 

c
h

ild
 w

e
lf
a

re
, 
to

 

a
g
re

e
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
y
 w

ill
 w

o
rk

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
to

 s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

 a
n
d

 p
ro

m
o
te

 t
h

e
 

w
e

lf
a

re
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
o
c
a

lit
y
, 

a
n

d
 t
o

 e
n

s
u
re

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
y
 w

ill
 d

o
 s

o
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
. 

 T
h
e

 f
u
n

c
ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
 a

re
: 

·
 

T
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 p
o

li
c

ie
s

 a
n

d
 p

ro
c

e
d

u
re

s
 f

o
r 

s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 a
n

d
 

p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 t

h
e
 w

e
lf

a
re

 o
f 

c
h

il
d

re
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

  

T
h

is
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
: 

·
 

th
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 b

e
 t
a

k
e
n

 w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 c
o
n

c
e
rn

s
 a

b
o
u

t 
a

 

c
h

ild
’s

 s
a
fe

ty
 o

r 
w

e
lf
a

re
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
re

s
h
o

ld
s
 f
o

r 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
 

·
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 o

f 
p
e

rs
o
n

s
 w

h
o

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 c
h

ild
re

n
 o

r 
in

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

a
ff

e
c
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 s
a
fe

ty
 a

n
d

 w
e

lf
a

re
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 

·
 

re
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 s

u
p
e

rv
is

io
n

 o
f 

p
e

rs
o
n

s
 w

h
o

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 

c
h

ild
re

n
 

·
 

in
v
e

s
ti
g
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

lle
g
a

ti
o

n
s
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
in

g
 p

e
rs

o
n
s
 w

h
o

 w
o

rk
 

w
it
h

 c
h

ild
re

n
 

·
 

s
a
fe

ty
 a

n
d

 w
e

lf
a

re
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 w

h
o

 a
re

 p
ri
v
a

te
ly

 f
o

s
te

re
d

 

·
 

in
v
e

s
ti
g
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

lle
g
a

ti
o

n
s
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
in

g
 p

e
rs

o
n
s
 w

h
o

 w
o

rk
 

w
it
h

 c
h

ild
re

n
 

·
 

c
o

-o
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 w

it
h

 n
e

ig
h

b
o
u

ri
n

g
 c

h
ild

re
n

’s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 B

o
a

rd
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

·
 

T
o

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
 a

n
d

 r
a

is
e

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 

s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
 a

n
d

 p
ro

m
o

te
 t

h
e

 w
e

lf
a
re

 o
f 

c
h

il
d

re
n

 

·
 

T
o

 m
o

n
it

o
r 

a
n

d
 e

v
a

lu
a

te
 t

h
e

 e
ff

e
c

ti
v
e

n
e
s

s
 o

f 
w

h
a
t 

is
 d

o
n

e
 

b
y
 t

h
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir

 B
o

a
rd

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

ll
y
 a

n
d

 c
o

ll
e
c

ti
v
e

ly
 t

o
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

 a
n

d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h

e
 

w
e
lf

a
re

 o
f 

c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 a

d
v
is

e
 t

h
e
m

 o
n

 w
a

y
s

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 

·
 

T
o

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

te
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 o

f 
s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 f

o
r 

c
h

il
d

re
n

 i
n

 

th
e

 a
re

a
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 

·
 

T
o

 u
n

d
e
rt

a
k

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
s

e
ri

o
u

s
 c

a
s

e
s
 a

n
d

 a
d

v
is

in
g

 t
h

e
 

a
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

ir
 B

o
a
rd

 p
a
rt

n
e

rs
 o

n
 l

e
s

s
o

n
s
 t

o
 b

e
 

le
a

rn
e

d
 

T
o
 f

u
lf
il 

th
is

 r
o

le
, 

D
u

rh
a

m
 L

S
C

B
 u

s
e

s
 d

a
ta

 t
o
: 

·
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
 t
h

e
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 h

e
lp

 b
e

in
g
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o

 c
h

ild
re

n
 

a
n

d
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

a
rl
y
 H

e
lp

 

·
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
 w

h
e

th
e

r 
L

S
C

B
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

re
 f
u

lf
ill

in
g
 t

h
e

ir
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 

s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 o

b
lig

a
ti
o

n
s
 

·
 

q
u

a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u

re
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 j
o

in
t 
a

u
d

it
s
 o

f 
c
a

s
e

 

fi
le

s
 i
n

v
o

lv
in

g
 p

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n

e
rs

 a
n
d

 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

in
g
 l
e

s
s
o

n
s
 t
o

 b
e

 

le
a

rn
e

d
 

·
 

m
o

n
it
o

r 
a
n

d
 e

v
a

lu
a
te

 t
h

e
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 

m
u

lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 t

ra
in

in
g
 t
o

 s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

 a
n

d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h

e
 w

e
lf
a

re
 o

f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 

 

Page 106



 

9
 

 L
S

C
B

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 

L
o

c
a

l 
S

a
fe

g
u
a

rd
in

g
 C

h
ild

re
n

 B
o
a

rd
s
 a

re
 a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 

m
a

d
e

 u
p

 o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
. 

In
 C

o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a

m
 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 

lo
n

g
s
ta

n
d

in
g
 a

n
d

 a
 h

ig
h

 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
a

m
o
n

g
s
t 

p
a

rt
n

e
r 

a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 t

o
 p

ro
te

c
t 

a
n

d
 

s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

 c
h

ild
re

n
 f

ro
m

 h
a

rm
 a

n
d
 t

o
 s

h
a

re
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
th

o
s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

  

 In
 2

0
1

5
/1

6
 N

H
S

 E
n

g
la

n
d

, 
H

a
rr

o
g
a

te
 &

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
N

H
S

 F
o

u
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 T

ru
s
t 

a
n

d
 C

it
y
 H

o
s
p

it
a

ls
 S

u
n
d

e
rl
a

n
d
 N

H
S

 F
o

u
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 T

ru
s
t 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 

a
d

d
e

d
 a

s
 n

e
w

 m
e
m

b
e

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

s
. 

  

 A
 f

u
ll 

m
e
m

b
e

rs
h
ip

 l
is

t 
is

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 i
n
 t
h

is
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
re

p
o

rt
 a

t 
A

p
p
e

n
d

ix
 1

. 
  

 O
v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

D
u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 h
a

s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 a

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e
 

re
v
ie

w
, 

th
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e

d
 r

e
fr

e
s
h

in
g
 t

h
e
 T

e
rm

s
 o

f 
R

e
fe

re
n

c
e

; 
re

v
ie

w
in

g
 

a
n

d
 w

id
e

n
in

g
 t

h
e

 L
a

y
 M

e
m

b
e

r 
ro

le
; 

id
e

n
ti
fy

in
g
 g

a
p

s
 i
n

 m
e
m

b
e

rs
h
ip

 

a
n

d
 r

e
fr

e
s
h

in
g
 t

h
e

 l
o

c
a
l 
s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

. 
 

 T
h
e

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 a
n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

rm
 t
h

e
 f

o
rm

a
l 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h
e

 B
o
a

rd
 a

n
d

 a
ll 

p
a

rt
n

e
r 

a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
. 
It

 o
u

tl
in

e
s
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

ili
ty

; 
k
e

y
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

s
; 
fu

n
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 t
a

s
k
s
; 

m
e
m

b
e

rs
h
ip

; 
a
n
d

 

a
g
re

e
d

 s
ta

n
d
a

rd
s
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
L

S
C

B
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
. 
 

 A
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 a
g
re

e
d
 j
o
in

tl
y
 w

it
h

 D
u
rh

a
m

 

L
S

C
B

; 
D

u
rh

a
m

 S
a
fe

g
u
a

rd
in

g
 A

d
u

lt
s
 B

o
a

rd
; 

th
e

 H
e
a

lt
h

 a
n
d

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 B

o
a

rd
, 

th
e

 C
h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 S

a
fe

 

D
u
rh

a
m

 P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

 a
n

d
 d

e
ta

ils
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

s
 w

o
rk

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 

to
 p

ro
te

c
t 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 c

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 a

d
u

lt
s
 f

ro
m

 h
a

rm
. 

  
 

 

D
u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

h
a

ir
e

d
 b

y
 a

n
 i
n
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
t 
p

e
rs

o
n

, 
a
n

 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

t 
th

a
t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 s
in

c
e

 2
0
1

1
. 

J
a

n
e
 G

e
ra

g
h

ty
 

b
e

c
a
m

e
 t
h

e
 I

n
d

e
p
e

n
d
e
n

t 
C

h
a

ir
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
a

rd
 i
n

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
4

, 
a
n

d
 i
s
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 V
ic

e
 C

h
a

ir
 G

ill
 F

in
d

le
y
, 

D
ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

N
u

rs
in

g
, 

D
u

rh
a
m

 

D
a
le

s
, 

E
a

s
in

g
to

n
 a

n
d
 S

e
d

g
e
fi
e
ld

 C
lin

ic
a
l 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 G

ro
u
p

 

(C
C

G
) 

a
n

d
 N

o
rt

h
 D

u
rh

a
m

 C
C

G
. 

 T
h
e

 C
h

a
ir
 h

a
s
 a

 c
ru

c
ia

l 
ro

le
 e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 B
o

a
rd

 o
p

e
ra

te
s
 

in
d

e
p
e

n
d
e

n
tl
y
, 

to
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 s
e

n
io

r 
re

p
re

s
e
n

ta
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 

w
h

ils
t 

s
c
ru

ti
n
is

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 s

e
e

k
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t.

  

 T
h
e

 B
o

a
rd

 i
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 L
S

C
B

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 U

n
it
 w

h
ic

h
 s

it
s
 i
n

 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 a

n
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

. 
 T

h
is

 h
a

s
 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 t

h
e

 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 a

n
d

 

s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n
e

d
 t
h

e
 j
o

in
t 
w

o
rk

in
g
 o

n
 a

 r
a
n

g
e

 o
f 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 t
h

e
 

C
o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a
m

 D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 A

b
u

s
e

 a
n

d
 S

e
x
u

a
l 
V

io
le

n
c
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
, 

th
e

 

A
lc

o
h

o
l 
H

a
rm

 R
e
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

th
e

 H
o
n
o

u
r 

B
a

s
e
d

 V
io

le
n

c
e

, 

F
o
rc

e
d

 M
a
rr

ia
g
e

 a
n
d

 F
e

m
a

le
 G

e
n

it
a

l 
M

u
ti
la

ti
o
n

 P
ra

c
ti
c
e
 G

u
id

a
n

c
e
 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 E

a
rl
y
 H

e
lp

 a
n
d
 N

e
g
le

c
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

  L
S

C
B

 B
o
a
rd

 M
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a

n
d
 A

tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e

 

T
h
e

 D
u

rh
a

m
 L

o
c
a

l 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n

 B
o
a

rd
 m

e
e

ts
 b

i-
m

o
n

th
ly

 

a
n

d
 a

tt
e

n
d
a

n
c
e
 i
s
 m

o
n
it
o

re
d

 a
n

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 a
n
n

u
a

lly
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 

B
o

a
rd

’s
 g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
 

 T
h
e

 B
o

a
rd

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 g
o

o
d
 a

tt
e

n
d

a
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 n
e

w
 

m
e
m

b
e

rs
 a

d
d

in
g
 v

a
lu

e
. 

 
 

Page 107



 

1
0
 

 L
e
a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

D
u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
a

lly
 m

o
n

it
o

rs
 t
h
e

 q
u

a
lit

y
, 

ti
m

e
lin

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
m

u
lt
i-

a
g
e

n
c
y
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 t

h
ro

u
g
h
 t

h
e

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

F
ra

m
e

w
o
rk

. 
  

 W
h
e
re

 g
a

p
s
 a

re
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
, 

im
p

lic
a

ti
o
n

s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 L

S
C

B
 a

re
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 

a
n

d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
e

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

w
o

rk
 o

f 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
 s

u
b

-g
ro

u
p

s
. 
 

 L
S

C
B

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 

p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
re

 r
e
p

o
rt

e
d

, 

m
o

n
it
o

re
d
 a

n
d

 c
h
a

lle
n
g
e

d
. 

 W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
: 

·
 

m
o

n
it
o

r 
p
a

rt
n
e

r 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 

to
 

h
a

v
e

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n

ts
 i
n
 p

la
c
e

 (
S

e
c
ti
o

n
 

1
1

) 

·
 

c
a

rr
y
 o

u
t 

m
u

lt
i-

a
g
e

n
c
y
 a

u
d

it
s
 a

n
d
 i
d
e
n

ti
fy

 l
e
s
s
o

n
s
 t
o

 b
e

 

le
a

rn
e

d
 a

n
d

 m
a

k
e

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e

n
d

a
ti
o
n

s
 f

o
r 

fu
tu

re
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

·
 

p
ro

d
u

c
e

 a
 s

e
ri
e

s
 o

f 
m

u
lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 a

u
d

it
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 t

o
 i
n
fo

rm
 t
h

e
 

L
S

C
B

 B
o

a
rd

 o
f 

th
e

 q
u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 b
e

in
g
 u

n
d
e

rt
a
k
e

n
 a

n
d

 i
ts

 

im
p

a
c
t 
o

n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 

·
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 s

e
ri
e

s
 o

f 
p
e

rf
o
rm

a
n

c
e

 s
c
o

re
c
a

rd
s
 f
o

r 
p
ri
o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
s
 

      

W
e
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a

ti
o
n

s
 f

ro
m

 S
e

ri
o
u

s
 C

a
s
e
 

R
e
v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d

 h
o

s
t 

le
a

rn
in

g
 e

v
e

n
ts

 w
h

e
re

 k
e

y
 m

e
s
s
a

g
e

s
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 

le
s
s
o

n
s
 l
e
a

rn
e
d

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 S
e

ri
o

u
s
 C

a
s
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 

u
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e
n

 a
re

 s
h

a
re

d
 w

it
h

 p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
. 

  

 S
e

ri
o

u
s
 C

a
s
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
s
 a

re
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 D

u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 w
e

b
s
it
e
 

fo
r 

a
 p

e
ri
o

d
 o

f 
1

2
 m

o
n

th
s
. 

  

 O
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 f
in

d
in

g
s
 f

e
e
d

 i
n

to
 o

u
r 

le
a

rn
in

g
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 t
o

 p
ro

m
o

te
 a

 c
u

lt
u

re
 o

f 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
o
u

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
a

c
ro

s
s
 

th
e

 L
S

C
B

. 

 T
h
e

 C
h
ild

 D
e
a

th
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 P

a
n

e
l 
fo

r 
D

u
rh

a
m

 a
n

d
 D

a
rl
in

g
to

n
 s

h
a

re
 

k
e

y
 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 f

ro
m

 c
h

ild
 d

e
a
th

s
. 
 A

c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
s
 a

re
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 a

n
d
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
h

ild
 D

e
a

th
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 P

a
n

e
l 
a

t 
e
a

c
h

 m
e
e

ti
n

g
. 

 
 

Page 108



 

1
1
 

 L
S

C
B

 S
tr

u
c
tu

re
 &

 L
in

k
s
 t
o
 o

th
e
r 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 G
ro

u
p
s
 

 

Page 109



 

1
2
 

 S
u
b
 G

ro
u
p
s
  

D
u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 h
a

s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

s
u

b
-g

ro
u

p
s
, 

ta
k
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 

th
e

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
a

rd
. 

 E
a

c
h

 g
ro

u
p

 d
e

liv
e

rs
 o

n
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
, 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
n

d
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
. 

 R
e

g
u

la
r 

u
p
d

a
te

s
 a

n
d

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
re

 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 L
S

C
B

. 
  

  

 S
u

ic
id

e
 a

n
d

 S
e

lf
 H

a
rm

 S
u

b
-g

ro
u

p
 –

 T
h

is
 g

ro
u

p
 i
s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g
 a

 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 p

a
th

w
a

y
 f

o
r 

p
ra

c
ti
ti
o

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 t
a

c
k
le

s
 t
h

e
 c

a
u

s
a

l 
fa

c
to

rs
 f
o

r 

s
u

ic
id

e
, 
a

tt
e
m

p
te

d
 s

u
ic

id
e

 a
n

d
 s

e
lf
-h

a
rm

 i
s
s
u
e

s
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

. 

 M
is

s
in

g
 a

n
d

 E
x

p
lo

it
e
d

 S
u

b
-g

ro
u

p
 –

 T
h
is

 g
ro

u
p

 f
o

c
u

s
s
e

s
 o

n
 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 t
o

 r
e
p
o

rt
e
d
 

m
is

s
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

b
s
e

n
t 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 C
h

ild
 S

e
x
u

a
l 
E

x
p

lo
it
a

ti
o

n
. 

 L
e
a

rn
in

g
 a

n
d

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

S
u

b
-g

ro
u

p
 –

 T
h
is

 g
ro

u
p

 c
o
n

s
id

e
rs

 

s
e

ri
o

u
s
 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
, 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
s
 S

e
ri
o

u
s
 C

a
s
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
s
 (

S
C

R
),

 

o
v
e

rs
e
e

s
 a

n
d

 m
o
n

it
o

rs
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 f

ro
m

 S
C

R
s
. 
  

 E
a

rl
y
 H

e
lp

 a
n

d
 N

e
g

le
c

t 
S

u
b

-g
ro

u
p

 –
 T

h
is

 g
ro

u
p

 r
e
v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d

 

im
p

ro
v
e

s
 t

h
e
 r

e
fe

rr
a

l 
p
a

th
w

a
y
s
 a

n
d

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 a
n

d
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 f
o

r 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 a

t 
a
n

 e
a

rl
ie

r 
s
ta

g
e

 o
f 

n
e

e
d

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
re

b
y
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 

o
f 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 e

n
te

ri
n

g
 t

h
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
n

 c
ri
s
is

. 
 T

h
is

 g
ro

u
p

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

s
 t
h

re
e

 

E
a

rl
y
 H

e
lp

 L
o

c
a

lit
y
 F

o
ru

m
s
 f
o

r 
a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

m
u

lt
i-

a
g
e

n
c
y
 p

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n

e
rs

. 
 

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 S
u

b
-g

ro
u

p
 –

 T
h
is

 g
ro

u
p

 o
v
e

rs
e
e

s
 t
h

e
 

q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 
s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 

p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 L
S

C
B

 f
u

lf
ils

 i
ts

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 f

u
n

c
ti
o

n
. 

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 i
s
 m

o
n

it
o
re

d
 a

n
d

 a
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

th
e
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 o

f 

p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 L
S

C
B

 a
u

d
it
s
. 

T
h
e

 g
ro

u
p

 p
la

n
s
 a

n
d
 

m
o

n
it
o

rs
 t
h
e

 L
S

C
B

 a
u
d

it
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 
 

 C
h

il
d

 D
e

a
th

 O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 P

a
n

e
l 

(C
D

O
P

) 
–

 T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 j
o

in
t 
g
ro

u
p

 o
f 

b
o

th
 

D
u
rh

a
m

 a
n
d

 D
a

rl
in

g
to

n
 L

S
C

B
s
. 

It
 h

a
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
re

v
ie

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 o
n

 a
ll 

c
h

ild
 d

e
a
th

s
 a

n
d
 e

n
s
u

re
s
 t
h

a
t 
a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 

e
v
e

ry
 d

e
a

th
 o

f 
a

 c
h

ild
 n

o
rm

a
lly

 r
e
s
id

e
n

t 
in

 C
o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a

m
 i
s
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e
n

. 

 T
ra

in
in

g
, 

D
e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

s
 S

u
b

-g
ro

u
p

 –
 T

h
is

 

g
ro

u
p

 r
e
v
ie

w
s
, 

p
la

n
s
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

s
 t

h
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
m

u
lt
i-

a
g
e

n
c
y
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 u

s
in

g
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 L
e

a
rn

in
g
 L

e
s
s
o

n
s
 

R
e
v
ie

w
s
, 

S
e

ri
o

u
s
 C

a
s
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

n
d

 r
e
g
io

n
a

l 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e

. 
T

h
is

 g
ro

u
p

 a
ls

o
 h

a
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
a
n
d

 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
 M

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 a

n
d

 C
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
. 

 C
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e

o
p

le
’s

 R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

 G
ro

u
p

 –
 T

h
is

 g
ro

u
p
 h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 s
e

t 
u

p
 t

o
 a

c
ti
v
e

ly
 e

n
g
a

g
e

 w
it
h

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 

s
e

e
k
 t
h

e
ir
 v

ie
w

s
 o

n
 a

 r
a
n

g
e

 o
f 

s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 i
s
s
u

e
s
. 
 

 In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 g

ro
u

p
s
 h

a
v
e

 l
in

k
s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 L

S
C

B
 B

o
a

rd
. 

 L
o

o
k
e

d
 A

ft
e

r 
C

h
il

d
re

n
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 –
 T

h
is

 g
ro

u
p
 h

a
s
 a

 

re
p

o
rt

in
g
 r

e
la

ti
o
n

s
h

ip
 t
o

 t
h
e

 L
S

C
B

; 
it
 a

im
s
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e
n

ts
; 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 p
o

s
t-

1
6
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 h

e
a

lt
h

 

a
n

d
 e

m
o

ti
o
n

a
l 
w

e
ll-

b
e

in
g
 o

f 
L
o

o
k
e
d

 A
ft

e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
. 

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
a

re
n

ti
n

g
 P

a
n

e
l 

–
 T

h
e

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
a

re
n
ti
n

g
 P

a
n
e

l 

m
o

n
it
o

rs
 a

n
d

 e
n

s
u

re
s
 t
h

e
 w

e
ll-

b
e

in
g
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 w

h
o

 a
re

 L
o

o
k
e

d
 

A
ft

e
r 

b
y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il.

 T
h
e

 L
S

C
B

 A
n

n
u
a

l 
R

e
p
o
rt

 i
s
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 t

o
 t
h

is
 

g
ro

u
p

.  
 

Page 110



 

1
3
 

 L
in

k
a
g
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 o

th
e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

D
u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 w
o

rk
s
 w

it
h

 a
 w

id
e

 r
a
n

g
e

 o
f 

a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 f

ro
m

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e

 

C
h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

, 
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n
d

 W
e

llb
e

in
g
 B

o
a

rd
 a

n
d
 

S
a
fe

 D
u

rh
a
m

 P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
. 

 T
o

g
e

th
e

r 
th

e
s
e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

s
, 
(a

lo
n

g
 w

it
h

 

E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 
a
n

d
 E

c
o

n
o
m

ic
 t
h
e

m
e

s
),

 w
o

rk
 u

n
d
e

r 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

ty
 

D
u
rh

a
m

 P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
e

 o
v
e

ra
rc

h
in

g
 v

is
io

n
 o

f 
a

n
 ‘
A

lt
o

g
e

th
e

r 

B
e

tt
e

r 
D

u
rh

a
m

’.
  

 

 E
a

c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 f
iv

e
 t

h
e
m

a
ti
c
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

s
 h

a
s
 a

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 f
o

c
u

s
: 

·
 

T
h

e
 C

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 F

a
m

il
ie

s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 -
 W

o
rk

s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 m

o
s
t 

e
ff
ic

ie
n

t 
w

a
y
 t

o
 

im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 l
iv

e
s
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
, 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 i
n
 

C
o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a
m

 

·
 

T
h

e
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
ll

b
e

in
g

 B
o

a
rd

 -
 P

ro
m

o
te

s
 i
n

te
g
ra

te
d
 

w
o

rk
in

g
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

rs
 o

f 
h
e

a
lt
h

 s
e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

p
u

b
lic

 

h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

fo
r 

th
e

 p
u

rp
o
s
e

s
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 

th
e

 h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 t
h
e

 a
re

a
 

·
 

T
h

e
 S

a
fe

 D
u

rh
a
m

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 -
 T

a
c
k
le

s
 c

ri
m

e
, 
d

is
o
rd

e
r,

 

s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

 m
is

u
s
e

, 
a
n

ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h
a

v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
b

e
h
a

v
io

u
r 

a
d

v
e

rs
e
ly

 a
ff

e
c
ti
n

g
 t

h
e
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 s

e
e

k
s
 t

o
 r

e
d
u

c
e

 r
e

-

o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 

·
 

T
h

e
 E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 -
 A

im
s
 t

o
 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
 a

n
d
 

s
u

s
ta

in
 t
h

e
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
w

it
h

in
 C

o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a
m

, 
m

a
x
im

is
in

g
 

p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 a

rr
a

n
g
e
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 e

c
o
n
o

m
y
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 

w
e

llb
e

in
g
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 

·
 

T
h

e
 E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 -
 A

im
s
 t

o
 m

a
k
e

 C
o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a
m

 

a
 p

la
c
e

 w
h

e
re

 p
e
o

p
le

 w
a

n
t 

to
 l
iv

e
, 

w
o

rk
, 
in

v
e

s
t 

a
n
d

 v
is

it
 w

h
ils

t 

e
n

a
b

lin
g
 o

u
r 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 t
o

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

e
ir
 

p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 

W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 e

n
g
a

g
e

 a
n

d
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 t
h
e

s
e

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

s
 w

h
e

re
 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 t

o
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

 a
n

d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 t
h

e
 w

e
lf
a

re
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 

C
o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a
m

.  
 

:
 M

o
re

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

: 
F

in
d

 o
u

t 
m

o
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
ty

 
D

u
rh

a
m

 P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

. 
 

Page 111



 

1
4
 

 W
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

L
S

C
B

s
 

D
u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 w
o

rk
s
 c

o
lla

b
o

ra
ti
v
e

ly
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

L
o

c
a

l 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 

C
h
ild

re
n

 B
o
a

rd
s
 t
o

 s
h
a
re

 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 a

n
d

 a
g
re

e
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 

a
n

d
 p

ro
c
e
d

u
re

s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 f

a
m

ili
e
s
 a

n
d

 c
ro

s
s
 o

u
r 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 b
o

u
n
d

a
ri
e

s
. 

 

 T
h
e

re
 i
s
 w

o
rk

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 r

e
g
io

n
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n
g
 g

o
o

d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 i
n

 a
re

a
s
 

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 C

h
ild

 S
e

x
u

a
l 
E

x
p

lo
it
a

ti
o

n
, 
tr

a
in

in
g
, 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 

a
n

d
 l
e

s
s
o

n
s
 l
e

a
rn

e
d

. 
W

e
 a

re
 a

n
 a

c
ti
v
e

 m
e
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

th
e
 L

S
C

B
 

R
e
g
io

n
a

l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 M

a
n

a
g
e

rs
 G

ro
u

p
. 

  

 T
h
e

 r
e
g
io

n
a

l 
p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 f
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 k

e
y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 o

f 
C

h
ild

 

S
e

x
u

a
l 
E

x
p

lo
it
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 n
e

g
le

c
t.

 

  In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 S

h
a
ri
n
g
 

T
h

is
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

n
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

is
s
u
e

 h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 i
n
 l
e

a
rn

in
g
 f

ro
m

 S
e

ri
o
u

s
 

C
a
s
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
s
 b

o
th

 n
a
ti
o

n
a

lly
 a

n
d

 i
n
 C

o
u
n

ty
 D

u
rh

a
m

. 
 

 W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 k

e
e
p

 a
 f
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 s
h

a
ri
n

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 

a
n

d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n

g
 g

o
o

d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 a
c
ro

s
s
 m

u
lt
i-

a
g
e

n
c
y
 t

e
a

m
s
. 
 

 W
e
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 m
a

in
ta

in
 a

n
d

 p
ro

m
o
te

 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a
l 
‘C

o
lla

b
o

ra
ti
v
e

 

W
o
rk

in
g
 a

n
d

 I
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 S

h
a

ri
n

g
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 P

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

ls
 t
o
 p

ro
te

c
t 

V
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 A

d
u

lt
s
, 
Y

o
u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 C

h
ild

re
n

’ 
p

ro
to

c
o

l.
 T

h
is

 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

ls
 o

n
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 

o
th

e
rs

, 
b

o
th

 w
it
h

in
 a

n
d
 o

u
ts

id
e

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

. 

   

W
o
o
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 r

o
le

 a
n
d
 f

u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
L
o
c
a
l 

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n
 B

o
a
rd

s
 

In
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e

r 
2
0
1

5
 t
h

e
 P

ri
m

e
 M

in
is

te
r 

a
n

n
o

u
n
c
e

d
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
L

o
c
a

l 

S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n

 B
o

a
rd

s
 (

L
S

C
B

s
),

 i
n

 E
n
g
la

n
d

. 
  

 T
h
e

 r
e
v
ie

w
 s

e
ts

 o
u

t 
a
 n

e
w

 f
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 f

o
r 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e

 o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n
 

a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

m
u
lt
i-

a
g
e

n
c
y
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o
 p

ro
te

c
t 
a

n
d

 s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

 

c
h

ild
re

n
. 
T

h
e

 r
e
v
ie

w
 a

rg
u

e
s
 t

h
a
t 

'o
n
 a

 s
c
a

le
 o

f 
p

re
s
c
ri
p

ti
v
e

 t
o

 

p
e

rm
is

s
iv

e
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
, 

th
e

 p
e

n
d

u
lu

m
 h

a
s
 l
o
c
k
e

d
 i
ts

e
lf
 t

o
o

 c
lo

s
e
 

to
 a

 b
e

lie
f 
th

a
t 
w

e
 s

h
o
u

ld
 s

a
y
 h

o
w

 t
h

in
g

s
 s

h
o
u

ld
 b

e
 d

o
n

e
 a

s
 o

p
p
o

s
e
d

 

to
 w

h
a
t 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 w

e
 w

a
n

t 
fo

r 
c
h
ild

re
n

 a
n
d

 y
o

u
n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

'. 

 T
h
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
 a

ls
o
 c

o
v
e

rs
 t

h
e

 r
o
le

 a
n

d
 f
u

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
L

S
C

B
s
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
 

c
o

n
te

x
t 

o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 m
u

lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 w

o
rk

in
g

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 C
h

ild
 

D
e
a

th
 R

e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 a

n
d
 a

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 c

e
n

tr
a

lis
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

e
ri
o

u
s
 

C
a
s
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
s
. 

 A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
im

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
 t

o
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

fr
o

m
 b

o
th

 t
h

e
 

W
o
o
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t’
s
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
e

, 
th

e
 D

u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 

B
o

a
rd

 w
ill

 w
a

it
 f

o
r 

fu
rt

h
e

r 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 t
o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
. 
 

 T
h
e

 a
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 s

e
t 
o

u
t 

in
 t

h
e

 C
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

 B
ill

 d
o

 n
o
t 

a
t 

p
re

s
e

n
t 

c
o

v
e

r 
th

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 o

r 
a
n

y
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

s
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 L

S
C

B
s
. 

 

    
 

:
 D

o
w

n
lo

a
d

: 
W

o
o
d

 r
e

p
o

rt
: 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 r

o
le

 a
n
d

 f
u

n
c
ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 c

h
ild

re
n

 b
o

a
rd

s
 

  :
 D

o
w

n
lo

a
d

: 
T

h
e

 g
o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t's
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 t
h
e

 W
o
o
d

’s
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

 

Page 112



 

1
5
 

 5
. 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

2
0

1
5

/1
6

 

P
ri

o
ri
ti
e

s
 

 L
S

C
B

 P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 

T
h
e

 D
u

rh
a

m
 L

o
c
a

l 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n

 B
o
a

rd
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h

e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
5

/1
6

: 
  

·
 

R
e
d

u
c
in

g
 C

h
ild

 S
e

x
u

a
l 
E

x
p

lo
it
a

ti
o

n
  

·
 

Im
p

ro
v
in

g
 E

a
rl
y
 H

e
lp

  

·
 

R
e
d

u
c
in

g
 N

e
g
le

c
t 

(c
o

n
tr

ib
u
to

ry
 f

a
c
to

rs
 a

re
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 a

b
u

s
e

; 
a

lc
o

h
o

l 

m
is

u
s
e

; 
s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

 m
is

u
s
e

; 
p

a
re

n
ta

l 
m

e
n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

) 
 

·
 

R
e
d

u
c
in

g
 s

e
lf
-h

a
rm

 a
n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
’s

 s
e

lf
-

e
s
te

e
m

  

·
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e

 v
o

ic
e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
ild

  

·
 

E
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a
t 

e
a

c
h

 a
g
e

n
c
y
 i
s
 a

c
c
o

u
n
ta

b
le

 f
o

r 
d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

it
s
 

o
w

n
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 

        

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 H

ig
h
lig

h
ts

 

·
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 r
e
fr

e
s
h
e

d
 t
h

e
 E

a
rl
y
 H

e
lp

 a
n

d
 N

e
g
le

c
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

o
 

in
c
lu

d
e

 m
o

re
 f

o
c
u

s
 o

n
 H

id
d

e
n

 H
a

rm
 (

d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 a

b
u

s
e

; 
a

lc
o
h

o
l 

m
is

u
s
e

; 
s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

 m
is

u
s
e

 a
n

d
 p

a
re

n
ta

l 
m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

) 

·
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
 t
h
e

 E
a

rl
y
 H

e
lp

 a
n
d

 N
e

g
le

c
t 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e

 

G
u

id
a
n

c
e

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 t
o

o
lk

it
s
 a

n
d
 s

tr
a

te
g
ie

s
 f

o
r 

p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n
e

rs
 t
o

 u
s
e

 a
n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

·
 

T
h
e

 0
-1

9
 L

e
v
e

l 
o
f 

N
e

e
d

 t
h

re
s
h

o
ld

 d
o

c
u

m
e

n
t 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
v
is

e
d

 

a
n

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 q
u

ic
k
-r

e
fe

re
n

c
e

 g
u

id
e
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

ls
 

in
 t

h
e

ir
 d

e
c
is

io
n

-m
a

k
in

g
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
n

d
u

c
ti
n

g
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
, 

re
fe

rr
in

g
 t

o
 o

th
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 

th
e

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
h

re
s
h
o

ld
s
 f
o

r 
h
ig

h
e

r 
le

v
e

ls
 o

f 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o
n

 

·
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 t

h
e

 S
in

g
le

 A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 t

o
 

re
fl
e
c
t 

th
e

 a
d

d
e

d
 f
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 N

e
g
le

c
t 
a

n
d
 H

id
d

e
n

 H
a

rm
 

·
 

T
h
e

 H
o
m

e
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
T

o
o

l 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d
 a

n
d

 p
ilo

te
d

 g
iv

in
g
 p

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n

e
rs

 a
 b

e
tt

e
r 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 o

f 
e

x
te

rn
a

l 
in

fl
u
e

n
c
e

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 f
a

m
ily

 

·
 

T
h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 l
a

u
n

c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 E
R

A
S

E
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 h
a

s
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 o

u
r 

c
a

p
a
b

ili
ty

 t
o

 r
a
is

e
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 a

b
o

u
t 
C

S
E

  

·
 

T
h
e

 c
re

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 m
u
lt
i-

a
g
e

n
c
y
 E

R
A

S
E

 t
e
a
m

 t
o

 t
a

c
k
le

 C
S

E
 

a
n

d
 d

is
ru

p
t 
o
ff

e
n

d
e

rs
 

·
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 t
a

x
i 
d

ri
v
e

r 
a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 t

ra
in

in
g
 o

f 
C

S
E

 w
it
h

 

o
v
e

r 
1

,0
0

0
 t

ra
in

e
d

 t
o

 d
a

te
 

·
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 w
o

rk
e

d
 w

it
h

 D
u

rh
a

m
 P

o
lic

e
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
a

te
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
e

 t
o

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 o

f 
‘S

e
x
ti
n

g
’ 
a

n
d

 w
it
h

o
u

t 

c
ri
m

in
a

lis
in

g
 c

h
ild

re
n
 

Page 113



 

1
6
 

 

·
 

In
te

rv
e

n
e

 t
o

 P
ro

te
c
t 
a

 C
h
ild

 t
ra

in
in

g
 (

id
e

n
ti
fy

in
g
 a

n
d

 t
a

rg
e

ti
n

g
 

p
e

rp
e

tr
a

to
rs

 o
f 

C
S

E
) 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 w
it
h

 o
v
e

r 
1

,0
0

0
 

tr
a
in

e
d

 s
o

 f
a

r 

·
 

M
u

lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
D

u
rh

a
m

 P
o

lic
e

 f
o
u

n
d

 (
L
S

C
B

) 

p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 t

a
c
k
lin

g
 C

S
E

 a
s
 ‘
e

x
c
e

lle
n

t’
  

·
 

T
h
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 s

c
o

re
c
a

rd
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 r
e
v
a

m
p

e
d

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 

re
a

lis
ti
c
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 a

lig
n

e
d

 t
o
 o

u
r 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 

·
 

A
 n

e
w

 r
is

k
 r

e
g
is

te
r 

a
n

d
 a

 r
is

k
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g
 m

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d
 t

o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

a
 l
iv

e
 r

is
k
 r

e
g
is

te
r 

w
it
h

 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 c
o
n

tr
o
ls

 a
n

d
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

s
 

·
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 t
h
e

 S
e

c
ti
o

n
 1

1
 a

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

m
u

lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 a

u
d

it
s
. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 f
o

llo
w

e
d

 t
h

is
 u

p
 w

it
h

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 

o
f 

c
h
a

lle
n

g
e

 c
lin

ic
s
 t

o
 h

o
ld

 o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n

s
 t
o

 a
c
c
o

u
n

t 

·
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 r
o

b
u

s
t 

p
la

n
n

in
g
 a

n
d

 m
o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
S

e
ri
o

u
s
 C

a
s
e
 

R
e

v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d

 s
h

a
ri
n

g
 o

f 
le

a
rn

in
g

. 
 T

h
is

 h
a

s
 l
e
d

 t
o

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 

L
e

a
rn

in
g
 L

e
s
s
o

n
s
 e

v
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
G

P
s
 a

n
d

 E
a

rl
y
 Y

e
a

rs
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
  

·
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 e
n

g
a

g
e

d
 w

it
h
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 w

a
n

t 
to

 s
h

a
re

 t
h
e

ir
 

fi
rs

t-
h

a
n

d
 e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

. 
T

h
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u

r 
L
e

s
s
o

n
 L

e
a

rn
e

d
 e

v
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
c
o
n
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 

·
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
d

 v
is

ib
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 L

S
C

B
 

M
a

rk
e

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti
o
n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

·
 

T
h
e

m
a

ti
c
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 a

re
 b

u
ilt

 i
n
to

 t
h
e

 C
h

ild
 D

e
a
th

 O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 

P
a

n
e

l 
(C

D
O

P
) 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
 

·
 

A
 c

h
ild

 d
e

a
th

 r
e
v
ie

w
 d

a
ta

b
a

s
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
n

d
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
te

d
. 
T

h
is

 a
llo

w
s
 u

s
 t

o
 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 a
n

d
 m

o
n

it
o

r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 t

re
n

d
s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 b
e

tt
e

r 
a
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
d

a
ta

  

C
h
a
lle

n
g
e
 a

n
d
 I
m

p
a
c
t 

T
h
e

 L
S

C
B

 h
a

s
 a

 r
o
le

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

le
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

lic
e

n
c
e

 a
p

p
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 L
ic

e
n

s
in

g
 A

c
t 
2
0

0
3

. 
W

e
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 

a
p

p
lic

a
n
ts

 o
n

 t
h
e

ir
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 p

ro
te

c
t 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 i
f 

th
e

y
 a

re
 n

o
t 

in
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 o
u

r 
lic

e
n

s
in

g
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
. 

 T
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

th
is

 

c
a

n
 b

e
 s

e
e

n
 w

h
e

n
 t
h

e
 L

S
C

B
 o

r 
it
s
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 i
n
s
ti
g
a

te
 a

 l
ic

e
n

s
in

g
 

re
v
ie

w
 f

o
r 

fa
ilu

re
 t

o
 u

p
h

o
ld

 l
ic

e
n

s
in

g
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
. 

A
 l
ic

e
n

s
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 

m
a

y
 r

e
s
u

lt
 i
n

 a
 l
ic

e
n

c
e

 b
e

in
g
 r

e
v
o

k
e

d
 o

r 
a

m
e

n
d

e
d

. 

 T
h
e

 L
S

C
B

 R
is

k
 R

e
g
is

te
r 

a
n

d
 C

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 L
o

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 

re
q
u

ir
in

g
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 t
o

 p
re

s
e

n
t 
m

it
ig

a
ti
n

g
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 r

e
d
u

c
e

 r
is

k
s
 a

n
d

 

re
c
o

rd
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

s
 m

a
d
e

 t
o

 a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

t 
e
a

c
h

 

D
u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 B
o
a

rd
 m

e
e
ti
n

g
. 

 A
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 C
h

a
ir
 o

f 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
 w

a
s
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 v

o
ic

e
 o

f 

th
e

 c
h

ild
. 
T

h
is

 h
a

s
 r

e
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 c
o

lla
b
o

ra
ti
v
e

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 c
h

ild
re

n
’s

 

g
ro

u
p

s
, 

v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 s

e
c
to

r,
 A

re
a

 A
c
ti
o
n

 P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

s
, 

th
e

 Y
o

u
th

 O
ff

e
n
d

in
g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 ‘
In

v
e

s
ti
n

g
 i
n

 

C
h
ild

re
n

’ 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

th
e

 C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 a
n
d

 Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

’s
 

R
e
fe

re
n

c
e

 G
ro

u
p

 f
o

r 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
 a

s
 a

 c
e
n

tr
a
l 
p
o

in
t 

o
f 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t.
  

 T
h
e

s
e

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 h

a
v
e

 m
e

t 
w

it
h

 m
e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

ir
 

v
ie

w
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 t
a

k
e
n
 i
n

to
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
in

 t
h

e
 L

S
C

B
 w

o
rk

 p
la

n
 a

n
d

 o
u

r 

p
ri
o

ri
ty

 s
e

tt
in

g
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
A

n
 e

x
a

m
p

le
 o

f 
a

 d
ir
e

c
t 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

lis
te

n
in

g
 t

o
 t
h

e
s
e
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
s
 t
h

e
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e

d
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
lf
-

h
a

rm
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

 c
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 v

is
it
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

. 
  

 T
h
e

 C
h
ild

re
n

’s
 a

n
d

 Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o
p

le
’s

 R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

 G
ro

u
p

 w
o

rk
s
 t
o

 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
o

rd
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

’s
 v

ie
w

s
. 

 T
h
e

 L
S

C
B

 t
h
e

n
 

Page 114



 

1
7
 

 c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

d
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 a
n

d
 u

s
e
 t

h
e

s
e

 v
ie

w
s
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
n

d
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
. 

 T
h
e

 E
a

rl
y
 H

e
lp

 a
n

d
 N

e
g
le

c
t 

S
u

b
-G

ro
u
p

 c
o
n

ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 c
h
a

lle
n

g
e

 

p
a

rt
n
e

rs
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h
e

 E
a

rl
y
 H

e
lp

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
e
s
; 

th
is

 h
a

s
 l
e
d

 t
o
 t

h
e

 

in
tr

o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 a

b
u

s
e

 w
o

rk
e
rs

 b
a

s
e
d

 w
it
h

 O
n

e
 P

o
in

t 
te

a
m

s
 

a
n

d
 d

ru
g
 a

n
d

 a
lc

o
h

o
l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 e
n

g
a

g
in

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 E

a
rl
y
 H

e
lp

 F
o
ru

m
s
 

a
n

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 P
o

lic
e

 C
e

n
tr

a
l 
R

e
fe

rr
a

l 
U

n
it
. 

  

 T
h
e

 C
h

ild
 D

e
a

th
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 P

a
n

e
l 
(C

D
O

P
) 

c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

s
 a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 i
f 

a
g
re

e
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 f

ro
m

 r
e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
e

d
 i
n
 t

im
e

 

a
n

d
 e

s
c
a

la
ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e

. 
T

h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e

s
 c

o
n

v
e

n
in

g
 a

n
 

e
x
tr

a
o

rd
in

a
ry

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 t
h

e
m

e
s
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 

C
D

O
P

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
. 
 

 S
im

ila
rl
y
, 

th
e

 L
e

a
rn

in
g
 &

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
S

u
b

 G
ro

u
p

 m
o
n

it
o

rs
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 

fo
r 

le
a

rn
in

g
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 S
e

ri
o

u
s
 C

a
s
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
–

 c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

 l
e

tt
e

rs
 a

re
 

s
e

n
t 

to
 C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
e

d
 i
n

 a
 t

im
e

ly
 

w
a

y
. 

 W
e
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
a
n

d
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 t
h

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
re

s
tr

a
in

t 
in

 s
e

c
u

re
 s

e
tt

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 u

p
d
a

te
 i
n

 t
h

is
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p
o

rt
. 
 

 W
e
 h

a
v
e

 i
n

tr
o
d
u

c
e
d

 c
h
a

lle
n

g
e

 c
lin

ic
s
 t

o
 h

o
ld

 o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n

s
 t
o

 

a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 t

h
e

 S
e

c
ti
o

n
 1

1
 a

u
d

it
 a

n
d

 m
u

lt
i-

a
g
e

n
c
y
 a

u
d

it
s
 i
n

 

2
0

1
5

/1
6
. 

 C
h
a

lle
n

g
e

 a
ls

o
 t

a
k
e

s
 p

la
c
e

 a
t 
a

 s
e

n
io

r 
le

v
e

l 
th

ro
u

g
h

 a
 C

h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 

S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 G

ro
u

p
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

s
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 C

h
ie

f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

, 
In

d
e
p

e
n
d

e
n
t 

C
h
a

ir
 o

f 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
, 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 A

d
u

lt
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

C
h
ie

f 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 C

lin
ic

a
l 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 G

ro
u
p
s
, 

th
e
 l
o

c
a

l 
N

H
S

 F
o

u
n
d

a
ti
o
n

 T
ru

s
t,

 H
a

rr
o

g
a

te
 

a
n

d
 D

is
tr

ic
t 

N
H

S
 F

o
u

n
d

a
ti
o
n

 T
ru

s
t 
a

n
d
 P

o
lic

e
 C

h
ie

f 
C

o
n

s
ta

b
le

 a
s
 

w
e

ll 
a

s
 o

th
e

r 
s
e
n

io
r 

m
a
n

a
g
e

rs
. 
  

 T
h

is
 f
o

ru
m

 a
llo

w
s
 t

h
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
y
 t

o
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 a
n
d

 s
h
a

re
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 

to
 e

n
s
u

re
 l
in

e
 o

f 
s
ig

h
t 
o

n
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
: 

·
 

C
h
ild

 S
e

x
u

a
l 
E

x
p

lo
it
a

ti
o

n
  

·
 

E
n

s
u

re
 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

re
 j
o

in
e
d

 u
p

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 L
S

C
B

’s
 

·
 

E
n

s
u

re
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
fr

o
n

tl
in

e
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 

·
 

S
h

a
re

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 o

f 
m

u
lt
i-

a
g
e

n
c
y
 a

u
d

it
s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 

 W
e
 h

a
v
e

 s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

e
d
 o

u
r 

jo
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

s
 

o
n

 s
h
a

re
d

 o
r 

s
im

ila
r 

p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
. 

 E
x
a

m
p

le
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

: 

·
 

T
h

e
 S

a
fe

 D
u

rh
a
m

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 –
 w

o
rk

in
g
 t

o
g
e

th
e

r 
a

n
d
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

a
c
ti
o
n

s
 i
n

 r
e
s
p

e
c
t 
o
f 

d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 a

b
u

s
e

; 
a

lc
o

h
o

l 
m

is
u
s
e

, 
s
u
b

s
ta

n
c
e

 m
is

u
s
e

. 
A

lig
n

in
g
 

a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

in
 s

e
x
u

a
l 
v
io

le
n

c
e

, 
c
h
ild

 s
e

x
u

a
l 

e
x
p

lo
it
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 f

e
m

a
le

 g
e

n
it
a

l 
m

u
ti
la

ti
o

n
  

·
 

T
h

e
 C

h
il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 F

a
m

il
ie

s
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 –
 w

o
rk

in
g
 t

o
g
e

th
e

r 

to
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 v

o
ic

e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
ild

 s
u

c
h

 a
s
 t

h
e

 s
tu

d
e
n

t 
v
o

ic
e
 

s
u

rv
e

y
, 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 o

ff
e

n
d

 a
n

d
 E

a
rl
y
 H

e
lp

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 

·
 

T
h

e
 H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 W

e
ll

b
e

in
g

 B
o

a
rd

 –
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 g
re

a
te

r 

in
te

g
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
e

lf
-h

a
rm

 a
n

d
 s

u
ic

id
e

 p
re

v
e

n
ti
o
n

 a
g
e

n
d
a

 a
n

d
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 s
e

lf
-h

a
rm

 a
n
d

 s
u

ic
id

e
 

p
a

th
w

a
y

 
 

Page 115



 

1
8
 

 P
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

n
 L

S
C

B
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 

P
ri
o
ri
ty

 1
 –

 R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 C

h
ild

 S
e
x
u
a
l 
E

x
p
lo

it
a
ti
o
n
  

C
h
ild

 S
e

x
u

a
l 
E

x
p

lo
it
a

ti
o

n
 (

C
S

E
) 

c
a
n

 h
a

v
e

 a
 s

e
ri
o

u
s
 l
o

n
g
-t

e
rm

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 e
v
e

ry
 a

s
p

e
c
t 
o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
’s

 l
iv

e
s
, 

h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
. 

It
 d

a
m

a
g
e

s
 

th
e

 l
iv

e
s
 o

f 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 a

n
d

 c
a

re
rs

, 
w

h
ic

h
 c

a
n
 l
e

a
d

 t
o

 f
a
m

ily
 b

re
a

k
-u

p
s
. 
 

 O
u

r 
2
0
1

5
 a

n
a

ly
s
is

 o
f 

C
S

E
 i
n
 C

o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a
m

 f
o

u
n
d

 s
tr

o
n

g
 l
in

k
s
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 s
e

x
u

a
l 
e

x
p

lo
it
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 t

h
o

s
e

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

h
o

 a
re

 

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 m
is

s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 h
o

m
e

. 
 T

h
e

re
 a

re
 a

 r
a
n
g
e

 o
f 

ri
s
k
s
 a

s
s
o

c
ia

te
d
 

w
it
h

 m
is

s
in

g
 c

h
ild

re
n

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

e
x
u

a
l 
e

x
p

lo
it
a

ti
o

n
, 

m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

, 

a
lc

o
h

o
l 
o

r 
d
ru

g
 m

is
u
s
e

 i
s
s
u
e

s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 m

o
ti
v
a

ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
g
o

in
g
 m

is
s
in

g
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 f

a
m

ily
 c

o
n

fl
ic

t 
o

r 
re

la
ti
o
n

s
h

ip
 i
s
s
u
e

s
. 

  

 O
n

lin
e

 C
S

E
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e

s
 a

s
 t

h
e

 m
o
s
t 

c
o

m
m

o
n

 m
o

d
e

l.
  
T

h
e

 l
o
c
a

l 

o
ff

e
n

d
e

r 
p

ro
fi
le

 i
s
 o

n
e

 o
f 

‘s
tr

e
e

t 
g
ro

o
m

in
g
’ 
a
n
d

 u
s
e
 o

f 
s
o

c
ia

l 
m

e
d

ia
 t
o

 

e
x
p

lo
it
 c

h
ild

re
n

. 
 

 T
h
e

 a
n

a
ly

s
is

 s
u

g
g
e

s
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
c
o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 i
n

te
lli

g
e

n
c
e

 b
e

in
g
 g

a
th

e
re

d
 

o
r 

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
. 
 I

n
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

g
u

n
 t

o
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 s
tr

o
n

g
e

r 
re

la
ti
o
n

s
h

ip
s
 w

it
h

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 A
re

a
 A

c
ti
o
n

 

P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

s
 (

A
A

P
),

 r
a
is

in
g
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
C

h
ild

 S
e

x
u

a
l 
E

x
p

lo
it
a

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 h

o
w

 t
o

 r
e
p
o

rt
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 o

r 
in

te
lli

g
e

n
c
e

 o
f 
C

S
E

. 
 

 A
ll 

1
4

 A
A

P
s
 h

a
v
e

 f
e

a
tu

re
d

 C
S

E
 i
n
 t

h
e

ir
 n

e
w

s
le

tt
e

rs
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e

 a
 

re
a

c
h

 i
n

 e
x
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
1

2
,6

0
0

 p
e

o
p

le
. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 p
la

n
n
e

d
 t
o

 a
tt

e
n

d
 a

ll 
1
4

 

A
A

P
s
 B

o
a

rd
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
2
0

1
6

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
C

S
E

 m
e

s
s
a

g
e

s
 t
o

 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 l
e

a
d

e
rs

. 
 

   

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 
L
S

C
B

 a
u
d

it
s
 f
o

r 
b

o
th

 C
S

E
 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
 t
o

 a
s
s
e

s
s
 

c
h

ild
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 a
n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 w

h
o

 g
o

 

m
is

s
in

g
. 

 T
h

is
 h

a
s
 l
e

d
 t
o

 t
h
e

 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

a
 d

e
d

ic
a
te

d
 m

u
lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 

E
R

A
S

E
 t
e

a
m

 t
h

a
t 
fo

c
u
s
s
e

s
 o

n
 e

a
rl
y
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
c
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 o

f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
C

S
E

 a
n

d
 t
a

c
k
le

s
 s

u
s
p
e

c
te

d
 o

ff
e

n
d

e
rs

 u
s
in

g
 

p
ro

b
le

m
 s

o
lv

in
g
 t

a
c
ti
c
s
. 

 W
e
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 C
o

u
n
ty

 D
u

rh
a

m
 C

h
ild

 S
e

x
u

a
l 

E
x
p

lo
it
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n

 t
o

 p
re

v
e

n
t,

 p
ro

te
c
t 

a
n
d

 p
u

rs
u
e

 a
ll 

fo
rm

s
 

o
f 

C
S

E
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 o

n
lin

e
 c

h
ild

 a
b

u
s
e

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 

o
ff

e
n

c
e

s
. 
 

 A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 C
S

E
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 p

la
n

 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 c
re

a
te

d
 t
h

e
 ‘
E

R
A

S
E

’ 
b

ra
n
d

 

(E
d

u
c
a

te
 a

n
d

 R
a

is
e

 A
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 o

f 

S
e

x
u

a
l 
E

x
p

lo
it
a

ti
o

n
) 

to
 t

a
c
k
le

 C
h
ild

 

S
e

x
u

a
l 
E

x
p

lo
it
a

ti
o

n
. 
 

 In
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1
6

 w
e

 l
a
u

n
c
h
e

d
 t
h

e
 

E
R

A
S

E
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 a
n

d
 o

ff
e

rs
 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

ls
, 
p

a
re

n
ts

 a
n

d
 c

a
re

rs
 

a
d

v
ic

e
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
o

 c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

 w
it
h

 

th
e

ir
 c

h
ild

re
n

 a
b
o

u
t 
w

h
o

 t
h
e

y
 s

p
e

a
k
 t
o

 o
n

 a
n

d
 o

ff
-l
in

e
. 
 

 

:
 M

o
re

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

: 
F

in
d

 o
u

t 
m

o
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 a

b
o

u
t 

A
re

a
 A

c
ti
o

n
 

P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

s
. 

 

Page 116



 

1
9
 

 D
u
rh

a
m

 C
o

n
s
ta

b
u

la
ry

 b
e

c
a
m

e
 t
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 

F
o
rc

e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 U

K
 t

o
 a

d
o

p
t 
a

 

n
e

w
 t

ra
in

in
g
 p

a
c
k
a

g
e

 a
im

e
d

 a
t 
p

ro
te

c
ti
n

g
 c

h
ild

re
n

 f
ro

m
 a

b
u

s
e

. 

‘I
n

te
rv

e
n

e
 t
o

 P
ro

te
c
t 
a

 C
h
ild

' 
(I

P
C

) 
is

 a
 p

ro
a

c
ti
v
e

 t
ra

in
in

g
 t

a
c
ti
c
 w

h
ic

h
 

h
a

s
 h

a
d

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
s
u

c
c
e

s
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 U

n
it
e

d
 S

ta
te

s
. 

O
v
e

r 
1

,0
0

0
 p

o
lic

e
 

o
ff

ic
e
rs

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
a
g
e

n
c
y
 s

ta
ff

 s
u

c
h

 a
s
 c

h
ild

re
n

 a
n
d

 a
d

u
lt
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

h
o

u
s
in

g
, 

n
e

ig
h

b
o
u

rh
o

o
d

 w
a

rd
e

n
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

b
a
ti
o

n
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 

tr
a
in

e
d

 i
n

 t
h

is
 i
n

n
o

v
a

ti
v
e

 t
e

c
h

n
iq

u
e

. 
 

 W
e
 h

a
v
e

 w
id

e
n

e
d

 o
u

r 
C

S
E

 t
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 

a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 t

o
 t
h

o
s
e

 s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 n

o
t 

tr
a

d
it
io

n
a

lly
 

a
s
s
o

c
ia

te
d

 w
it
h

 s
a
fe

g
u
a

rd
in

g
. 

 T
h

is
 h

a
s
 l
e
d
 

to
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g
 f

o
r 

ta
x
i 
d

ri
v
e

rs
 

w
it
h

 o
v
e

r 
1

,0
0

0
 t

ra
in

e
d
 t

o
 d

a
te

. 
W

e
 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
d

 t
o

 a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 t
a

x
i 
lic

e
n

s
in

g
 

c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
 a

n
d

 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

6
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 w

a
s
 m

a
d

e
 a

 m
a

n
d
a

to
ry

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
. 

  
 

 

 
T

h
e

 t
a

x
i 
d

ri
v
e

r 
C

S
E

 a
n
d

 s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 c

h
ild

re
n

 t
ra

in
in

g
 h

a
s
 h

a
d

 a
 

p
o

s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

a
n

d
 r

e
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 a
 t
a

x
i 
d

ri
v
e

r 
w

h
o

 a
tt
e

n
d

e
d
 t

h
e
 t

ra
in

in
g
 

ta
k
in

g
 a

c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 p

re
v
e

n
t 

a
n

 1
1

 y
e

a
r 

o
ld

 f
ro

m
 b

e
in

g
 e

x
p

lo
it
e

d
. 

 
 T

h
e

 t
ra

in
in

g
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
2
0

1
6

 a
n
d

 w
ill

 e
x
te

n
d

 t
h
e

 

in
v
it
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 o

th
e

r 
e
x
te

rn
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 h

o
te

ls
, 
ta

k
e

 a
w

a
y
 

o
u

tl
e

ts
, 

o
ff

-l
ic

e
n

c
e

 t
ra

d
e

 a
n
d

 i
n

te
rn

a
lly

 t
o

 

s
ta

ff
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 H

o
u

s
in

g
, 
E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
ta

l 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 N
e
ig

h
b
o
u

rh
o

o
d

 W
a

rd
e
n

s
. 

  

F
u
rt

h
e

r 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
s
: 

·
 

T
h
e

 M
is

s
in

g
 a

n
d

 E
x
p

lo
it
e

d
 G

ro
u

p
 h

a
s
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 i
ts

 

m
e
m

b
e

rs
h
ip

 t
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 a

 r
e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 

P
ro

b
a

ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
, 

C
o

u
n

ty
 D

u
rh

a
m

 S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 A

d
u

lt
s
 

B
o

a
rd

 a
n

d
 D

IS
C

 r
e
p

re
s
e

n
ti
n

g
 L

e
s
b

ia
n
, 

G
a

y
, 
B

is
e
x
u

a
l 
&

 

T
ra

n
s
g
e
n

d
e

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

·
 

D
e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 E
R

A
S

E
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 o

n
 t
h

e
 p

re
v
e

n
ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 

a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
C

S
E

 

·
 

E
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 P
o

lic
e
 h

a
v
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 j
o

in
t 

tr
a
in

in
g
 

to
 s

e
c
o

n
d
a

ry
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
, 
fu

rt
h
e

r 
e
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
 c

o
lle

g
e

s
 a

n
d

 a
 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

a
lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 t
o

 r
a
is

e
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
C

S
E

 

·
 

D
e
liv

e
re

d
 a

n
 E

R
A

S
E

 Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

’s
 C

o
n
fe

re
n

c
e

 i
n

 J
u

n
e
 

2
0

1
5

 i
n

 c
o
n

ju
n

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 S
ta

n
le

y
 A

A
P

. 
 T

h
e
 e

v
e

n
t 

s
a

w
 Y

e
a

r 
9
 

p
u

p
ils

 a
tt

e
n
d

 w
o

rk
s
h
o

p
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 b

a
s
e
d

 o
n

 C
S

E
, 

g
ro

o
m

in
g

, 

o
n

lin
e

 s
a
fe

ty
, 

a
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 r

e
la

ti
o
n

s
h

ip
s
. 
T

h
e

 y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 t

h
e

n
 p

la
n
n

e
d

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 f
e

e
d
b
a

c
k
 t

o
 t
h

e
ir
 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
  

·
 

D
e
liv

e
re

d
 a

n
 E

R
A

S
E

 p
ra

c
ti
ti
o

n
e

r 
p
ro

b
le

m
 s

o
lv

in
g
 c

o
n

fe
re

n
c
e

 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 v

o
ic

e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
ild

 v
is

ib
le

 i
n
 t

h
e

 t
e

s
ti
m

o
n

ie
s
 f

ro
m

 

v
ic

ti
m

s
 o

f 
th

e
 R

o
th

e
rh

a
m

 c
h

ild
 a

b
u

s
e

 i
n

v
e

s
ti
g
a

ti
o

n
s
  

 

·
 

A
g
re

e
d

 k
e

y
 m

e
s
s
a

g
e

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 L

S
C

B
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o
n

 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 o

n
 M

is
s
in

g
 C

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 C

h
ild

 S
e

x
u
a

l 
E

x
p

lo
it
a

ti
o

n
 

·
 

C
S

E
 a

n
d

 o
n

lin
e

 s
a
fe

ty
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

 w
it
h

 O
u

t 
o
f 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 l
e

a
d

e
rs

  

  
:

 D
o

w
n

lo
a

d
: 

C
o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a
m

 C
h

ild
 S

e
x
u

a
l 
E

x
p

lo
it
a

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
. 

 

:
 M

o
re

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

: 
F

in
d

 o
u

t 
m

o
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 a

b
o

u
t 

C
h
ild

 
S

e
x
u

a
l 
E

x
p

lo
it
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 E

R
A

S
E

 w
e

b
s
it
e

. 
 

Page 117



 

2
0
 

  T
h
e

 r
e
g
io

n
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
s
 i
ts

 c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n
t 

to
 a

d
d

re
s
s
in

g
 C

h
ild

 S
e

x
u

a
l 

E
x
p

lo
it
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 a
 N

o
rt

h
 E

a
s
t 

T
a
c
k
lin

g
 E

x
p

lo
it
a

ti
o

n
 

B
o

a
rd

. 
It

 i
n
c
lu

d
e

s
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
 f

ro
m

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
, 

th
e

 P
o

lic
e

, 

N
H

S
 E

n
g
la

n
d

 a
n

d
 a

 l
o
c
a

l 
a

c
a
d

e
m

ic
. 
D

u
rh

a
m

 i
s
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 

H
e
a

d
 o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 D
e

te
c
ti
v
e

 S
u
p

e
ri
n

te
n

d
e

n
t 
L

e
a

d
 

fo
r 

S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

. 
 

       T
h
e

 N
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
P

o
lic

e
 C

h
ie

f 
C

o
u
n

c
il 

(f
o

rm
e

rl
y
 A

C
P

O
) 

h
a

s
 b

e
g
u

n
 t
o

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 r

e
g
io

n
a

l 
p

ro
b

le
m

 p
ro

fi
le

 a
n

d
 D

u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 

c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
d

 e
x
te

n
s
iv

e
ly

 t
o

 t
h

is
. 
  

 In
 F

e
b

ru
a

ry
 2

0
1

6
 t

h
e

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n
t 

b
e

g
a

n
 a

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 e

x
e

rc
is

e
 t

o
 

u
p

d
a

te
 t
h

e
 d

e
fi
n

it
io

n
 o

f 
C

h
ild

 S
e

x
u

a
l 
E

x
p

lo
it
a

ti
o

n
. 

 T
h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 a

re
 i
n

te
n

d
e

d
 t
o

 r
e
m

o
v
e

 a
n

y
 a

m
b

ig
u

it
y
 a

n
d

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
e

c
to

rs
 p

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n

e
rs

 a
re

 w
o

rk
in

g
 t

o
 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 d

e
fi
n
it
io

n
. 

 

T
h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e
d

 d
e
fi
n
it
io

n
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
h

e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
d

 u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

is
 

fo
rm

 o
f 

a
b

u
s
e

. 
  

D
u

rh
a
m

 L
S

C
B

 a
n

d
 i
ts

 p
a

rt
n
e
rs

 h
a

v
e

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t

o
 

th
is

 c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 a

d
o

p
t 
th

e
 f

in
a

l 
n

e
w

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 d

e
fi
n
it
io

n
 o

n
c
e
 

it
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 p
u

b
lis

h
e
d

. 

P
ri
o
ri
ty

 2
 –

 I
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 E

a
rl
y
 H

e
lp

  

T
h
e

 m
a

jo
ri
ty

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 C
o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a
m

 w
ill

 

g
ro

w
 u

p
 a

n
d

 r
e
a

c
h

 t
h
e

ir
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
in

 a
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
iv

e
 e

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t.
 

H
o
w

e
v
e

r,
 s

o
m

e
 c

h
ild

re
n

, 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 t
h
e

ir
 f

a
m

ili
e
s
 f
a

c
e

 

d
if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

b
le

m
s
. 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
h

e
lp

 a
n
d

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 n

e
e

d
s
 t
o

 b
e

 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 a

t 
th

e
 e

a
rl
ie

s
t 
o

p
p
o

rt
u
n

it
y
 t

o
 s

to
p
 t

h
e
s
e

 c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

s
 f

ro
m

 

e
s
c
a

la
ti
n
g
 a

n
d

 n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

ly
 i
m

p
a

c
ti
n

g
 o

n
 t

h
e

ir
 f

u
tu

re
. 

 

 D
u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 r
e

c
o

g
n

is
e
s
 E

a
rl
y
 H

e
lp

 a
s
 a

 k
e
y
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 a
re

a
 f

o
r 

m
a

k
in

g
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
im

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n

.  
 E

a
rl
y
 H

e
lp

 h
a

s
 

b
e

e
n

 e
m

b
e

d
d
e

d
 a

s
 a

 k
e

y
 p

ri
n

c
ip

le
 i
n

 a
 b

ro
a
d

 r
a
n

g
e

 o
f 

p
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

 

w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 h
a

s
 m

a
n

y
 c

ro
s
s
 c

u
tt

in
g
 t

h
e
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 o
b

je
c
ti
v
e

s
 p

ro
m

o
te

d
 

b
y
 t

h
e

 L
S

C
B

. 
 

 E
a

rl
y
 H

e
lp

 a
n

d
 N

e
g

le
c

t 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
  

O
v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 r
e
fr

e
s
h

e
d

 a
n

d
 u

p
d

a
te

d
 t

h
e

 E
a

rl
y
 H

e
lp

 

a
n

d
 N

e
g
le

c
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
o

u
r 

o
n

g
o

in
g
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 a

n
d

 m
a

k
e

 t
h
e

 

lin
k
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 N

e
g
le

c
t 
a
n

d
 H

id
d
e

n
 H

a
rm

 (
e
.g

. 
s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

 m
is

u
s
e

) 

m
o

re
 e

x
p

lic
it
. 

 

 T
h
e

 E
a

rl
y
 H

e
lp

 a
n

d
 N

e
g
le

c
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

n
 o

v
e

ra
rc

h
in

g
 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

a
ll 

p
a

rt
n
e

rs
 i
n
 C

o
u
n
ty

 D
u

rh
a

m
. 

 I
t 

lin
k
s
 t
o

 a
 

s
u

it
e

 o
f 

m
o

re
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 t
o

o
ls

 t
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 p

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n

e
rs

 t
o

 

re
s
p

o
n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 t

o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 n

e
e
d

. 

 C
h
ild

re
n

, 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 f

a
m

ili
e
s
 h

a
v
e

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 
le

v
e

ls
 o

f 

n
e

e
d

 d
e
p

e
n

d
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e
ir
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
c
ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 q
u

it
e

 o
ft

e
n

 

th
e

s
e
 c

h
a
n

g
e

 o
v
e

r 
ti
m

e
 w

it
h

 s
o

m
e
 f

a
m

ili
e
s
 m

o
v
in

g
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

u
n

iv
e

rs
a
l,
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 a

n
d
 s

p
e

c
ia

lis
t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

  

 

Page 118



 

2
1
 

 C
h
ild

re
n

 c
a
n

 b
e

 h
e

lp
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

re
e

 b
ro

a
d
 w

a
y
s
: 

 

1
. 

P
re

v
e

n
ti

o
n

  
  

  
  

  
S

o
 t
h

a
t 
p

ro
b

le
m

s
 d

o
 n

o
t 
a

ri
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 

p
la

c
e

  

2
. 

E
a

rl
y
 I

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

  
  

  
  

  
 S

o
 t
h

a
t 
p

ro
b

le
m

s
 a

re
 c

u
t 
o
ff

 a
t 
a

n
 

e
a

rl
y
 s

ta
g
e

 

3
. 

P
ro

te
c

ti
o

n
/ 
T

a
rg

e
te

d
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 /

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
  

  
  

  
  

S
o

 t
h
a

t 
s
o

m
e
th

in
g
 i
s
 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 
n
e

e
d

s
 o

r 
p

ro
b

le
m

s
 t
h

a
t 
a

re
 s

e
ri
o

u
s
 

o
r 

w
ill

 e
n

d
u

re
. 

 A
t 

a
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
 t

h
re

e
 s

ta
g
e

s
, 

th
e

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

 n
e
e

d
 f
o

r 
s
o
m

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

h
e
lp

 

w
h

ic
h
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
 e

q
u

ip
p

e
d
 a

n
d

 a
b

le
 t

o
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
s
e
 

c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 n

e
e
d

s
 a

n
d

 d
e

m
a
n

d
s
. 

 C
e
n

tr
a
l 
to

 t
h

is
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 i
s
 a

 f
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d
e

n
c
e

 f
o

r 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
, 

s
u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 a

n
d

 b
u

ild
in

g
 r

e
s
ili

e
n

c
e

. 
It
 i
s
 a

 

w
a

y
 o

f 
th

in
k
in

g
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
in

g
 t

h
a

t 
v
ie

w
s
 c

h
ild

re
n

, 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 

th
e

ir
 f

a
m

ili
e
s
 a

s
 e

q
u

a
l 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 w

it
h

 a
n
 e

m
p
h
a

s
is

 o
n

 d
o

in
g
 ‘
w

it
h

’ 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 d

o
in

g
 ‘
to

’.
 

           

D
u

rh
a

m
 C

o
n

ti
n

u
u

m
 o

f 
N

e
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 0

-1
9

 L
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
N

e
e

d
  

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 o

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 r

e
fr

e
s
h

e
d

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

h
e

 D
u
rh

a
m

 C
o

n
ti
n
u

u
m

 o
f 

N
e
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 0

-1
9

 L
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

N
e
e

d
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
ly

 r
e

w
o

rk
e
d

 

a
n

d
 p

u
b

lis
h
e

d
. 
  

 T
h
e

 c
o
n

ti
n

u
u

m
 o

f 
n

e
e

d
 i
s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 t
o

 r
e
fl
e

c
t 

th
e

 f
a

c
t 

th
a

t 
c
h

ild
re

n
 

a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
’s

 n
e
e

d
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

o
s
e

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 f
a

m
ili

e
s
 m

a
y
 c

h
a

n
g
e

 

o
v
e

r 
ti
m

e
. 

R
e
g
a

rd
le

s
s
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 ‘
s
te

p
’ 
c
h

ild
re

n
, 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 a

n
d

 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 a

re
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 o
n

 t
h
e

y
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 a
t 
th

e
 e

a
rl
ie

s
t 

o
p

p
o

rt
u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 c
o
n

ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 b
e

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 r
e
le

v
a

n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

s
 

th
e

y
 m

o
v
e

 u
p

 a
n

d
 d

o
w

n
 t

h
e

 s
ta

ir
c
a

s
e

. 
  

:
 D

o
w

n
lo

a
d

: 
E

a
rl
y
 H

e
lp

 a
n

d
 N

e
g
le

c
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
. 

 

Page 119



 

2
2
 

 T
h
e

 0
-1

9
 t
h

re
s
h

o
ld

 i
n
d

ic
a

to
rs

 a
re

 d
e

s
ig

n
e
d

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 p

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e

rs
 

w
it
h

 a
n

 o
v
e

ra
rc

h
in

g
 v

ie
w

 o
n

 w
h

a
t 

le
v
e

l 
o

f 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 a

 

fa
m

ily
 m

ig
h

t 
n

e
e

d
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

 q
u

ic
k
-r

e
fe

re
n
c
e

 g
u

id
e

 t
o

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

ls
 i
n
 t
h

e
ir
 d

e
c
is

io
n

-m
a

k
in

g
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
n

d
u

c
ti
n

g
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
, 

re
fe

rr
in

g
 t

o
 o

th
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 t

h
e
 l
ik

e
ly

 

th
re

s
h

o
ld

s
 f

o
r 

h
ig

h
e

r 
le

v
e

ls
 o

f 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
. 

 T
h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

th
e
 E

a
rl
y
 H

e
lp

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 c

a
n
 b

e
 s

e
e

n
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 a
 

ra
n

g
e

 o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n

 C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
, 

O
n

e
 P

o
in

t,
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 F

ir
s
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 c
o
n

ti
n
u

e
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 M
u
lt
i-

A
g
e

n
c
y
 

S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 H

u
b

 (
M

A
S

H
).

  

 T
h
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
T

ro
u
b

le
d

 F
a
m

ili
e
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 (

k
n
o

w
n

 a
s
 S

tr
o
n

g
e

r 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
 i
n
 C

o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a

m
) 

h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 e
x
te

n
d
e

d
 f

o
r 

a
 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
fi
v
e

 

y
e

a
rs

 f
ro

m
 2

0
1

5
/1

6
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 r
e
a

c
h

 a
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
4

0
0

,0
0
0

 f
a

m
ili

e
s
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 E

n
g
la

n
d

. 

 

F
o
r 

D
u

rh
a
m

 t
h

is
 m

e
a

n
s
 a

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
4

,3
6

0
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

e
d

. 
T

h
e

 e
x
p

a
n

d
e
d

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 t
o

 r
e
a

c
h
 o

u
t 

to
 f

a
m

ili
e
s
 w

it
h

 

a
 b

ro
a
d

 r
a
n

g
e

 o
f 

p
ro

b
le

m
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

o
o

r 
s
c
h

o
o

l 

a
tt

e
n

d
a
n

c
e

, 
u

n
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n
t,

 y
o

u
th

 c
ri
m

e
, 

d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 a

b
u

s
e

, 
s
u
b

s
ta

n
c
e

 m
is

u
s
e

 a
n

d
 m

e
n

ta
l 

h
e

a
lt
h

 p
ro

b
le

m
s
. 
W

e
 k

n
o

w
 t

h
e

s
e

 a
re

 i
n
d

ic
a
to

rs
 o

f 

n
e

g
le

c
t 

a
n
d

 D
u

rh
a

m
 L

S
C

B
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 c
h
a

lle
n

g
e

 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

th
e

 S
tr

o
n

g
e

r 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 
 

   

E
a

rl
y
 H

e
lp

 F
o

ru
m

s
 

T
h
e

 E
a

rl
y
 H

e
lp

 F
o
ru

m
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 w
e

ll 
e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ty

 

a
n

d
 i
s
 u

s
e

d
 a

s
 a

 l
in

e
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti
o
n

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 L

S
C

B
 a

n
d

 

fr
o
n

tl
in

e
 p

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n

e
rs

. 
 I

t 
h

a
s
 f

a
c
ili

ta
te

d
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 

c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
v
e

 w
o

rk
in

g
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

in
g
 g

a
p

s
 i
n
 

E
a

rl
y
 H

e
lp

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
. 

  

 T
h
e

 f
o

ru
m

s
 h

ig
h

lig
h

t 
a
n

d
 p

ro
b

le
m

 s
o

lv
e

 o
n

g
o
in

g
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

im
p

le
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 E
a

rl
y
 H

e
lp

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

. 
A

ll 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 n

o
t 
m

it
ig

a
te

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e

 E
a

rl
y
 

H
e
lp

 F
o
ru

m
s
 a

re
 e

s
c
a

la
te

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 a
tt

e
n

ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 E

a
rl
y
 H

e
lp

 a
n
d

 

N
e
g
le

c
t 

S
u

b
 G

ro
u

p
. 

O
n

g
o

in
g
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
w

it
h

 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 a
d
u

lt
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

 T
h
e

 f
o

ru
m

s
 h

a
v
e

 c
o
n

d
u

c
te

d
 t

h
re

e
 m

u
lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 a

u
d

it
s
 c

o
v
e

ri
n

g
 

a
tt

e
n

d
a
n

c
e

 a
t 
T

e
a

m
 A

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 F

a
m

ily
; 

c
h

ro
n
o

lo
g
ie

s
; 

a
n
d

 s
c
h
o

o
l 

re
fe

rr
a

ls
 i
n
 t

o
 F

ir
s
t 

C
o
n
ta

c
t.

  
 

 F
o
ru

m
s
 h

a
v
e

 a
ls

o
 u

n
d
e

rt
a
k
e

n
 a

n
 a

n
n

u
a

l 
jo

in
t 
d

e
v
e

lo
p
m

e
n
t 

e
v
e

n
t 

fo
c
u

s
s
e
d

 o
n

 S
a

n
d

s
to

ri
e

s
. 

(S
a
n

d
s
to

ri
e

s
 b

ri
n

g
 i
n

s
ig

h
t 

a
n

d
 

u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 o

n
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 n
e

g
le

c
t 

a
n

d
 m

a
lt
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 s

ta
ff

 w
it
h

 a
 u

n
iq

u
e

 v
ie

w
 o

f 
fa

m
ily

 l
iv

e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 m

a
y
 

b
e

 d
a

m
a

g
in

g
 t

o
 c

h
ild

re
n

).
  
 

 F
u
rt

h
e

rm
o

re
 t
h

e
 f
o

ru
m

s
 s

h
o

w
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
in

 a
d
d
re

s
s
in

g
 g

a
p

s
 i
n

 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 b

y
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 a

n
d

 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 s

e
c
to

r 
a
n
d

 f
a

c
ili

ta
ti
n

g
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 t
h
e

s
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

  
:

 D
o

w
n

lo
a

d
: 

0
-1

9
 L

e
v
e

l 
o

f 
N

e
e

d
.  

:
 M

o
re

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

: 
F

in
d

 o
u

t 
m

o
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 S

tr
o
n

g
e

r 
F

a
m

ili
e
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 

Page 120



 

2
3
 

 P
ri
o
ri
ty

 3
 –

 R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 N

e
g
le

c
t 

  

T
h
e

 g
re

a
te

s
t 

s
in

g
le

 c
a
u

s
e

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 n

e
e

d
in

g
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
a

re
 i
n

 

C
o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a
m

 i
s
 n

e
g
le

c
t.

  
P

ro
v
is

io
n

a
l 

fi
g

u
re

s
 s

h
o

w
 t

h
a

t 
4

6
6

 

c
h

ild
re

n
 b

e
c
a
m

e
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 a

 C
h

ild
 P

ro
te

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n

 i
n
 2

0
1

5
/1

6
 a

n
d
 

2
3

0
 w

e
re

 u
n

d
e

r 
fi
v
e

 y
e

a
rs

 o
ld

 w
h

e
n

 t
h

e
y
 b

e
c
a

m
e
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 a

 C
h

ild
 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
. 

  
N

e
g
le

c
t 

is
 a

 l
o

n
g
 t

e
rm

, 
c
h

ro
n

ic
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

h
a

rm
 t

o
 

c
h

ild
re

n
, 
a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 o

ff
e

ri
n

g
 E

a
rl
y
 H

e
lp

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 a

b
le

 t
o
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

p
o

s
it
iv

e
ly

 o
n

 o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

th
is

 g
ro

u
p

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 –

 e
it
h
e

r 
in

 r
e
d
u

c
in

g
 

le
v
e

ls
 o

f 
n

e
g
le

c
t 

o
r 

in
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 d

e
la

y
 t

h
a

t 
m

a
n

y
 c

h
ild

re
n

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e
 

b
e
fo

re
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 a

re
 m

a
d

e
 a

b
o
u

t 
‘g

o
o
d

 e
n

o
u

g
h

’ 
p

a
re

n
ti
n

g
. 

 P
a

re
n

ta
l 
is

s
u
e

s
 o

f 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 a

b
u

s
e

, 
m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

, 
a

lc
o
h

o
l 
m

is
u
s
e

 

a
n

d
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
c
e

 m
is

u
s
e

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 b
e

 k
e

y
 i
s
s
u
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 c

a
u

s
e

 

n
e

g
le

c
t 

in
 C

o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a

m
 a

n
d
 a

re
 k

n
o

w
n

 c
o

lle
c
ti
v
e

ly
 a

s
 H

id
d

e
n

 

H
a
rm

 f
a

c
to

rs
. 

  

 D
u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
e
s
 

to
 E

a
rl
y
 H

e
lp

 a
n
d

 N
e

g
le

c
t.

 I
n

 2
0

1
5
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 s
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 i
n

tr
o
d
u

c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 a

b
u

s
e

 o
u

tr
e
a
c
h

 w
o

rk
e
rs

 i
n

 t
h

e
 O

n
e

 P
o

in
t 
a

n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 F

ir
s
t 

te
a
m

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 M

u
lt
i-
A

g
e

n
c
y
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 H

u
b

. 
 W

e
 h

a
v
e

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

a
n

 a
u

d
it
 o

f 
a

g
e

n
c
y
 c

o
o
p

e
ra

ti
o
n

 w
h

e
re

 s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

 m
is

u
s
e

 i
s
 i
d

e
n
ti
fi
e
d

 

a
s
 a

 p
a

re
n
ta

l 
ri
s
k
 f

a
c
to

r 
c
o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
n

g
 t
o

 a
 C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n
. 

 D
ru

g
 

a
n

d
 a

lc
o
h
o

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 a
n

d
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 a

b
u

s
e

 o
u

tr
e
a

c
h

 w
o

rk
e
rs

 a
re

 n
o

w
 

e
n

g
a

g
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 E

a
rl
y
 H

e
lp

 F
o
ru

m
s
. 

 

 P
la

n
s
 f
o

r 
2
0
1

6
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
 t
h

e
 r

o
le

 o
u
t 

in
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
o
f 

O
p
e

ra
ti
o
n

 

E
n

c
o
m

p
a

s
s
 –

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 e

a
rl
y
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
 o

f 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
o

 

e
n

a
b

le
 t

h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 o
f 

ti
m

e
ly

 c
a

re
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p
o
rt

 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

h
ild

. 
 I
f 

a
 

d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 i
n

c
id

e
n

t 
o

c
c
u

rr
e

d
 t

h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 e

v
e

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 a
 c

h
ild

 w
a

s
 i
n

 

th
e

 h
o

u
s
e

, 
th

e
 p

o
lic

e
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 
a

 n
o

m
in

a
te

d
 k

e
y
 a

d
u

lt
 a

t 
th

e
 s

c
h
o

o
l 

th
e

 c
h

ild
 a

tt
e

n
d

s
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 t
h
e

 s
ta

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
h

o
o
l 
d

a
y
. 

A
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 w

ill
 t

h
e

n
 b

e
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 f
o

r 
th

a
t 

c
h

ild
. 

 

 W
e
 h

a
v
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 t
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

s
p
e

c
ia

lis
t 
tr

a
in

in
g
 f

o
r 

m
u

lt
i-

a
g
e

n
c
y
 p

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n

e
rs

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
in

g
 c

h
ild

re
n

 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 a
s
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 o

r 

s
u

b
je

c
t 
to

 n
e

g
le

c
t 

b
y
 t

h
e

ir
 p

a
re

n
t/

c
a

re
rs

. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 u
s
e

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 

n
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
g
u

id
a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 l
e
s
s
o

n
s
 l
e
a

rn
e
d

 f
ro

m
 S

e
ri
o

u
s
 C

a
s
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
s
 

to
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h

is
 t
ra

in
in

g
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
a

n
d

 c
o

v
e

r 
E

a
rl
y
 H

e
lp

, 
c
h

ild
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 l
o

n
g
 t

e
rm

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

N
e
g
le

c
t 

o
n

 c
h

ild
re

n
. 
 

 T
o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
e

d
 E

a
rl
y
 H

e
lp

 a
n

d
 N

e
g
le

c
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d
 a

 N
e

g
le

c
t 
P

ra
c
ti
c
e
 G

u
id

a
n

c
e

 t
o
 a

s
s
is

t 
p

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n
e

rs
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 e
a

rl
y
 s

ig
n

s
 o

f 
n
e

g
le

c
t 

a
n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 m
o

re
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 a

n
d

 t
im

e
ly

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 a

b
o

u
t 

n
e

g
le

c
t.

  
T

h
e

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 s
e

e
k
s
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
p

ra
c
ti
ti
o

n
e

rs
 

fo
c
u

s
 t
h

e
ir
 a

tt
e

n
ti
o

n
 o

n
: 

·
 

p
a

tt
e

rn
s
 o

f 
p

a
re

n
ta

l 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
th

is
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

m
a

y
 b

e
 h

a
v
in

g
 o

n
 t

h
e

 c
h

ild
’s

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l,
 e

m
o

ti
o
n

a
l,
 

p
s
y
c
h

o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
a

n
d

 b
e

h
a

v
io

u
ra

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 w
e

llb
e

in
g
 

·
 

re
d

u
c
in

g
 t

h
e

 e
ff

e
c
t 
o
f 

g
ro

w
in

g
 u

p
 i
n

 p
o

v
e

rt
y
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
e

s
s
in

g
 a

 

fa
m

ily
’s

 e
c
o

n
o
m

ic
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 

·
 

th
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
n

 t
h
e

 c
h

ild
’s

 a
tt

a
c
h

m
e

n
t 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
rs

 

·
 

th
e

 c
h

ild
’s

 d
a

y
 t

o
 d

a
y
 l
iv

e
d

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 o
v
e

r 
ti
m

e
  

T
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 t
h

is
 w

o
rk

 a
 n

e
w

 H
o

m
e

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

T
o

o
l 

w
ill

 b
e

 l
a

u
n

c
h

e
d
 i
n

 2
0

1
6

. 
 

  
:

 D
o

w
n

lo
a

d
: 

N
e
g
le

c
t 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e
 G

u
id

a
n

c
e

 a
n
d

 t
h
e

 S
in

g
le

 
A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
P

ro
c
e
d

u
re

s
. 

Page 121



 

2
4
 

 C
o
n
tr

ib
u
to

ry
 f

a
c
to

rs
 o

f 
n
e
g
le

c
t 

 A
lc

o
h

o
l 

C
h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 p
o

o
r 

o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 d

u
e
 t

o
 

p
a

re
n

ta
l 
a

lc
o
h

o
l 
m

is
u
s
e

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 f
o

e
ta

l 
a

lc
o
h
o

l 
s
y
n

d
ro

m
e

, 
s
c
h

o
o

l 

a
tt

a
in

m
e
n

t,
 i
n
fe

ri
o

r 
h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n
d

 w
e

llb
e

in
g
, 

n
e

g
le

c
t,

 g
re

a
te

r 
lik

e
lih

o
o

d
 

o
f 

e
x
p

o
s
u

re
 t

o
 c

ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 a
lc

o
h

o
l-

re
la

te
d

 d
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 v

io
le

n
c
e

. 
 B

a
la

n
c
e

 

(t
h
e

 N
o

rt
h
 E

a
s
t 
A

lc
o
h
o
l 
O

ff
ic

e
) 

e
s
ti
m

a
te

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 

liv
in

g
 w

it
h

 a
 p

a
re

n
t(

s
) 

w
h

o
 d

ri
n

k
 a

lc
o
h
o

l 
a

t 
h

ig
h

 r
is

k
 l
e

v
e

ls
 i
n
 C

o
u

n
ty

 

D
u
rh

a
m

 i
s
 4

9
,3

5
3

. 

 

A
lc

o
h

o
l 
is

 a
 c

o
m

m
o

n
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
ili

ty
 f

a
c
to

r 
in

 

in
c
id

e
n

c
e
 o

f 
C

h
ild

 S
e

x
u

a
l 
E

x
p

lo
it
a

ti
o
n

 a
n

d
 

g
ro

o
m

in
g
. 

  

 T
h
e

 a
m

o
u

n
t 
o
f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 d

ri
n

k
in

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 U

K
 

is
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 h

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
o

s
e

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

h
o

 

d
o

 d
ri
n

k
 a

lc
o
h
o

l 
a

re
 d

ri
n

k
in

g
 m

o
re

 i
n

 v
o

lu
m

e
 

a
n

d
 m

o
re

 f
re

q
u

e
n

tl
y
. 

  

  

D
u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 h
a

s
 s

tr
o
n

g
 l
in

k
s
 t

o
 t

h
e
 A

lc
o
h
o
l 
H

a
rm

 R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 G

ro
u
p

 

a
n

d
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
d

 t
o

 t
h
e

 c
lo

s
e

r 
w

o
rk

in
g
 o

f 
tr

e
a

tm
e
n

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

E
a

rl
y
 H

e
lp

 a
n

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 c

h
ild

re
n
, 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
. 
  

 O
v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

a
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
’s

 w
o

rk
e
r 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d

 i
n

to
 

th
e

 M
u

lt
i-
A

g
e

n
c
y
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 H

u
b

 (
M

A
S

H
).

 

   

D
o

m
e
s

ti
c
 A

b
u

s
e

 

D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 a

b
u

s
e

 i
s
 t

h
e

 m
a

in
 p

a
re

n
ta

l 

ri
s
k
 f

a
c
to

r 
le

a
d

in
g
 t

o
 a

 C
h
ild

 

P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
. 

In
 C

o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a

m
 

th
e

 l
e

v
e

ls
 o

f 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 a

b
u

s
e

 r
e
la

te
d

 

in
c
id

e
n

ts
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 t
h
e

 p
o

lic
e
 h

a
v
e

 

s
e

e
n

 a
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
o

u
s
 b

u
t 
s
m

a
ll 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 s
in

c
e

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

. 
 

D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 a

b
u

s
e

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
s
 t
o

 b
e

 u
n

d
e

r-
re

p
o

rt
e
d

. 
  

 H
a
rb

o
u

r 
is

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

d
 b

y
 D

u
rh

a
m

 C
o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 a

 

h
o

lis
ti
c
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 f

o
c
u

s
s
e
d

 o
n
 e

a
rl
y
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
. 
 I

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
, 
d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

a
b

u
s
e

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 w
o

rk
e
rs

 a
re

 i
n

te
g
ra

te
d

 i
n
to

 F
a
m

ili
e
s
 F

ir
s
t 

te
a
m

s
 a

n
d
 

th
e

 M
u

lt
i-
A

g
e

n
c
y
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 H

u
b

 (
M

A
S

H
).

  

 D
u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 h
a

s
 l
in

k
s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a
m

 D
o
m

e
s
ti
c
 A

b
u

s
e

 a
n
d

 

S
e

x
u

a
l 
V

io
le

n
c
e

 E
x
e

c
u
ti
v
e

 G
ro

u
p

 (
D

A
S

V
E

G
) 

a
n

d
 w

e
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 

p
ro

m
o
te

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
 f
o

r 
d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 a

b
u

s
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 c

h
ild

re
n
, 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 f

a
m

ili
e
s
. 

 O
u

r 
L

S
C

B
 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n

 r
e
la

ti
o
n

 t
o

 d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 a

b
u

s
e

 

fo
c
u

s
s
e

s
 o

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 o

f 
ri
s
k
 f

a
c
to

rs
; 
e

q
u

ip
p

in
g
 

p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n
e

rs
 w

it
h

 k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 a
n
d

 s
k
ill

s
 t

o
 u

n
d
e

rt
a
k
e

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 r
is

k
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 e
n

s
u

ri
n
g
 p

ra
c
ti
ti
o
n

e
rs

 a
re

 c
le

a
r 

a
b
o

u
t 
re

fe
rr

a
l 

p
a

th
w

a
y
s
 a

n
d

 k
e

y
 p

o
in

ts
 o

f 
c
o

n
ta

c
t.

  
D

u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 S

a
fe

 

D
u
rh

a
m

 P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

 d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 a

b
u

s
e

 t
ra

in
in

g
 w

e
re

 a
lig

n
e

d
 i
n
 2

0
1

5
 

w
it
h

 a
 m

u
lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 s

e
t 
o
f 

tr
a
in

e
rs

 n
o

w
 d

e
liv

e
ri

n
g
 t

h
e

 t
ra

in
in

g
. 

  

   
 

:
 M

o
re

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

: 
F

in
d

 o
u

t 
m

o
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 a

lc
o
h

o
l 
in

 
C

o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a
m

. 
 

:
 M

o
re

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

: 
F

in
d

 o
u

t 
m

o
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 

a
b

u
s
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 i
n
 C

o
u
n

ty
 D

u
rh

a
m

.  

Page 122



 

2
5
 

 P
ri
o
ri
ty

 4
 –

 R
e
d
u
c
in

g
 s

e
lf
-h

a
rm

 a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

’s
 s

e
lf
-e

s
te

e
m

  

S
e

lf
 h

a
rm

 i
s
 a

 k
e

y
 i
s
s
u
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 

c
o

u
n

ty
. 
T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

1
0

-2
4
 y

e
a

r 

o
ld

s
 a

d
m

it
te

d
 t
o

 h
o

s
p

it
a

l 
d

u
e

 t
o
 s

e
lf
-

h
a

rm
 (

5
2

3
.5

 p
e

r 
1
0
0

,0
0

0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
) 

is
 h

ig
h

e
r 

th
a
n

 t
h
e

 E
n

g
la

n
d

 a
v
e

ra
g
e

 

(4
1

2
.1

 p
e

r 
1

0
0
,0

0
0

).
  

  

In
 t

h
e

 2
0

1
4

/1
5
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 w
e

 r
e
p

o
rt

e
d

 a
s
 a

 d
ir
e

c
t 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

lis
te

n
in

g
 t

o
 t
h

e
s
e
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
h

e
 i
n

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
lf
-h

a
rm

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 

fo
r 

th
e
 L

S
C

B
. 

 W
e
 m

a
d

e
 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u
n

ty
 D

u
rh

a
m

 H
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
 B

o
a

rd
’s

 w
o

rk
 t
o

 t
a

c
k
le

 t
h

e
 c

a
u

s
a

l 
fa

c
to

rs
 f
o

r 
s
u

ic
id

e
, 

a
tt

e
m

p
te

d
 s

u
ic

id
e

 a
n
d

 s
e

lf
-h

a
rm

. 
  

 T
h

is
 r

e
s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 s
o
m

e
 i
n

n
o

v
a

te
d
 w

o
rk

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

s
p

e
a

k
in

g
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

ir
 o

w
n

 p
e

rs
o
n

a
l 
e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

s
 o

f 
s
e

lf
-h

a
rm

 a
t 
a

 

D
u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 L
e

s
s
o

n
s
 L

e
a

rn
e

d
 e

v
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 t
h
e

 C
o

u
n

ty
 D

u
rh

a
m

 

S
u

ic
id

e
 P

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 C

o
n
fe

re
n

c
e

. 

 A
 S

e
lf
-H

a
rm

 S
u
b

 G
ro

u
p

 h
a

s
 n

o
w

 b
e

e
n

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 s

e
lf
-

h
a

rm
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 p
a

th
w

a
y
, 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 g
u

id
a

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 t

ra
in

in
g
 p

a
c
k
a

g
e

 f
o

r 

p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n
e

rs
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

n
e

e
d

 t
h

re
s
h

o
ld

 w
o

rk
 d

o
n
e

 f
o

r 

E
a

rl
y
 H

e
lp

. 
 

 T
h
e

 p
a

th
w

a
y
 i
s
 a

im
e

d
 a

t 
p

ra
c
ti
ti
o

n
e

rs
 a

n
d
 t

a
c
k
le

s
 t

h
e
 c

a
u

s
a

l 
fa

c
to

rs
 

fo
r 

s
u
ic

id
e

, 
a

tt
e
m

p
te

d
 s

u
ic

id
e

 a
n

d
 s

e
lf
-h

a
rm

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

. 

 T
h
e

 C
h
ild

 a
n

d
 A

d
o

le
s
c
e

n
t 

M
e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 (

C
A

M
H

S
) 

h
a

s
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 w

ill
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 a
 S

in
g
le

 P
o

in
t 
o
f 

A
c
c
e

s
s
 

in
 2

0
1

6
/1

7
. 

 W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
 w

it
h

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h

 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 o

n
 

p
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e

 q
u

a
lit

y
 o

f 
m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 c
a

re
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e

 

c
o

u
n

ty
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n

 

a
n

d
 Y

o
u
n

g
 P

e
o
p

le
’s

 M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

, 
E

m
o

ti
o
n

a
l 
W

e
llb

e
in

g
 a

n
d

 

R
e
s
ili

e
n

c
e

 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 a
c
ro

s
s
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
. 

  
 

:
 M

o
re

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

: 
F

in
d

 o
u

t 
m

o
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 a

b
o

u
t 

C
o
u
n

ty
 

D
u
rh

a
m

 S
u

ic
id

e
 P

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
. 

 

Page 123



 

2
6
 

 P
ri
o
ri
ty

 5
 –

 I
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 v

o
ic

e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
ild

  

D
u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 a
c
ti
v
e

ly
 e

n
g
a

g
e

s
 a

n
d

 s
e
e

k
s
 t
h
e

 v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d
 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
n
 w

id
e

r 
s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 i
s
s
u

e
s
. 
 

 W
e
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
d
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 w

a
y
 w

e
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

, 

th
ro

u
g
h

o
u

t 
2
0

1
5

/1
6

 a
n
d

 w
o

rk
e
d

 c
o

lla
b
o

ra
ti
v
e

ly
 w

it
h

 ‘
In

v
e

s
ti
n

g
 I

n
 

C
h
ild

re
n

’ 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

h
ild

re
n

 a
n
d

 Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

’s
 R

e
fe

re
n

c
e

 G
ro

u
p

. 
 

 M
e

m
b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
 B

o
a

rd
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
d

u
c
te

d
 c

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 v

is
it
s
 

a
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 t
h

e
s
e
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 t
o

 s
e
e

 f
ir
s
t-

h
a
n
d

 t
h
e

ir
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
. 

T
h
e

 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 m
e

e
t 
w

it
h

 m
e
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
 o

n
 a

 r
e
g
u

la
r 

b
a

s
is

 

a
n

d
 t
h

e
ir
 v

ie
w

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 t
a

k
e
n

 i
n

to
 a

c
c
o

u
n
t 
in

 t
h
e

 L
S

C
B

 w
o

rk
 p

la
n
 

a
n

d
 o

u
r 

p
ri
o
ri
ty

 s
e

tt
in

g
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n

ts
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 t

h
e

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
d
 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 

o
f 

th
e

 s
e

lf
-h

a
rm

 p
ri
o

ri
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
 2

0
1

5
-1

6
.  

 D
u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 i
s
 

s
c
h

e
d
u

le
d

 t
o

 r
e
c
e

iv
e

 I
n

v
e

s
ti
n

g
 i
n

 C
h

ild
re

n
 s

ta
tu

s
 i
n
 J

u
n
e

 2
0

1
6
. 

  

 

T
h
e

 S
tu

d
e

n
t 
V

o
ic

e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 w

a
s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 C
h

ild
re

n
 &

 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

 a
n

d
 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

 w
it
h

 S
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
o

 

s
e

e
k
 t
h

e
 v

ie
w

s
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 C
o

u
n

ty
 D

u
rh

a
m

 o
n

 a
 

ra
n

g
e

 o
f 

re
le

v
a

n
t 
is

s
u

e
s
 t

o
 a

s
s
is

t 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

s
 a

n
d
 S

c
h
o

o
ls

 c
re

a
te

 

a
n

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 b
a

s
e

 t
o

 a
s
s
is

t 
fu

tu
re

 p
la

n
n

in
g
, 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
a
n
d

 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 
  

 T
h
e

 s
u

rv
e

y
 w

a
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 e

le
c
tr

o
n

ic
a
lly

 b
y
 s

tu
d

e
n

ts
 i
n
 Y

e
a

rs
 7

, 
9

 

a
n

d
 1

1
, 
a

n
d

 a
ls

o
 Y

e
a

r 
1

3
 w

h
e

re
 s

c
h
o

o
ls

 h
a

v
e

 a
 s

ix
th

 f
o

rm
, 

w
it
h

 

re
s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 f

ro
m

 8
,1

4
8

 i
n
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 i
n
 t

o
ta

l.
 

 T
h
e

 s
u

rv
e

y
 h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d
 i
s
s
u
e

s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
: 

·
 

O
v
e

r 
1
0

%
 o

f 
s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 t
h

e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
 a

s
 a

 Y
o

u
n

g
 C

a
re

r 

T
h

is
 r

e
in

fo
rc

e
s
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

c
e
 o

f 
th

e
 Y

o
u

n
g
 C

a
re

rs
 C

h
a

rt
e
r 

in
 

C
o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a
m

 a
n

d
 t
h
e

 n
e
e

d
 f
o

r 
s
c
h
o

o
ls

 t
o

 s
a
fe

ly
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 

a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 y

o
u

n
g
 c

a
re

rs
 i
n

 t
h
e

ir
 s

c
h

o
o

l 

·
 

3
3

%
 o

f 
s
tu

d
e
n

ts
 s

ta
te

d
 t

h
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 b
u

lli
e
d

. 
P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a

lt
h

 

a
n

d
 E

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 a
re

 w
o

rk
in

g
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 o

n
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
ili

e
n

c
e

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
o

 t
a

c
k
le

 b
u

lly
in

g
 

·
 

O
v
e

r 
h
a

lf
 o

f 
th

e
 3

6
9

 s
tu

d
e
n

ts
 w

h
o

 r
e
s
p
o

n
d
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 

u
n

h
a

p
p

y
 s

ta
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
y
 h

a
v
e

 n
o

-o
n
e

 t
o
 t

a
lk

 t
o

 w
h

e
n

 f
e

e
lin

g
 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
. 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 o
n

 a
 w

h
o

le
 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 m
e
n

ta
l 
w

e
llb

e
in

g
 

·
 

2
3

.3
%

 o
f 

Y
e
a

r 
1

1
 s

tu
d
e

n
ts

 r
e
s
p

o
n
d

e
d

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
y
 d

ri
n

k
 ‘
d

u
ri
n

g
 

th
e

 w
e

e
k
’,
 ‘
m

o
s
t 

w
e

e
k
e

n
d

s
’,
 ‘
e

v
e

ry
 w

e
e

k
e

n
d

’ 
o

r 
‘e

v
e

ry
 d

a
y
’.
  

T
h
e

 A
lc

o
h

o
l 
H

a
rm

 R
e

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 a

 f
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 t
h

e
 

A
lt
o

g
e

th
e

r 
B

e
tt
e

r 
fo

r 
C

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u
n

g
 P

e
o
p

le
 t

h
e

m
e

 a
n

d
 

Page 124



 

2
7
 

 

s
p

e
c
if
ic

 a
c
ti
o
n

s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 D

ru
g
 a

n
d

 A
lc

o
h

o
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 i
n
 t

a
c
k
in

g
 d

ru
g
 a

n
d
 a

lc
o
h
o

l 
is

s
u
e

s
 

W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 u

s
e
 t

h
e

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 b
a

s
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 S
tu

d
e

n
t 

V
o

ic
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 t

o
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 p
a

rt
n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 s
u
p

p
o

rt
 t
h

e
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
o

u
s
 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

. 

 W
e
 h

a
v
e

 e
n

g
a

g
e

d
 w

it
h
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 w

a
n

t 
to

 s
h

a
re

 t
h
e

ir
 f

ir
s
t-

h
a

n
d

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e
. 
T

h
e

y
 h

a
v
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u

r 

L
e

s
s
o
n

 L
e
a

rn
e
d

 e
v
e

n
ts

, 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

ty
 D

u
rh

a
m

 S
u

ic
id

e
 P

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 

C
o
n
fe

re
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 E
R

A
S

E
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 p
ro

b
le

m
 s

o
lv

in
g
 

c
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

. 
  

   

“I
 w

a
n

te
d

 t
o
 e

x
p

re
s
s
 m

y
 o

w
n

 h
e

a
rt

fe
lt
 a

p
p

re
c
ia

ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
th

e
 r

a
re

 
o

p
p
o

rt
u
n

it
y
, 

a
s
 a

 p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l,
 t
o

 h
e

a
r 

th
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 o

f 
a

c
tu

a
l 
p

e
o

p
le

 
w

h
o

s
e

 l
iv

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n
 s

o
 m

a
s
s
iv

e
ly

 i
m

p
a

c
te

d
 u

p
o

n
.”

 

T
h
e

 r
e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
th

is
 i
n
v
o

lv
e
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n
d

 t
h

e
ir
 o

p
e

n
n

e
s
s
 t
o

 

s
h

a
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 v
e

ry
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

. 
 F

e
e
d

b
a

c
k
 f

ro
m

 p
ra

c
ti
ti
o

n
e

rs
 h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 v
e

ry
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

n
d

 h
a

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 t
h

e
 l
e
a

rn
in

g
 o

f 
th

o
s
e
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
. 

 

“B
o

th
 a

s
 a

 p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
a

n
d
 a

 p
a

re
n
t,

 t
h

e
ir
 s

to
ri
e

s
 p

re
y
e

d
 o

n
 m

y
 

m
in

d
 f
o

r 
th

e
 r

e
s
t 
o
f 

th
e
 d

a
y
. 

T
h
e

y
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 a
 m

o
re

 t
h

o
u

g
h

t 
p

ro
v
o

k
in

g
 

h
u

m
a

n
 e

le
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 a

 d
e

e
p

e
r 

c
o
m

p
re

h
e

n
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 f

a
r 

re
a

c
h

in
g
 

e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 f
o

r 
th

a
t 

I 
fe

e
l 
v
e

ry
 p

ri
v
ile

g
e

d
.”

 
  W

e
 h

a
v
e

 a
c
ti
v
e

ly
 e

n
g
a

g
e

d
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 f

ro
m

 v
a

ri
o

u
s
 b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n

d
s
 

a
n

d
 a

b
ili

ti
e
s
 w

it
h

in
 i
d
e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 g

ro
u
p

s
 t
h
a

t 
fa

c
e

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 

b
a

rr
ie

rs
 f

o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
, 

le
s
b

ia
n

, 
g
a

y
, 

b
is

e
x
u

a
l 
o

r 
tr

a
n

s
s
e

x
u

a
l,
 s

p
e

c
ia

l 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
n

e
e

d
s
 a

n
d
 g

y
p

s
y
, 

ro
m

a
 t

ra
v
e

lle
r 

c
h
ild

re
n

. 
 D

u
rh

a
m

 

C
o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 A

c
ti
o
n

 h
a

s
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 t
h

is
 e

n
g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 s

h
a

re
d
 t

h
is

 

w
it
h

 D
u

rh
a

m
 L

S
C

B
. 
 

 E
n

g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

e
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 t

o
 t

h
e

 a
u
d

ie
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 a

 m
ix

tu
re

 o
f 

in
te

ra
c
ti
v
e

 d
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
s
, 
p

o
s
t-

it
 n

o
te

 f
e
e

d
b
a

c
k
, 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 s
ti
c
k
e

rs
, 

e
tc

. 
T

h
e

 m
a

jo
ri
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 

w
h

o
 t

o
o

k
 p

a
rt

 f
e
e

l 
s
a
fe

 m
o

s
t 
o
f 

th
e
 t

im
e

 a
n

d
 i
t 
is

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 s
it
u
a

ti
o

n
s
 

w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
y
 f

e
e

l 
th

e
y
 n

e
e

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 e

it
h

e
r 

d
u

e
 t

o
 p

e
rc

e
p

ti
o

n
s
 o

r 
d
u
e

 t
o

 

in
c
id

e
n

ts
 t

h
e

y
 o

r 
th

e
ir
 p

e
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e
d

. 
 

 T
h

is
 d

ir
e

c
t 

lin
k
 t
o

 y
o

u
n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 a

n
d

 u
n

d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 t

h
e
 ‘
V

o
ic

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

C
h

ild
’ 
h

a
s
 b

ro
u

g
h

t 
a
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

n
d

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 
p
e
rs

p
e

c
ti
v
e

 i
n

to
 t
h

e
 L

S
C

B
. 

 

It
 h

a
s
 d

ir
e

c
tl
y
 s

h
a

p
e

d
 n

e
w

 a
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
L

S
C

B
 s

u
b

 g
ro

u
p

s
 a

n
d

 

c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

d
 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
o
f 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 s
u

c
h

 a
s
 t
h

e
 p

la
n
n
e

d
 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
E

a
rl
y
 H

e
lp

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

  

  
 

:
 M

o
re

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

: 
F

in
d

 o
u

t 
m

o
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 a

b
o

u
t 

In
v
e

s
ti
n

g
 I

n
 

C
h
ild

re
n

. 
 

Page 125



 

2
8
 

 P
ri
o
ri
ty

 6
 –

 E
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 e

a
c
h
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 i
s
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
le

 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

it
s
 o

w
n
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 

T
h

is
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 i
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 s
c
ru

ti
n

is
in

g
 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 f
u

n
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 

D
u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 a
n
d

 i
s
 c

o
v
e

re
d

 i
n

 m
o
re

 d
e

ta
il 

in
 S

e
c
ti
o

n
 6

 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 Q
u

a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u

ra
n
c
e

. 

 T
h
e

 L
S

C
B

 B
o

a
rd

 r
e

c
o
g
n

is
e
s
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

c
e

 o
f 

s
e

lf
-i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t,
 t
o
 

b
e

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 i
t 
n
e

e
d

s
 t

o
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

o
u

s
ly

 l
e

a
rn

 f
ro

m
 i
ts

 o
w

n
 e

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

s
 

a
n

d
 t
h

a
t 

o
f 

o
th

e
rs

. 
F

o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
 t
h

e
 L

S
C

B
 C

h
a

ir
 h

a
s
 m

e
t 
w

it
h

 a
 

ra
n

g
e

 o
f 

fr
o

n
tl
in

e
 s

ta
ff

 t
o

 d
is

c
u
s
s
 i
s
s
u
e

s
, 

id
e

a
s
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

. 

 P
a

rt
n
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 u
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 a

 r
a
n

g
e

 o
f 

s
te

p
s
 t
o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 j
o
in

t 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 

a
n

d
 v

a
lu

e
s
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 o
u

r 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

n
e

s
s
 -

 k
e
e
p

in
g
 t

h
e

 c
h

ild
’s

 j
o
u

rn
e

y
 

a
t 

th
e

 f
o

re
fr

o
n
t 

o
f 

w
h

a
t 

w
e

 d
o

. 
  

 W
e
 h

a
v
e

 c
la

ri
fi
e

d
 o

u
r 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 a

n
d
 a

lig
n

e
d

 o
u

r 
L
S

C
B

 

o
p

e
ra

ti
o

n
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

o
u

r 
o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
. 

 O
v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a
s
t 

y
e

a
r 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

: 
 

·
 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 o

u
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a
n

c
e

 r
e
p
o

rt
s
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 a

 n
e

w
 

d
a

ta
s
e

t 
to

 b
e

tt
e

r 
re

fl
e
c
t 
p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 

·
 

s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n
e

d
 t
h

e
 s

c
ru

ti
n

y
 a

n
d

 c
h
a

lle
n

g
e

 r
o
le

 a
n

d
 h

a
v
e

 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
e
v
id

e
n

c
in

g
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
a

n
d
 d

if
fe

re
n

c
e

 

·
 

s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n
e

d
 t
h

e
 e

n
g
a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 

a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 i
n
 t
h
e

 w
o

rk
 o

f 
th

e
 B

o
a

rd
 

·
 

a
lig

n
e

d
 t

h
e

 B
o

a
rd

’s
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 w

it
h

 o
th

e
r 

p
a

rt
n
e
rs

h
ip

s
  

·
 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 t

h
e

 v
is

ib
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 i
n
fl
u
e
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
e

 B
o
a

rd
 

·
 

s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n
e

d
 t
h

e
 e

n
g
a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
fr

o
n
tl
in

e
 

s
ta

ff
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 a

u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 

E
m

e
rg

in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 -

 C
y
b
e
r 

C
ri
m

e
 

C
y
b

e
r 

C
ri
m

e
 w

a
s
 h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d

 a
s
 a

n
 e

m
e

rg
in

g
 i
s
s
u

e
 f

o
r 

th
e

 S
a
fe

 

D
u
rh

a
m

 P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h
ip

 i
n
 2

0
1
5

. 
 T

h
e

re
 a

re
 s

tr
o
n
g
 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h

 D
u

rh
a

m
 

L
S

C
B

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 i
n
 i
ts

 w
o

rk
 t
o

 p
re

v
e

n
t 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b
le

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 b

e
in

g
 

d
ra

w
n

 i
n

to
 t

e
rr

o
ri
s
m

 a
n
d

 s
e

x
u

a
l 
e

x
p

lo
it
a

ti
o
n

 t
h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
s
o

c
ia

l 

m
e

d
ia

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 i
n

te
rn

e
t.

 

 R
e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
 f

ro
m

 D
u
rh

a
m

 C
o

n
s
ta

b
u

la
ry

 C
y
b

e
r 

C
ri
m

e
 T

e
a

m
, 

D
u
rh

a
m

 C
o

u
n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 T

e
a

m
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 

S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n

 B
o

a
rd

 h
a

v
e

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 s
e

m
in

a
rs

 c
o

v
e

ri
n

g
 

C
h
ild

 S
e

x
u

a
l 
E

x
p

lo
it
a

ti
o

n
, 

C
o
u

n
te

r 
T

e
rr

o
ri
s
m

 a
n

d
 C

y
b

e
r 

C
ri
m

e
. 
  

 

T
h
e

 s
e
m

in
a

rs
 w

e
re

 a
tt
e

n
d
e

d
 b

y
 1

2
0

 p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

ls
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 o

u
t-

o
f-

s
c
h

o
o

l 
s
e

c
to

r.
  
 

 A
 t

a
s
k
 a

n
d
 f

in
is

h
 g

ro
u
p
 i
s
 n

o
w

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 a
n
d

 h
a
s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
 C

y
b

e
r 

C
ri
m

e
 A

c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
. 

 T
h
e

 L
S

C
B

 w
ill

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t
o

 t
h

is
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 a

re
a

s
 

s
u

c
h

 a
s
 c

y
b

e
rb

u
lly

in
g

, 
g
ro

o
m

in
g
 a

n
d
 o

th
e

r 
s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 i
s
s
u

e
s
. 

 T
h
e

 r
e
g
io

n
a

l 
p

o
lic

e
 f
o

rc
e
s
 h

a
v
e

 s
e

c
u

re
d

 t
h

e
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 o

f 
G

e
t 
S

a
fe

 O
n

lin
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

a
 ‘
G

e
t 
S

a
fe

 O
n

lin
e
 i
n

 D
u

rh
a

m
’ 

w
e

b
s
it
e

 w
h

ic
h
 h

a
s
 a

n
 e

x
te

n
s
iv

e
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 

s
e

c
ti
o
n

. 

 
 

:
 M

o
re

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

: 
F

in
d

 o
u

t 
m

o
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 G

e
t 

S
a
fe

 
O

n
lin

e
 i
n
 D

u
rh

a
m

. 
 :

 M
o

re
 I

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
: 

F
in

d
 o

u
t 
m

o
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 C

o
u
n

te
r 

T
e

rr
o

ri
s
m

 a
n
d

 t
h
e

 P
re

v
e

n
ti
o
n

 o
f 

V
io

le
n

t 
E

x
tr

e
m

is
m

 
 

Page 126



 

2
9
 

 6
. 

P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 Q
u

a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 

 S
e
c
ti
o
n
 1

1
 A

u
d
it
 

T
h
e

 S
e

c
ti
o

n
 1

1
 A

u
d

it
 i
s
 D

u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

’s
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 a
u

d
it
 t

o
 e

x
a

m
in

e
 

th
e

 s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
it
h

in
 a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 t
h

e
 

B
o

a
rd

 w
it
h

 a
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 a

re
 d

o
in

g
 w

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 c

a
n

 t
o

 

e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

e
 s

a
fe

ty
 a

n
d

 w
e

lf
a

re
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

. 

 A
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 i
d
e
n

ti
fi
e
d
 a

 t
o

ta
l 
o
f 

8
0

 s
e
p

a
ra

te
 a

c
ti
o

n
s
 c

o
m

p
ile

d
 i
n

to
 a

 

S
e

c
ti
o

n
 1

1
 a

c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
 t
o

 b
e

 m
o
n

it
o

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 L
S

C
B

 B
o

a
rd

. 
  

 T
h
e

 r
e
s
p
o

n
s
e

s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

h
e

 L
S

C
B

 w
it
h

 a
n
 o

v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
w

h
a

t 

th
e

 m
a

in
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 c
h
a

lle
n

g
e

s
 a

re
 f
o

r 
a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 a

n
d

 a
ls

o
 o

u
tl
in

e
s
 

k
e

y
 a

re
a

s
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t.
  
T

h
e

s
e

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
e

s
 w

ill
 i
n
fo

rm
 t
h

e
 

q
u

e
s
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 b
e

 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 2

0
1
6

/1
7

 a
u

d
it
. 

 S
e

c
ti

o
n

 1
1

 A
u

d
it

 F
in

d
in

g
s

 

·
 

S
e

n
io

r 
m

a
n

a
g
e

m
e

n
t 
c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
to

 s
a
fe

g
u
a

rd
in

g
 a

n
d

 

p
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 c

h
ild

re
n

’s
 w

e
lf
a

re
 i
s
 s

tr
o
n

g
 b

u
t 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 o
n

 

a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 s
h

o
u

ld
 b

e
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n
 f

u
tu

re
 a

u
d

it
s
 

·
 

T
h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 c
le

a
r 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
to

 c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
te

 t
o

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 a

n
 a

g
e
n
c
y
’s

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 c

h
ild

re
n

  

·
 

A
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 i
d
e
n

ti
fi
e
d
 t

h
e
 n

e
e
d

 t
o

 t
h
e

 n
e

e
d
 t

o
 k

e
e

p
 t

h
e

ir
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 

u
p

 t
o

 d
a

te
 

·
 

G
o

o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 r

e
la

ti
n

g
 t
o

 s
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 
a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 w

it
h

in
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o
n

s
 w

a
s
 s

e
e

n
. 
 S

tr
u
c
tu

re
 

c
h

a
rt

s
 a

n
d

 n
a
m

e
d
 r

o
le

s
 w

e
re

 c
o

n
s
is

te
n

tl
y
 h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d

 

th
ro

u
g
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 r

e
s
p

o
n
s
e

s
 

·
 

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 t

o
 e

n
g
a

g
e

 w
it
h

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n
 t

h
e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

s
a
fe

g
u
a

rd
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

a
s
 i
n

c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
a
n

d
 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
fo

r 
fu

rt
h
e

r 
c
h
a

lle
n

g
e

  

·
 

T
h
e

re
 i
s
 s

tr
o
n

g
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 

to
 e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 s

ta
ff

 m
a

in
ta

in
 

s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 k

n
o

w
le

d
g
e

 a
n

d
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 a
 b

ro
a

d
e

r 
ra

n
g
e

 o
f 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 m

a
n
d

a
to

ry
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 

·
 

F
u
rt

h
e

r 
e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e
q
u

ir
e

d
 i
n

 f
u

tu
re

 S
e
c
ti
o

n
 1

1
 a

u
d

it
s
 t
o

 

s
h

o
w

 t
h

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

u
n

d
e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
n

te
n
t 

o
f 

re
le

v
a

n
t 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 /

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 

·
 

T
h
e

re
 i
s
 a

 g
o

o
d

 l
e

v
e

l 
o
f 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 i
n

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 i
n

te
r-

a
g
e

n
c
y
 

w
o

rk
in

g
 t

o
 s

a
fe

g
u
a

rd
 a

n
d

 p
ro

m
o

te
 t
h

e
 w

e
lf
a

re
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 

·
 

T
h
e

re
 i
s
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n
t 

a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 i
m

p
o

rt
a
n

c
e

 o
f 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
 

 
 

Page 127



 

3
0
 

 M
u
lt
i-

A
g
e
n
c
y
 A

u
d
it
s
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
 a

 n
e

w
 a

u
d

it
 t
o

o
lk

it
, 
b

a
s
e
d

 o
n
 e

x
a

m
p

le
s
 o

f 
g
o

o
d
 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
, 

to
 e

n
a
b

le
 i
ts

 u
s
e

 o
v
e

r 
a
 w

id
e

 r
a
n

g
e

 o
f 

c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e

s
. 

Q
u

e
s
ti
o
n

s
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 

th
e

 s
c
o

p
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 s
p
e

c
if
ic

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
ild

re
n

, 
o

r 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 b

e
in

g
 a

u
d

it
e

d
 t
o

 m
e
e

t 
th

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 

th
e

 p
la

n
n
e

d
 

a
u

d
it
. 

 In
 2

0
1

5
/1

6
 w

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
fi
v
e

 m
u
lt
i-

a
g
e

n
c
y
 a

u
d

it
s
 c

o
v
e

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 s

u
b

je
c
ts

  

·
 

C
h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 M

e
e

ti
n

g
s
  

·
 

A
g
e

n
c
y
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
 w

h
e

re
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
c
e

 m
is

u
s
e

 i
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 a
s
 a

 

p
a

re
n

ta
l 
ri
s
k
 f

a
c
to

r 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u

ti
n

g
 t

o
 C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 

·
 

T
e
a

m
 A

ro
u
n

d
 t
h

e
 F

a
m

ily
 M

e
e

ti
n

g
s
  

·
 

M
u

lt
i-
A

g
e

n
c
y
 C

h
ro

n
o

lo
g
ie

s
 

·
 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
R

e
fe

rr
a

ls
 f
o

r 
E

a
rl
y
 H

e
lp

 

 C
h

il
d

 P
ro

te
c

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 M

e
e

ti
n

g
 A

u
d

it
 

T
h
e

 m
a

in
 f

in
d

in
g
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 c

h
ild

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 a

u
d

it
 

s
h

o
w

e
d

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 s
u

b
je

c
t 

to
 

in
te

rp
re

ta
ti
o

n
 w

h
ile

 I
T

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 c

a
n

 l
e

a
v
e

 a
 g

a
p

 i
n

 r
e
c
o

rd
in

g
 t

h
e

 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 t

o
 I
n

it
ia

l 
C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 C

o
n
fe

re
n

c
e

 i
f 

th
e

re
 i
s
 a

n
y
 

v
a

ri
a

b
ili

ty
 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
e

a
d

-i
n
 t

o
 a

 c
o

n
fe

re
n

c
e

. 

 A
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 r

e
g
a

rd
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 M

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e
n

 i
n

 2
0

1
6

/1
7

 a
n

d
 a

 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
a

u
d

it
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 f
o

r 
th

e
 e

n
d
 

o
f 

2
0

1
6
. 

 

A
g

e
n

c
y
 C

o
o

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
 A

u
d

it
 

T
h
e

 a
u

d
it
 o

f 
a

g
e
n

c
y
 c

o
o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
 w

h
e

re
 s

u
b

s
ta

n
c
e

 m
is

u
s
e

 i
s
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 a
s
 a

 p
a

re
n
ta

l 
ri
s
k
 f

a
c
to

r 
c
o
n

tr
ib

u
ti
n

g
 t

o
 a

 C
h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 

P
la

n
, 
fo

u
n

d
 t
h

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 

c
a

s
e

s
 a

u
d

it
e

d
 t
h

e
re

 w
a

s
 g

o
o

d
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 o

f 

p
ro

p
e

r 
a

n
d

 a
p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 m

u
lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 c

o
-o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
. 

T
h
e

 a
u

d
it
 a

ls
o

 

fo
u

n
d

 v
a

ri
a

b
ili

ty
 i
n

 t
h

e
 I
T

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 u

s
e
d

 f
o

r 
re

c
o

rd
in

g
 c

lie
n

t 
d
a

ta
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 
L

S
C

B
 p

a
rt

n
e

r 
a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
. 

  

 T
h
e

 d
ru

g
 a

n
d

 a
lc

o
h
o

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 w

ill
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 d

a
ta

 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 a

s
 a

 w
id

e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
n
 2

0
1

6
. 
T

h
is

 a
u

d
it
 w

ill
 

th
e

n
 b

e
 r

e
p

e
a

te
d

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 t

h
e

 r
e
v
ie

w
. 

 

 A
u

d
it

 o
f 

T
e
a

m
 A

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 F

a
m

il
y
 M

e
e

ti
n

g
s
  

T
h
e

 a
u

d
it
 o

f 
T

e
a

m
 A

ro
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 F

a
m

ily
 (

T
A

F
) 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 f

o
u
n

d
 s

tr
o
n

g
 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 t
h
a

t 
th

e
 c

h
ild

’s
 n

e
e
d

s
 h

a
d

 b
e

e
n

 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri
a

te
ly

 a
n

d
 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
s
 w

e
re

 p
la

n
n

e
d

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

in
g
s
. 

 

 In
 a

ll 
c
a

s
e

s
 f
a

m
ily

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 
m

ile
s
to

n
e

s
 w

e
re

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d
 w

it
h

 g
o

o
d

 

e
x
a

m
p

le
s
 f
o

u
n

d
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 a

 f
a

m
ily

 a
g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
in

 p
la

c
e

; 
im

p
ro

v
e

d
 

a
tt

e
n

d
a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

in
 s

c
h
o

o
l;
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

te
d

 d
a

ily
 r

o
u

ti
n

e
; 

s
e

lf
-

e
s
te

e
m

 a
n

d
 c

o
n
fi
d

e
n

c
e

 b
u

ild
in

g
 o

p
p
o

rt
u
n

it
ie

s
; 

p
a

re
n

ta
l 
s
k
ill

s
 t
ra

in
in

g
; 

fi
n
a

n
c
ia

l 
a

n
d
 h

o
u

s
e
h

o
ld

 m
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 h

o
m

e
 

e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n
t 

c
o
n

d
it
io

n
s
. 

  

 H
o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t

h
e

s
e

 m
ile

s
to

n
e

s
 d

id
 v

a
ry

 i
n

 q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 t

h
e

re
 w

a
s
 l
it
tl
e

 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

c
o
m

m
e

n
ts

 f
ro

m
 p

a
re

n
ts

. 
R

e
s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
th

e
 a

u
d

it
 w

e
re

 

s
h

a
re

d
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 E
a

rl
y
 H

e
lp

 a
n
d

 N
e

g
le

c
t 

S
u

b
 G

ro
u

p
. 

A
n

 a
c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
 

w
a

s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 f
o

r 
th

o
s
e

 a
re

a
s
 t

h
a

t 
re

q
u

ir
e

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it
h

 

a
s
s
ig

n
e

d
 m

a
n
a

g
e

rs
 a

n
d

 r
e
m

e
d

ia
l 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

ir
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

. 
  

Page 128



 

3
1
 

 A
u

d
it

 o
f 

M
u

lt
i-

A
g

e
n

c
y
 C

h
ro

n
o

lo
g

ie
s

 

T
h
e

 a
u

d
it
 o

f 
m

u
lt
i-

a
g
e

n
c
y
 c

h
ro

n
o

lo
g
ie

s
 f

o
u
n

d
 t
h

e
 g

e
n
e

ra
l 
s
ta

n
d
a

rd
 o

f 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 v

e
ry

 h
ig

h
 a

n
d

 a
ll 

c
h

ro
n
o

lo
g
ie

s
 w

e
re

 u
p

-t
o

-d
a

te
. 
 

 N
o
t 

a
ll 

c
h

ro
n

o
lo

g
ie

s
 a

u
d

it
e

d
 s

h
o

w
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
a

 c
h
ro

n
o

lo
g
y
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e
d

 

w
h

e
n

 a
n

 a
g
e
n

c
y
 f

ir
s
t 

s
ta

rt
e
d

 t
h

e
ir
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 
w

it
h

 a
 c

h
ild

 o
r 

fa
m

ily
, 

h
o

w
e

v
e

r,
 a

ll 
c
h

ro
n

o
lo

g
ie

s
 d

id
 b

e
g
in

 w
h

e
n

 a
 f

ir
s
t 

‘s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t’
 e

v
e

n
t 

h
a

p
p

e
n
e

d
. 
  

 A
 b

e
s
t 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 e
x
a

m
p

le
 w

a
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 a
n

d
 c

ir
c
u

la
te

d
 t

o
 a

ll 
E

a
rl
y
 

H
e
lp

 F
o

ru
m

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 E

a
rl
y
 H

e
lp

 a
n

d
 N

e
g
le

c
t 
S

u
b

 G
ro

u
p

. 

  A
u

d
it

 o
f 

S
c

h
o

o
l 
R

e
fe

rr
a

ls
 f

o
r 

E
a

rl
y
 H

e
lp

 

T
h
e

 a
u

d
it
 o

f 
s
c
h
o

o
l 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 f
o

r 
E

a
rl
y
 H

e
lp

 f
o
u

n
d

 t
h

a
t 

e
a

c
h

 r
e
fe

rr
a

l 

m
a

d
e

 b
y
 t

h
e

 s
c
h
o

o
l 
w

a
s
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
. 
T

h
e
 c

a
s
e

s
 e

x
a

m
in

e
d

 

h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

x
it
y
 o

f 
c
a

s
e

s
 w

it
h

 c
le

a
r 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 t
h

a
t 

c
o

n
v
e

n
in

g
 o

f 
a
 T

e
a
m

 A
ro

u
n
d

 t
h
e

 F
a
m

ily
 (

T
A

F
) 

a
s
 e

a
rl
y
 a

s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 

w
h

e
n

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 a

ri
s
e

, 
is

 b
e

n
e
fi
c
ia

l.
  

 It
 n

o
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
id

e
n

ti
fy

in
g
 a

 T
A

F
 L

e
a
d

 P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
h
e

 s
c
h
o

o
l 

h
o

lid
a

y
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 h
ig

h
lig

h
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

S
C

B
 a

n
d

 s
c
h
o

o
l 
s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 s

o
 t

h
a

t 
a

 L
e

a
d
 P

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 
is

 c
le

a
rl
y
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

n
d

 a
 

h
a

n
d

o
v
e

r 
p
la

n
n
e

d
. 
  

 S
in

c
e

 t
h

e
 a

u
d

it
 t

h
e

 L
S

C
B

 a
n

d
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
s
a
fe

g
u
a

rd
in

g
 t

ra
in

in
g

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 t

o
 c

o
v
e

r 
th

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
n
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 T
A

F
 L

e
a
d

 

P
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 s

c
h
o

o
l 
h
o

lid
a

y
s
. 

  

  

S
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 P

ri
v
a
te

ly
 F

o
s
te

re
d
 C

h
ild

re
n

 

T
h
e

 D
u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 B
o
a

rd
 m

o
n

it
o

rs
 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a

l 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e
n

ts
 f
o

r 
s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 c

h
ild

re
n

 w
h

o
 a

re
 

p
ri
v
a

te
ly

 f
o

s
te

re
d
. 

 

 O
n

 a
n

 a
n

n
u
a

l 
b

a
s
is

 t
h
e

 B
o
a

rd
 i
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 w

it
h

 a
 

fu
ll 

re
p

o
rt

 s
e

tt
in

g
 o

u
t 

D
u

rh
a
m

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 s
p
e

c
if
ic

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o
 r

a
is

e
 

a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
a

n
d

 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 c

h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o

 a
re

 i
n

 s
u

c
h
 p

la
c
e

m
e

n
ts

. 

 T
h
e

 m
a

in
 c

o
n

s
id

e
ra

ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

 i
d

e
n
ti
fy

 t
h

a
t 
n

o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n

s
 

re
m

a
in

 l
o

w
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
s
e
 c

h
ild

re
n

 r
e
m

a
in

 a
 h

id
d
e

n
 a

n
d

 p
o

s
s
ib

ly
 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
. 
 D

u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 h
a

s
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

d
 t
h

e
 L

o
c
a

l 

A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 t
o

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

n
e

w
 n

o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n

s
 

th
ro

u
g
h

 t
a

rg
e

ti
n

g
 o

f 
a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 r

a
is

in
g
 i
n

 k
e

y
 a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 w

h
o

 a
re

 m
o

s
t 

lik
e

ly
 t

o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
a

n
g
in

g
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
s
. 

 
 O

th
e

r 
a
c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

: 

·
 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 v
is

it
in

g
 t

o
 b

e
 i
n
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 i
n

to
 

m
o

n
th

ly
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 c
lin

ic
s
  

·
 

im
p

ro
v
in

g
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 r
e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 o

n
 

v
is

it
in

g
 

·
 

g
a

th
e

ri
n
g
 t

h
e

 v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
p

a
re

n
ts

 /
 c

a
re

rs
 /
 c

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h
e

ir
 p

ri
v
a

te
 f

o
s
te

ri
n

g
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e

n
t 

   
 

:
 D

o
w

n
lo

a
d

: 
A

n
n
u

a
l 
P

ri
v
a

te
 F

o
s
te

ri
n

g
 R

e
p
o

rt
. 

 :
 M

o
re

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

: 
F

in
d

 o
u

t 
m

o
re

 a
b
o

u
t 

P
ri

v
a

te
 F

o
s
te

ri
n

g
. 

 

Page 129



 

3
2
 

 T
h
e
 U

s
e
 o

f 
R

e
s
tr

a
in

t 
–
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 

S
e
c
u
re

 S
e
tt

in
g
s
 

C
o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a
m

 i
s
 a

m
o
n

g
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

n
u
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 w

h
o

 

h
a

v
e

 s
e

c
u

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

it
h

in
 i
ts

 b
o

u
n
d

a
ri
e

s
. 

 

 In
 c

o
n

ju
n

c
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 D
u
rh

a
m

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
c
il,

 D
u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 m
o

n
it
o

rs
 

th
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

re
s
tr

a
in

t 
a
t 
A

y
c
lif

fe
 S

e
c
u

re
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 C

e
n

tr
e
. 

 M
a
n

y
 o

f 
th

e
 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

re
 p

la
c
e

d
 b

y
 L

o
c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 o

u
ts

id
e

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

 a
n

d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

c
ri
m

in
a

l 
c
o

u
rt

s
. 

 S
in

c
e

 2
0

1
1

 a
n
d

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 W
o
rk

in
g
 T

o
g
e

th
e

r 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 r
e
p
o

rt
e
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

re
s
tr

a
in

t 
w

it
h

in
 C

o
u

n
ty

 

D
u
rh

a
m

. 

 A
y
c
lif

fe
 S

e
c
u

re
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 C

e
n

tr
e
 h

o
u

s
e

s
 a

 c
h
a

n
g
in

g
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 o

f 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
g
e

d
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 1

1
 a

n
d

 1
7

, 
b

o
th

 m
a

le
 a

n
d

 f
e
m

a
le

, 
w

h
o

 

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
e
fe

rr
e

d
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h
e

 c
o
u

rt
s
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e

 t
h
e

y
 a

re
 a

 r
is

k
 t
o
 

th
e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
 o

r 
o
th

e
rs

, 
o

r 
b
e

c
a
u

s
e

 t
h

e
re

 i
s
 a

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
ir
 

in
v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 
w

it
h

 c
ri
m

in
a

l 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 

 T
h
e

 c
e
n

tr
e
 h

a
s
 f

iv
e

 c
h

ild
re

n
’s

 h
o
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 a
 ‘
s
te

p
 d

o
w

n
’ 
fa

c
ili

ty
 w

it
h

 

a
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
2
4

 b
e

d
s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 Y
o

u
th

 J
u

s
ti
c
e

 B
o

a
rd

. 
  

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e

s
 f

ro
m

 o
u

ts
id

e
 o

f 
th

e
 a

re
a

 c
a
n
 a

ls
o
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 

p
la

c
e

s
 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
n
 w

e
lf
a

re
 g

ro
u
n

d
s
 i
f 

th
e

 c
o

u
rt

s
 d

e
c
id

e
 t

h
a

t 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 m
e
e

t 
th

e
 l
e

g
is

la
ti
v
e

 c
ri
te

ri
a

 r
e
q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 p

la
c
e

 t
h

e
m

 i
n
 a

 

s
e

c
u

re
 s

e
tt

in
g
. 

 R
e
s
tr

a
in

t 
in

c
id

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 a
ll 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 h
a
d
 s

e
e

n
 a

n
 o

v
e

ra
ll 

tr
e
n

d
 

re
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u
t 

2
0

1
5

. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 t
h

e
re

 w
a

s
 a

 s
h

a
rp

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 

e
a

rl
y
 i
n

 2
0

1
6
. 

  

 

  T
h

is
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 w
a

s
 l
a

rg
e

ly
 d

u
e

 t
o
 c

h
a
n

g
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
s
id

e
n

t 
p

o
p

u
la

ti
o
n

 

w
it
h

 s
e

v
e

ra
l 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 l
e
a

v
in

g
 a

n
d

 b
e

in
g
 r

e
p

la
c
e
d

 b
y
 y

o
u

n
g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 n

e
w

 t
o

 A
y
c
lif

fe
 S

e
c
u

re
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 C

e
n

tr
e

. 
  

 T
h

is
 d

is
ru

p
ti
o
n

 t
o
 r

o
u

ti
n

e
 a

n
d

 g
ro

u
p

 d
y
n

a
m

ic
s
 a

m
o

n
g
s
t 

y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 c

e
n
tr

e
 c

a
n
 l
e

a
d
 t

o
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 

c
e

n
tr

e
 m

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

c
o
n

s
ta

n
tl
y
 s

e
e

k
 t

o
 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 i
n

 a
d

v
a

n
c
e

, 
e

v
e

n
ts

 

th
a

t 
m

ig
h

t 
le

a
d

 t
o

 u
n

re
s
t.

  
 

 D
u
e

 t
o
 t

h
e

 n
a

tu
re

 o
f 

s
e
c
u

re
 s

e
tt

in
g
s
, 

p
la

n
n

e
d

 e
v
e

n
ts

 a
re

 o
ft

e
n

 

s
u

b
je

c
t 
to

 u
n

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 d

is
ru

p
ti
o

n
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t

o
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 c

o
u

rt
 

p
ro

c
e

e
d

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 r

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 w

it
h

in
 p

a
rt

n
e

r 
a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
. 

 

Page 130



 

3
3
 

 In
ju

ri
e

s
 a

s
 r

e
s
u

lt
 o

f 
re

s
tr

a
in

t 
a

re
 g

ra
d

e
d

 u
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
e

t 
c
ri
te

ri
a

: 

 L
e
v
e

l 
1

 –
 M

in
o

r 
In

ju
ry

 -
 n

o
 m

e
d

ic
a
l 
tr

e
a
tm

e
n

t 
s
u

c
h

 a
s
 r

e
d

 m
a

rk
s
 o

n
 

th
e

 s
k
in

, 
w

e
lt
s
, 

s
u

p
e

rf
ic

ia
l 
c
u

ts
 a

n
d

 s
c
ra

tc
h

e
s
, 

b
ru

is
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 d

o
 n

o
t 

re
q
u

ir
e

 m
e

d
ic

a
l 
tr

e
a

tm
e

n
t,

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 f

ir
s
t 

a
id

 

L
e
v
e

l 
2

 –
 M

in
o

r 
In

ju
ry

 -
 r

e
q
u

ir
in

g
 m

e
d

ic
a
l 
tr

e
a

tm
e
n

t 
s
u

c
h

 a
s
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
c
u

ts
, 
s
c
ra

tc
h

e
s
, 

g
ra

z
e

s
, 

b
lo

o
d

y
 n

o
s
e

s
, 

c
o
n

c
u

s
s
io

n
, 

s
e

ri
o

u
s
 b

ru
is

in
g
 a

n
d

 s
p

ra
in

s
 w

h
e

re
 m

e
d

ic
a
l 
tr

e
a

tm
e
n

t 
is

 g
iv

e
n

 b
y
 

s
ta

ff
/n

u
rs

e
  

L
e
v
e

l 
3

 –
 S

e
ri

o
u

s
 I

n
ju

ry
 r

e
q

u
ir

in
g

 h
o

s
p

it
a
l 

tr
e
a

tm
e
n

t 
- 

in
c
lu

d
e

s
 

s
e

ri
o

u
s
 c

u
ts

, 
fr

a
c
tu

re
s
, 
lo

s
s
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
c
io

u
s
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 d

a
m

a
g
e

 t
o

 i
n
te

rn
a

l 

o
rg

a
n

s
. 

 T
h
e

re
 w

e
re

 a
 t
o

ta
l 
o
f 

4
8

5
 

in
c
id

e
n

ts
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 

re
s
tr

a
in

t 
d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
1
5

-1
6

; 
th

is
 i
s
 

fe
w

e
r 

th
a

n
 i
n
 2

0
1

4
-1

5
 (

4
9

4
).

  

 T
h
e

s
e

 r
e
s
tr

a
in

ts
 l
e
d

 t
o

 7
4

 

in
ju

ri
e

s
 t

o
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

, 
m

o
re

 

th
a

n
 t

h
e

 p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r 
w

it
h

 a
 

ra
ti
o

 o
f 

th
re

e
 i
n
ju

ri
e

s
 t
o
 e

v
e

ry
 1

7
 

re
s
tr

a
in

ts
. 

  

 5
7

%
 o

f 
a

ll 
in

ju
ri
e

s
 o

c
c
u
rr

e
d

 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 J
a
n

u
a

ry
 a

n
d

 M
a

rc
h

 

2
0

1
6

 w
h

e
n

 t
h
e

 s
p

ik
e

 o
f 

re
s
tr

a
in

t 

in
c
id

e
n

ts
 w

e
re

 r
e

c
o

rd
e
d

. 
 

T
h

ro
u

g
h

o
u

t 
2

0
1

5
/1

6
 A

y
c
lif

fe
 S

e
c
u

re
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 C

e
n

tr
e

 s
ta

ff
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 

im
p

le
m

e
n
ti
n

g
 a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

e
s
 t
o

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 t

o
 t

ry
 a

n
d
 m

in
im

is
e
 

th
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

re
s
tr

a
in

t 
o

v
e
ra

ll.
  

 

 T
h

is
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

s
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 r

e
in

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
te

c
h

n
iq

u
e

s
 w

it
h

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 k

e
y
-

w
o

rk
e
rs

 s
p

e
c
if
ic

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 w
o

rk
 t

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

re
la

ti
o
n

s
h

ip
s
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

. 
  

 S
ta

ff
, 

k
e

y
-w

o
rk

e
rs

 a
n

d
 m

a
n
a

g
e

rs
 o

f 
th

e
 c

e
n

tr
e

 w
o

rk
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
n

g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 t
h

e
 c

a
u

s
e

s
 a

n
d
 e

ff
e

c
t 

o
f 

th
e

ir
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
in

g
 

b
e

h
a

v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 w

o
rk

 t
o
g
e

th
e

r 
to

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 d

e
s
ig

n
e

d
 t
o

 

p
re

v
e

n
t 

re
s
tr

a
in

t.
  

 W
o
rk

in
g
 t

o
g
e

th
e

r,
 t
h
e

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 h

a
v
e

 f
o

c
u

s
e

d
 o

n
 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o
n

, 
c
o
p

in
g
 m

e
c
h

a
n

is
m

s
, 

lik
e

s
 a

n
d

 d
is

lik
e
s
 a

n
d

 

d
e

-e
s
c
a

la
ti
o

n
 t
e

c
h
n

iq
u

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n

 f
e

e
ls

 w
ill

 w
o

rk
. 

 

 In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
, 

a
ll 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 a

re
 p

la
c
e

d
 o

n
 b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

s
u
p

p
o

rt
 

p
la

n
s
 o

r 
a
re

 a
t 

a
 h

ig
h

e
r 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
fo

rc
in

g
 a

 r
e
s
tr

a
in

t 
is

 p
u
t 

o
n

 a
n

 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
a

n
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 /

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
p

la
n

. 
  

 T
h

is
 c

le
a

rl
y
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e
s
 t

h
e

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 o

n
 o

ff
e

r 
to

 t
h

e
 y

o
u
n

g
 p

e
rs

o
n
 a

n
d

 

is
 u

s
e

d
 a

s
 i
n

c
e
n

ti
v
e

s
 t

o
 r

e
-e

n
g
a

g
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
-i
n
te

g
ra

te
 t

h
e

m
 b

a
c
k
 i
n

to
 

th
e

 g
ro

u
p
. 
 

  
 

:
 M

o
re

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

: 
F

in
d

 o
u

t 
m

o
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 a

b
o

u
t 

A
y
c
lif

fe
 

S
e

c
u

re
 C

e
n

tr
e

. 
 

Page 131



 

3
4
 

 S
e
ri
o
u
s
 C

a
s
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 F

u
n
c
ti
o
n
 

W
e
 h

a
v
e

 i
n
s
ti
g
a

te
d
 o

n
e

 S
e

ri
o
u

s
 C

a
s
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
 i
n

 2
0

1
5

/1
6

 a
n

d
 o

n
e

 

L
e

a
rn

in
g
 L

e
s
s
o

n
s
 R

e
v
ie

w
. 

 W
e
 h

a
v
e

 a
ls

o
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 e

ig
h

t 
L
e

a
rn

in
g
 L

e
s
s
o
n

s
 e

v
e

n
ts

 i
n
 2

0
1

5
/1

6
 

fo
r 

p
ra

c
ti
ti
o
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 w

it
h

 t
w

o
 s

p
e

c
if
ic

 e
v
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
E

a
rl
y
 

Y
e

a
rs

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 G

P
s
. 

 

 T
h
e

s
e

 h
a

v
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 t
im

e
 f
o

r 
p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
re

fl
e

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
k
e

y
 

m
e

s
s
a

g
e

s
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
u

rr
e
n

t 
th

e
m

e
s
 r

u
n

n
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d
 

S
e

ri
o

u
s
 C

a
s
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
s
. 

  

 T
h
e

s
e

 a
re

: 
 

·
 

th
e

 r
o
le

 o
f 

m
a

le
s
 w

it
h

in
 a

 f
a
m

ily
 s

e
tt

in
g
 /

 h
o

u
s
e

h
o

ld
 w

h
o

 h
a

v
e

 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

w
it
h

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

·
 

m
u

lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 e

n
g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it
h

 s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
 

·
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 s

h
a

ri
n

g
 a

n
d

 p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

ls
 w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n
 s

ilo
 

·
 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 v

o
ic

e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
ild

 

·
 

o
v
e

r 
re

lia
n

c
e

 u
p
o

n
 t
h

e
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
r 

- 
la

c
k
 o

f 
p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

l 

c
h

a
lle

n
g
e
 

·
 

th
e

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
c
e
 o

f 
c
ro

s
s
-r

e
fe

re
n

c
in

g
, 

c
h
e

c
k
in

g
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 

re
c
o

rd
s
, 

a
n

d
 t
a

k
in

g
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 
o
f 

h
is

to
ri
c
a

l 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 i
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 

   

W
e
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a

ti
o
n

s
 f

ro
m

 S
e

ri
o
u

s
 C

a
s
e
 

R
e
v
ie

w
s
 b

o
th

 m
u

lt
i-

a
g
e

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 s
in

g
le

 a
g
e

n
c
y
 r

e
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
. 

 

A
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

s
 a

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 L
e
a

rn
in

g
 a

n
d

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

S
u
b

 

G
ro

u
p

 b
i-
m

o
n

th
ly

. 

 W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 h

o
s
t 

a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

le
a

rn
in

g
 l
e
s
s
o

n
s
 e

v
e

n
ts

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 

S
e

ri
o

u
s
 C

a
s
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
s
 p

u
b

lic
a
ti
o

n
s
. 

   
 

:
 M

o
re

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

: 
F

in
d

 o
u

t 
m

o
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 a

b
o

u
t 

S
e

ri
o

u
s
 

C
a
s
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
s
. 

 

Page 132



 

3
5
 

 C
h
ild

 D
e
a
th

 O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 P
a
n
e
l 
 

It
 i
s
 t

h
e

 r
e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 

L
o

c
a

l 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n

 B
o

a
rd

s
 t
o

 

e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
e

v
e

ry
 d

e
a

th
 o

f 
a

 c
h

ild
 n

o
rm

a
lly

 r
e
s
id

e
n

t 
in

 

th
e

ir
 a

re
a

 i
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n

 b
y
 a

 C
h

ild
 D

e
a

th
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 P

a
n

e
l 
(C

D
O

P
).

 

 A
 j
o

in
t 

C
D

O
P

 h
a

s
 b

e
e
n

 a
g
re

e
d

 b
y
 D

u
rh

a
m

 L
o

c
a

l 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 

C
h
ild

re
n

 B
o
a

rd
 a

n
d

 D
a
rl
in

g
to

n
 S

a
fe

g
u
a

rd
in

g
 C

h
ild

re
n

 B
o
a

rd
. 
 T

h
e

 

C
h
ild

 D
e
a

th
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 P

a
n

e
l 
is

 a
 s

u
b

-c
o
m

m
it
te

e
 o

f 
b
o

th
 D

u
rh

a
m

 a
n

d
 

D
a
rl
in

g
to

n
 L

S
C

B
s
. 
It

 i
s
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
re

v
ie

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

n
 a

ll 
c
h

ild
 d

e
a

th
s
 a

n
d

 i
s
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

le
 t
o

 t
h

e
 L

S
C

B
 C

h
a

ir
. 

 T
h
e

re
 a

re
 t

w
o

 i
n

te
rr

e
la

te
d

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 f

o
r 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 c

h
ild

 d
e

a
th

s
: 

·
 

R
a
p

id
 R

e
s

p
o

n
s
e
 b

y
 a

 g
ro

u
p

 o
f 

k
e

y
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

ls
 w

h
o

 c
o
m

e
 

to
g
e

th
e

r 
fo

r 
th

e
 p

u
rp

o
s
e

 o
f 

e
n

q
u

ir
in

g
 i
n

to
 a

n
d

 e
v
a

lu
a

ti
n

g
 e

a
c
h
 

u
n

e
x

p
e
c

te
d

 d
e

a
th

; 
a

n
d

 

·
 

A
n

 o
v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
a

ll
 d

e
a
th

s
 u

p
 t
o

 t
h

e
 a

g
e

 o
f 

1
8
 y

e
a

rs
 (

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 

b
o

th
 t

h
o

s
e

 b
a

b
ie

s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 s

ti
llb

o
rn

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 t
e

rm
in

a
ti
o

n
s
 

o
f 

p
re

g
n

a
n

c
y
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 l
a

w
) 

in
 D

u
rh

a
m

 a
n
d

 

D
a
rl
in

g
to

n
 a

re
a

s
, 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 b

y
 a

 p
a
n

e
l 

T
h
e

 C
h

ild
 D

e
a

th
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 P

a
n

e
l 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 u

n
d
e

rt
a
k
e
 i
ts

 r
o
le

 w
it
h

 

s
e

n
s
it
iv

it
y
 a

n
d

 h
a

s
 i
d
e
n

ti
fi
e
d

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 a

 r
a
n

g
e

 o
f 

re
c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a
ti
o

n
s
 t
h

a
t 
a

re
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 c

h
ild

 s
a

fe
ty

 a
n

d
 w

e
lf
a

re
. 

 T
h
e

re
 w

e
re

 3
6

 c
h

ild
 d

e
a

th
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 i
n

 C
o

u
n

ty
 D

u
rh

a
m

 i
n
 2

0
1

5
/1

6
. 
 

O
f 

th
e

 3
6

 c
h

ild
 d

e
a
th

s
 t
h

e
re

 w
e

re
: 

 

·
 

2
0

 R
a
p

id
 R

e
s
p
o

n
s
e

s
 (

th
is

 i
s
 a

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 f
o

r 
g
a

th
e

ri
n

g
 k

e
y
 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

ls
 t
o

 e
n

q
u

ir
e

 i
n

to
 a

n
d

 e
v
a

lu
a

te
 c

ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 o

f 
a

 

s
u

d
d
e

n
 a

n
d

 u
n
e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 d

e
a

th
) 

·
 

2
6

 d
e

a
th

s
 t
h

a
t 
h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 o

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 a

t 
a

 L
o

c
a

l 

C
a
s
e

 D
is

c
u
s
s
io

n
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
  

(f
o

r 
m

o
s
t 

u
n

e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 d

e
a

th
s
 a

 

lo
c
a

l 
c
a

s
e
 d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
 t
a

k
e

s
 p

la
c
e

 w
h

e
n

 a
ll 

th
e

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 h
a

s
 

b
e

e
n

 g
a

th
e

re
d

 a
n

d
 a

ll 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 i
n
v
o

lv
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 c

h
ild

 a
n

d
 

fa
m

ily
 b

e
fo

re
 a

n
d

 a
t 

th
e

 t
im

e
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 d

e
a
th

 a
re

 i
n

v
it
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
.)

 

 A
n

a
ly

s
is

 o
f 

K
e

y
 F

in
d

in
g

s
 

T
h
e

 k
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

h
ild

 D
e

a
th

 R
e

v
ie

w
s
 a

re
 s

u
m

m
a

ri
s
e

d
 b

e
lo

w
: 

·
 

W
h
e
re

 c
a

s
e

s
 w

e
re

 s
u

b
je

c
t 

o
f 

a
 S

e
ri
o

u
s
 C

a
s
e

 R
e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 a
 

ro
b

u
s
t 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 w
a

s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 b
y
 

th
e

 L
e

a
rn

in
g
 &

 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

t 
G

ro
u

p
. 

 K
e

y
 p

o
in

ts
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 t
h

e
 

re
la

u
n

c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 E

a
rl
y
 H

e
lp

 &
 N

e
g
le

c
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

a
 s

u
ic

id
e

 /
 s

e
lf
-h

a
rm

 p
a

th
w

a
y
 a

n
d
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o
n

 

p
a

c
k
a

g
e
 

·
 

S
e

v
e

n
 c

a
s
e

s
 w

e
re

 s
u

b
je

c
t 

o
f 

a
 R

o
o

t 
C

a
u

s
e

 A
n

a
ly

s
is

 a
n

d
 a

n
 

a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 C
h

ild
 

D
e
a

th
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 P

a
n

e
l 
u

n
ti
l 
it
s
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
. 

 F
o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
, 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
o
f 

d
is

c
h
a
rg

e
, 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
b
a

b
ie

s
 d

u
ri
n

g
 l
a

b
o

u
r 

a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

, 
a

n
d

 r
e
g
u

la
r 

u
p

d
a

te
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

ro
u

n
d

 n
e
o

n
a

ta
l 

re
s
u

s
c
it
a

ti
o
n
 

·
 

O
n

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 t
h

e
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 f

o
rm

a
lis

e
 t
h
e

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 

s
h

a
ri
n

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 f
o

r 
c
h
ild

re
n

 w
h

o
 a

re
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d
 t

o
 d

ie
 a

t 
h
o

m
e

 

p
ri
o

r 
to

 d
is

c
h
a

rg
e

 t
o

 e
n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 n
o

 s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 

is
s
u
e

s
. 

A
 m

u
lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 g

ro
u

p
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 f
o

rm
e
d

 t
o

 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t

h
is

 a
n
d

 D
u

rh
a

m
 C

o
n

s
ta

b
u

la
ry

 h
a

s
 f
o

rm
u

la
te

d
 d

ra
ft

 

g
u

id
a

n
c
e

 f
o

r 
e
x
p

e
c
te

d
 d

e
a

th
s
. 

 N
e

w
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 f

in
a

lis
e
d

 

in
 2

0
1

6
/1

7
 

Page 133



 

3
6
 

 A
re

a
s

 o
f 

G
o

o
d

 P
ra

c
ti

c
e

 

E
x

a
m

p
le

 1
. 

 C
o
u
n

ty
 D

u
rh

a
m

 a
n

d
 D

a
rl
in

g
to

n
 N

H
S

 F
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o
n

 T
ru

s
t 

w
e

re
 i
n

s
p

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 H
u
m

a
n

 T
is

s
u
e

 A
u

th
o

ri
ty

 i
n

 2
0

1
5

. 
T

h
is

 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
in

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 n

o
te

d
 t
h

e
 d

ia
lo

g
u

e
 /
 i
n
s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

c
h

ild
 d

e
a

th
 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n
v
o

lv
e
d

 t
h

e
 R

a
p

id
 R

e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
e
a

m
. 

 E
x

a
m

p
le

 2
. 

 F
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

 t
ra

g
ic

 a
c
c
id

e
n

t,
 D

u
rh

a
m

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e
d

 a
n

 a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

o
f 

w
a

te
r 

s
a
fe

ty
 i
n

 t
h
e

 r
iv

e
r 

(a
n

d
 a

ll 

w
a

te
r 

w
a

y
s
 i
n

 C
o

u
n

ty
 D

u
rh

a
m

) 
in

 k
e

e
p

in
g
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

 R
o

y
a

l 
S

o
c
ie

ty
 f

o
r 

th
e

 P
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
 o

f 
A

c
c
id

e
n

ts
 g

u
id

e
lin

e
s
. 
T

h
is

 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 

s
h

a
re

d
 w

it
h

 c
o

lle
a

g
u
e

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 E

n
v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

ta
l 
A

g
e

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 F
ir
e

 &
 

R
e
s
c
u

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 a

re
a

s
 i
n

 r
e
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

to
p

o
g
ra

p
h

y
. 

 A
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

s
a
fe

ty
 m

e
a
s
u

re
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 p
u

t 
in

 p
la

c
e

; 
s
ig

n
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e
n

 

in
s
ta

lle
d

 a
t 

b
o

th
 e

n
tr

a
n

c
e

s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 s

it
e

 o
f 

th
e

 i
n
c
id

e
n

t;
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o
n

 

le
a
fl
e
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e
e

n
 s

e
n
t 

to
 a

ll 
lo

c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 a

b
o

u
t 
w

a
te

r 
s
a
fe

ty
 

a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
; 

a
n

d
 r

e
g
u

la
r 

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
d

ra
in

a
g
e

/s
a
fe

ty
 p

a
th

w
a

y
s
 a

t 

th
e

 s
it
e

 a
re

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t.

 

 W
a
te

r 
s
a
fe

ty
 e

d
u

c
a
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 i
n

 a
d

v
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

W
a
te

r 
S

a
fe

ty
 W

e
e
k
 i
n

 t
a

rg
e

te
d

 a
re

a
s
. 

 T
h
e

 C
h
ild

 D
e
a

th
 O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 P

a
n

e
l 
c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
 i
t 

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

b
le

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 p
ro

m
p

tl
y
 t

o
o

k
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 

th
e

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 i
n

 t
h
e

 a
re

a
 w

it
h

 r
e
g
a

rd
s
 

to
 w

a
te

r 
s
a
fe

ty
. 

 

 T
h
e

 C
h
ild

 D
e
a

th
 R

e
v
ie

w
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p
o

rt
 i
s
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 e
a

c
h
 y

e
a

r 
a
n

d
 

is
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 o

n
 b

o
th

 L
S

C
B

 w
e

b
s
it
e

s
. 

       
 

:
 D

o
w

n
lo

a
d

: 
C

h
ild

 D
e

a
th

 R
e

v
ie

w
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0

1
5

-1
6

. 
 

Page 134



 

3
7
 

 P
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 P

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
 

D
u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 p
ro

a
c
ti
v
e

ly
 r

e
v
ie

w
s
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
 a

s
 

s
y
s
te

m
s
 c

h
a
n

g
e

 a
n
d

 a
re

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

. 
 A

 r
a
n

g
e
 o

f 
p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 a

n
d

 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 g

u
id

a
n

c
e

 h
a

v
e

 b
e
e

n
 u

p
d
a

te
d

 i
n

 2
0
1
5

/1
6
. 

 T
h
e

s
e

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
: 

·
 

U
p
d

a
te

d
 S

in
g
le

 A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 a

n
d

 r
e
fe

rr
a

l 
fo

rm
 

·
 

R
e
fr

e
s
h

e
d

 E
a

rl
y
 H

e
lp

 a
n

d
 N

e
g
le

c
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

·
 

N
e
w

 N
e

g
le

c
t 

P
ra

c
ti
c
e
 G

u
id

a
n

c
e

 

·
 

N
e
w

 0
-1

9
 L

e
v
e

l 
o
f 

N
e
e
d

 t
h

re
s
h

o
ld

s
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

·
 

N
e
w

 H
o

m
e

 E
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
R

is
k
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
T

o
o

l 

·
 

U
p
d

a
te

d
 C

S
E

 i
n

te
lli

g
e
n

c
e

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 f

o
rm

 

·
 

U
p
d

a
te

d
 M

is
s
in

g
 C

h
ild

re
n

 P
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s
 

·
 

N
e
w

 M
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 a

n
d

 C
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

·
 

N
e
w

 M
u
lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 A

u
d

it
 T

o
o

l 
 

 W
e
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
th

e
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e

n
d
a

ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
th

e
 O

fs
te

d
 

in
s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

 f
o

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
 a

 t
im

e
 l
im

it
e

d
 t
a

s
k
 a

n
d
 f

in
is

h
 g

ro
u

p
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 i
n
 2

0
1

6
 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
o
f 

n
e
w

 o
n

lin
e

 c
h

ild
 

p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
. 
  

    

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

 Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 F

o
rw

a
rd

 P
la

n
 

T
h
e

 m
u

lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 a

u
d

it
 a

n
d
 q

u
a

lit
y
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 p
la

n
 l
a

y
s
 o

u
t 

th
e

 p
la

n
n
e

d
 w

o
rk

 t
o

 b
e
 u

n
d
e

rt
a
k
e
n

 a
n

d
 i
ts

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o

n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

in
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

. 
In

 2
0
1

6
/1

7
 w

e
 w

ill
: 

·
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

 o
n

-l
in

e
 v

e
rs

io
n

 o
f 

S
e

c
ti
o

n
 1

1
 a

u
d

it
s
  

·
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e

 a
n

 a
n
n

u
a

l 
g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 L

S
C

B
 

·
 

m
a

in
ta

in
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

t 
u

s
e

 o
f 

a
u
d

it
in

g
 t

o
o

ls
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
e

s
  

·
 

id
e

n
ti
fy

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
 a

re
a

s
 f
o

r 
a

u
d

it
in

g
  

·
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 r
e
p
o

rt
in

g
 f

o
rm

a
ts

 t
o
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 c
a

s
e

 s
tu

d
ie

s
 a

n
d

 m
a

k
e

 

th
e

 v
o

ic
e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
ild

 m
o

re
 v

is
ib

le
  

·
 

re
fi
n
e

 t
h

e
 s

c
o

re
c
a

rd
 a

n
d

 r
e
p

o
rt

in
g
 a

rr
a

n
g
e

m
e
n

ts
 

·
 

m
a

in
ta

in
 t
h

e
 r

is
k
 r

e
g
is

te
r 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 r
is

k
 r

e
p

o
rt

in
g
 m

e
th

o
d

o
lo

g
y
 

w
it
h

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

 c
o

n
tr

o
ls

 a
n

d
 a

s
s
u

ra
n

c
e

s
 

·
 

c
a

rr
y
 o

u
t 

c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

 c
lin

ic
s
 t
o

 h
o

ld
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 a

c
c
o

u
n

t 

·
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
‘Q

u
a

lit
y
’ 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 t

o
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 a
re

a
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 

c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
, 
S

e
ri
o

u
s
 C

a
s
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d

 c
h

ild
 d

e
a

th
 o

v
e

rv
ie

w
 

m
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 

  
 

Page 135



 

3
8
 

 7
. 

T
ra

in
in

g
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o

n
 

 S
in

g
le

 a
n
d
 M

u
lt
i-

A
g
e
n
c
y
 T

ra
in

in
g
 P

ro
v
is

io
n
 

A
ll 

a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h

 c
h

ild
re

n
 e

it
h
e

r 
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 o

r 
in

d
ir
e

c
tl
y
 a

re
 

re
q
u

ir
e

d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t

ra
in

in
g
 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

th
e

ir
 o

w
n

 r
o
le

s
 a

n
d

 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
. 
T

h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e

s
 b

e
in

g
 a

b
le

 t
o
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e
 a

n
d

 r
a
is

e
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 a

b
o

u
t 

c
h

ild
re

n
’s

 s
a
fe

ty
 a

n
d

 w
e

lf
a

re
. 
  

 D
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e

 y
e

a
r 

th
e
 L

S
C

B
 t

ra
in

in
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 s

e
e
n

 a
n

 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 c

o
lla

b
o

ra
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n

s
; 
m

o
s
t 

n
o

ta
b

ly
 

th
e

 C
o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 L

e
a

rn
in

g
 a

n
d

 D
e

v
e

lo
p
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a
m

; 
C

o
u

n
ty

 

D
u
rh

a
m

 &
 D

a
rl
in

g
to

n
 N

H
S

 F
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o
n

 T
ru

s
t;
 T

e
e

s
, 
E

s
k
 a

n
d

 W
e
a

r 

V
a

lle
y
s
 N

H
S

 F
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 T

ru
s
t,
 D

u
rh

a
m

 C
o
n
s
ta

b
u

la
ry

, 
H

a
rb

o
u

r 
a

n
d
 

B
a

rn
a

rd
o

s
; 

in
 t
h

e
 p

la
n
n

in
g
, 

d
e

s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g
. 

  

 T
h

is
 h

a
s
 s

tr
e

n
g
th

e
n

e
d
 a

n
d

 e
n

h
a

n
c
e

d
 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g
 w

h
ile

 

a
v
o

id
in

g
 d

u
p

lic
a

ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

in
te

r-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 

w
o

rk
in

g
. 

 

 D
u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 p

ri
v
a

te
, 

v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 a
n

d
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 s

e
c
to

r 
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 f

o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a

r’
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

. 
 W

e
 h

a
v
e

 a
ls

o
 

in
c
o

rp
o

ra
te

d
 l
e

s
s
o

n
s
 l
e

a
rn

e
d

 f
ro

m
 S

e
ri
o

u
s
 C

a
s
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
s
 i
n

to
 o

u
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 i
n
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 p
ra

c
ti
ti
o

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 m
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 

th
e

ir
 l
e
a

rn
in

g
, 
u

n
d
e

rs
ta

n
d

in
g
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
s
k
ill

s
. 

 A
ll 

n
e

w
 a

n
d

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 c

o
u

rs
e
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 u
p

d
a

te
d

 t
o

 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 

re
fr

e
s
h

e
d

 p
o

lic
y
 a

n
d
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

ra
l 
w

o
rk

 u
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e

n
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r.

 

C
o
u
rs

e
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n
 2

0
1
5
/1

6
 

T
h
e

 L
S

C
B

 c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 o

ff
e

r 
1
3

 c
o

re
 c

o
u

rs
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 

P
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

n
d
 I

n
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
, 
E

n
g
a

g
in

g
 w

it
h

 F
a

m
ili

e
s
, 

C
h
ild

 S
e

x
u

a
l 

E
x
p

lo
it
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 N

e
g
le

c
t.

  
 In

 a
d

d
it
io

n
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

c
o

re
 c

o
u

rs
e
s
 

tr
a
in

in
g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 

w
e

re
 a

ls
o
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

o
n

 H
o
n

o
u

r 
B

a
s
e
d

 

V
io

le
n

c
e
, 

F
o
rc

e
d

 

M
a

rr
ia

g
e

 a
n

d
 

F
e
m

a
le

 G
e
n

it
a

l 

M
u

ti
la

ti
o
n

, 
in

 

c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 

H
A

L
O

 a
n

d
 C

o
u

n
ty

 

D
u
rh

a
m

 a
n
d

 

D
a
rl
in

g
to

n
 N

H
S

 

F
o
u

n
d
a

ti
o
n

 T
ru

s
t 

(C
D

D
F

T
).

  
 T

h
e

 L
S

C
B

 h
a

s
 a

ls
o
 h

o
s
te

d
 t
h

re
e

 t
ra

in
in

g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 M

u
lt
i-

A
g
e

n
c
y
 

P
u

b
lic

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 A
rr

a
n
g
e

m
e

n
ts

 (
M

A
P

P
A

),
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 N
a
ti
o
n

a
l 

P
ro

b
a

ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
; 

tw
o

 s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 o

n
 H

id
d

e
n
 S

e
n

te
n

c
e

 w
h

ic
h
 w

e
re

 

d
e

liv
e

re
d

 b
y
 N

E
P

A
C

S
 a

n
d

 f
u

n
d

e
d
 b

y
 T

h
in

k
 F

a
m

ily
 a

n
d

 o
n

e
 t

ra
in

in
g
 

e
v
e

n
t 

o
n
 ‘
T

h
in

k
 F

a
m

ily
’ 
d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 c
o

lla
b

o
ra

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 T
h

in
k
 F

a
m

ily
 

M
e

n
to

rs
. 

 A
 t

o
ta

l 
o
f 

8
8

 c
o

u
rs

e
s

 w
e

re
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 2
0

1
5

-2
0

1
6

. 
T

h
e
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
 

w
e

re
 a

tt
e

n
d
e

d
 b

y
 a

 t
o

ta
l 
o
f 

1
,6

3
7

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 v
o

lu
n

te
e

rs
. 

 

Page 136



 

3
9
 

 Im
p
a
c
t 
a
n
d
 E

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n

 

T
h
e

 t
ra

in
in

g
 c

o
u

rs
e
s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 

v
e

ry
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 f

e
e
d

b
a

c
k
 w

it
h

 7
1

%
 

o
f 

a
tt
e

n
d

e
e

s
 m

a
rk

in
g
 t

h
e

 

tr
a
in

in
g
 t

h
e

y
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 a

s
 

e
x
c
e

lle
n

t.
  

 

  

“I
 n

o
w

 f
e
e

l 
c
o
n
fi
d
e
n

t 
in

 a
s
k
in

g
 

c
h

a
lle

n
g
in

g
 q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
s
 a

t 
h
o

m
e

 
v
is

it
s
. 

In
 a

 r
e
c
e

n
t 

re
fe

rr
a

l 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 t

h
is

 c
o

u
rs

e
, 

I 
h

a
v
e

 n
o

 
d

o
u
b

t 
I 
m

a
d

e
 t
h

e
 r

ig
h

t 
ju

d
g
e

m
e
n

t 
c
a

ll”
 

 

 F
o
llo

w
 u

p
 e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 w
it
h

 s
ta

ff
 i
n
 t

h
e

 t
h

re
e
 m

o
n

th
s
 a

ft
e

r 

a
tt

e
n

d
in

g
 a

 t
ra

in
in

g
 s

e
s
s
io

n
 t

o
 a

s
s
e

s
s
 t

h
e
 l
o

n
g
e

r 
te

rm
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

tr
a
in

in
g
. 

 9
8

%
 o

f 
th

o
s
e

 s
u

rv
e

y
e

d
 s

ta
te

d
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 t

ra
in

in
g
 h

a
d

 f
u

lf
ill

e
d

 

th
e

ir
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

s
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 t
ra

in
in

g
. 

 W
h
e
n
 a

s
k
e

d
 t
h

e
 q

u
e

s
ti
o

n
 ‘
H

a
s
 t
h

e
 

le
a

rn
in

g
 i
m

p
a

c
te

d
 o

n
 y

o
u

r 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
?

’ 

7
4

%
 s

a
id

 y
e

s
, 

4
%

 s
a

id
 n

o
 a

n
d
 2

2
%

 

w
e

re
 u

n
c
h

a
n

g
e

d
. 

 

 “
E

x
p

la
in

in
g
 t

o
 p

a
re

n
ts

 i
n
v
o

lv
e

d
 

in
 s

e
p
a

ra
ti
o

n
 o

r 
c
h

ild
/p

a
re

n
t/

s
c
h

o
o

l 
re

la
te

d
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 

th
a

t 
th

e
ir
 c

h
ild

re
n

 h
a

v
e

 a
 

v
o

ic
e
…

p
ro

v
id

in
g
 t

im
e

 a
n

d
 s

p
a

c
e
 

s
o

 t
h
e

 c
h

ild
 c

a
n

 b
e

 h
e
a

rd
” 

e
-L

e
a
rn

in
g
 

T
h
e

re
 a

re
 a

 r
a
n

g
e

 o
f 

e
-l
e
a

rn
in

g
 c

o
u

rs
e

s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 o

n
 t
h

e
 D

u
rh

a
m

 

L
S

C
B

 w
e

b
s
it
e

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
; 

A
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
 o

f 
C

h
ild

 A
b

u
s
e
 a

n
d

 N
e

g
le

c
t,

 

S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n

 f
ro

m
 A

b
u

s
e

 b
y
 C

h
ild

 S
e

x
u

a
l 
E

x
p

lo
it
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d
 

P
R

E
V

E
N

T
 –

 C
o

u
n
te

r 
T

e
rr

o
ri
s
m

 a
w

a
re

n
e

s
s
. 

 

 S
in

c
e

 t
h

e
 e

-l
e
a

rn
in

g
 c

o
u

rs
e
s
 b

e
c
a

m
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
: 
 

·
 

3
,3

5
2

 p
e

o
p

le
 h

a
v
e

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 t
h

e
 A

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
C

h
ild

 A
b

u
s
e

 

a
n

d
 N

e
g
le

c
t 

·
 

2
,5

3
7

 p
e

o
p

le
 h

a
v
e

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 t
h

e
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n

 f
ro

m
 

A
b

u
s
e
 b

y
 C

h
ild

 S
e

x
u

a
l 
E

x
p

lo
it
a

ti
o

n
  

·
 

O
v
e

r 
6

,0
0

0
 p

e
o

p
le

 h
a
v
e

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 t
h

e
 P

R
E

V
E

N
T

 –
 C

o
u

n
te

r 

T
e

rr
o

ri
s
m

 e
-l
e
a

rn
in

g
 

 

“I
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 a

b
le

 t
o

 e
n
g
a

g
e

 a
n

d
 r

e
s
p

o
n
d

 t
o
 m

y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 u

s
e

rs
 m

o
re

 
e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
” 

 
“I

t 
h

a
s
 e

n
a
b

le
d
 m

e
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 c

lie
n

ts
 t
o

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 t

h
e

 c
o

rr
e

c
t 

le
v
e

l 
o
f 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

th
e

ir
 f

a
m

ily
” 

 D
u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 h
a

s
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
e
d

 a
 ‘
to

ta
l 
p

a
c
k
a

g
e

’ 
o
f 

e
-l
e
a

rn
in

g
 f

ro
m

 

V
ir
tu

a
l 
C

o
lle

g
e

 f
o

r 
2

0
1
6

/1
7
. 

  

 T
h

is
 o

ff
e

rs
 a

 w
id

e
 v

a
ri

e
ty

 o
f 

s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 c

o
u

rs
e
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t
o

 s
ta

ff
 

a
n

d
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 w
it
h

 a
n
 u

n
lim

it
e

d
 l
ic

e
n

c
e

 a
v
a

ila
b

le
 o

n
 e

a
c
h

 c
o

u
rs

e
. 

 

 
 

:
 M

o
re

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

: 
F

in
d

 o
u

t 
m

o
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 a

b
o

u
t 

L
S

C
B

 
T

ra
in

in
g
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

 

Page 137



4
0
 

M
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 A

c
ti
v
it
y
 

In
 2

0
1

5
 t

h
e

 T
ra

in
in

g
, 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 S

u
b

 G
ro

u
p

 

w
a

s
 t

a
s
k
e

d
 w

it
h

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 a

 M
a

rk
e
ti
n

g
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
s
 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

 

T
h
e

 a
im

 o
f 

th
e

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 t

o
 r

a
is

e
 t
h

e
 a

w
a

re
n
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 

k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

 a
n

d
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 L
S

C
B

 

a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
; 

w
id

e
r 

p
a

rt
n
e
rs

h
ip

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 i
n

 C
o
u
n

ty
 D

u
rh

a
m

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 

g
e

n
e

ra
l 
p

u
b

lic
. 

 

In
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g
 t

h
e

 r
e
fr

e
s
h

e
d

 M
a
rk

e
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti
o
n

s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

th
e

 T
ra

in
in

g
, 

D
e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 C

o
m

m
u
n

ic
a
ti
o
n

s
 S

u
b

 G
ro

u
p

 h
a

s
 

u
n

d
e

rt
a
k
e
n

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 2
0
1

5
/1

6
  
in

c
lu

d
in

g
: 

·
 

re
fr

e
s
h

in
g
 t

h
e
 L

S
C

B
 b

ra
n

d
 a

n
d
 s

ty
lin

g
 

·
 

p
ro

d
u

c
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
is

s
e
m

in
a

ti
n

g
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 p

ri
n

te
d
 m

a
te

ri
a

ls
 

(l
e

a
fl
e

t 
p
o

s
te

rs
, 
e

tc
.)

 f
o
r 

u
s
e

 b
y
 a

ll 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 (

o
v
e

r 
6
,7

8
6

 

le
a
fl
e
ts

 d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 t
o

 v
e

n
u
e

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 O

n
e

 P
o

in
t 

H
u
b

s
, 

lib
ra

ri
e

s
, 

G
P

 s
u

rg
e

ri
e

s
, 
H

e
a

lt
h

 C
e

n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
A

c
c
e

s
s
 

P
o

in
ts

) 

·
 

id
e

n
ti
fy

in
g
 k

e
y
 c

o
m

m
u
n

ic
a
ti
o
n
 p

a
th

w
a

y
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
m

e
s
 b

a
s
e
d

 

o
n

 t
h

e
 L

S
C

B
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 (

u
s
e

 o
f 

a
p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 s

o
c
ia

l 
m

e
d

ia
 t
o

 

ra
is

e
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 a
rt

ic
le

s
 i
n

 n
e

w
s
le

tt
e

rs
 a

n
d

 p
u

b
lic

a
ti
o
n

s
, 

e
tc

.)
 

·
 

u
p

lif
t 

o
f 

D
e
p
a

rt
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
E

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 ‘
T

o
g
e

th
e

r 
w

e
 c

a
n
 t

a
c
k
le

 

c
h

ild
 a

b
u

s
e

’ 
c
a
m

p
a

ig
n

 

·
 

th
e

 p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
 o

f 
E

R
A

S
E

 C
h

ild
 S

e
x
u

a
l 
E

x
p

lo
it
a

ti
o

n
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 

·
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 ‘
k
e

y
 m

e
s
s
a
g
e

s
’ 
fo

r 
u

s
e

 b
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 

·
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

 t
e
m

p
la

te
s
 t
o

 e
n

a
b

le
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n

t 
b

ra
n

d
in

g
 

a
n

d
 m

e
s
s
a

g
e

s
 

·
 

u
p

d
a

ti
n

g
 L

S
C

B
 w

e
b

s
it
e

 c
o

n
te

n
t 

(1
8
8

,5
8

2
 p

a
g
e

 v
ie

w
s
 i
n

 

2
0

1
5

/1
6

) 

 
 

:
 M

o
re

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

: 
F

in
d

 o
u

t 
m

o
re

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 a

b
o

u
t 

L
S

C
B

 
L

e
a
fl
e

ts
 a

n
d

 P
o

s
te

rs
 

 

Page 138



 

4
1
 

 8
. 

F
u

tu
re

 P
ri

o
ri
ti
e

s
 

 L
S

C
B

 P
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 2

0
1
6

/1
7
 

T
h
e

 D
u
rh

a
m

 L
o

c
a

l 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n

 B
o
a

rd
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
n
d

 

re
ta

in
e
d

 t
h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 f

o
r 

2
0

1
6
/1

7
: 

  

·
 

R
e
d

u
c
in

g
 C

h
ild

 S
e

x
u

a
l 
E

x
p

lo
it
a

ti
o

n
  

·
 

Im
p

ro
v
in

g
 E

a
rl
y
 H

e
lp

  

·
 

R
e
d

u
c
in

g
 N

e
g
le

c
t 

(c
o

n
tr

ib
u
to

ry
 f

a
c
to

rs
 a

re
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 a

b
u

s
e

; 
a

lc
o

h
o

l 

m
is

u
s
e

; 
s
u

b
s
ta

n
c
e

 m
is

u
s
e

; 
p

a
re

n
ta

l 
m

e
n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

) 
 

·
 

R
e
d

u
c
in

g
 s

e
lf
-h

a
rm

 a
n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
’s

 s
e

lf
-

e
s
te

e
m

  

·
 

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e

 v
o

ic
e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
ild

  

·
 

E
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a
t 

e
a

c
h

 a
g
e

n
c
y
 i
s
 a

c
c
o

u
n
ta

b
le

 f
o

r 
d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

it
s
 

o
w

n
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 r

e
s
p
o

n
s
ib

ili
ti
e

s
 

 P
ri
o
ri
ty

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 

A
lo

n
g
s
id

e
 t
h

e
 i
d
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 a

b
o

v
e

 t
h
e

 L
S

C
B

 h
a

s
 h

ig
h

lig
h

te
d

 

p
ri
o

ri
ty

 a
re

a
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
2
0

1
6

/1
7

: 

L
e

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 

·
 

B
e

n
c
h
m

a
rk

 o
u

rs
e
lv

e
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

‘o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g
’ 
a
n

d
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 

s
e

e
k
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e
n

ts
 i
n
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 a

n
d

 o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 

·
 

E
x
p

a
n

d
 t
h

e
 v

o
ic

e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
ild

 t
o

 s
h
o

w
 h

o
w

 w
e
 l
is

te
n

 a
n

d
 

re
s
p

e
c
t 

th
e

 v
ie

w
s
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n

 

·
 

U
p
d

a
te

 t
h
e

 c
h

ild
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 

·
 

D
e
liv

e
r 

a
n

d
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 c
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
o

n
 c

a
m

p
a

ig
n

s
 /

 l
e
a

rn
in

g
 

e
v
e

n
ts

 /
 f
a

c
ts

h
e

e
ts

 a
n
d

 p
u
b

lic
a

ti
o

n
s
 

C
h
a

lle
n

g
e
 

·
 

U
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 S
e

c
ti
o

n
 1

1
 a

u
d

it
s
 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
 h

a
v
e

 

p
ro

c
e

s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
 

·
 

U
n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 m
u
lt
i-
a

g
e

n
c
y
 a

u
d

it
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

re
 f
u

lf
ill

in
g
 

th
e

ir
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 o
b

lig
a

ti
o
n

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

u
d

it
in

g
 o

f 
E

a
rl
y
 H

e
lp

 

·
 

R
e
c
o

rd
 a

n
d

 r
e
p

o
rt

 s
in

g
le

 a
g
e

n
c
y
 a

u
d

it
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 L

S
C

B
 B

o
a

rd
 

·
 

R
e
fi
n

e
 a

n
d

 e
m

b
e
d

 t
h

e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 M

a
n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 

to
 s

h
o

w
 h

o
w

 c
h

ild
re

n
’s

 l
iv

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 

·
 

F
o
c
u

s
 o

u
r 

s
e
lf
-h

a
rm

 w
o

rk
 o

n
 s

e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

l 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

·
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 m

o
re

 l
o

c
a

l 
n
a

rr
a

ti
v
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

h
ild

 D
e

a
th

 O
v
e

rv
ie

w
 

P
a

n
e

l 
(C

D
O

P
) 

A
n

n
u

a
l 
R

e
p

o
rt

  

L
e

a
rn

in
g
 

·
 

P
u

b
lis

h
 S

e
ri
o

u
s
 C

a
s
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 d
is

s
e
m

in
a

te
 

a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n

t 
le

a
rn

in
g

 p
ro

v
id

in
g
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 

th
e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

/ 

c
h

a
n

g
e

 i
n

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 d

u
e
 t

o
 S

e
ri
o

u
s
 C

a
s
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 

·
 

C
o
n

ti
n

u
e

 t
o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
, 

d
e

liv
e

r 
a
n

d
 r

e
fi
n
e
 t

h
e

 t
ra

in
in

g
 p

la
n

 

·
 

U
n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 
o
f 

tr
a
in

in
g
 o

n
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 b

y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g
 

a
n

 i
m

p
a

c
t 
a

n
a

ly
s
is

 o
f 

tr
a
in

in
g

 

·
 

Im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 l
e
a

rn
in

g
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
t 
o
f 

c
h

ild
 p

o
v
e

rt
y
 a

n
d

 n
e

g
le

c
t 

·
 

C
o
n

d
u

c
t 

a
n
 a

c
a
d

e
m

ic
 s

e
m

in
a

r 
to

 i
n
fo

rm
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 

T
h

e
s
e

 p
ri

o
ri
ti
e

s
 r

e
fl
e

c
t 

a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
d
ri

v
e

rs
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e

 2
0

1
6
 O

fs
te

d
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 

D
u

rh
a
m

 L
S

C
B

, 
L

e
a

rn
in

g
 L

e
s
s
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 S
e

ri
o

u
s
 C

a
s
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d
 t

h
e
 L

S
C

B
 

a
n
n

u
a

l 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
s
e

s
s
io

n
.  

 

Page 139



 

4
2
 

 P
la

n
 o

n
 P

a
g
e
 

O
u

r 
‘P

la
n

 o
n

 a
 P

a
g
e

’ 
id

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
 a

c
ti
o
n

s
 f
o

r 
2
0
1

6
-1

7
  

 
 

Page 140



 

4
3
 

 L
S

C
B

 m
e

s
s
a

g
e

s
 t

o
 P

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

ls
 a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
  

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 

·
 

N
o
th

in
g
 i
s
 m

o
re

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

th
a
n

 m
a
k
in

g
 s

u
re

 y
o

u
 a

re
 s

a
fe

 a
n

d
 

w
e

ll 
c
a

re
d

 f
o

r.
  
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

b
o
u

t 
y
o

u
 a

n
d

 w
e

 w
a

n
t 

to
 k

n
o

w
 m

o
re

 

a
b

o
u

t 
h
o

w
 y

o
u

 t
h

in
k
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 c

a
n

 b
e

 b
e

tt
e

r 
p
ro

te
c
te

d
 

·
 

If
 y

o
u

 a
re

 w
o

rr
ie

d
 a

b
o

u
t 

y
o

u
r 

o
w

n
 s

a
fe

ty
 o

r 
th

a
t 

o
f 

a
 f

ri
e
n

d
, 

s
p

e
a

k
 t
o

 a
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
y
o

u
 t

ru
s
t 

o
r 

s
p
e

a
k
 t
o

 C
h
ild

L
in

e
 o

n
 

0
8

0
0

 1
1
1

1
 

 P
a
re

n
ts

 a
n
d
 C

a
re

rs
 

·
 

P
u

b
lic

 a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 a

re
 t
h
e

re
 t

o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 y
o

u
; 

g
e

tt
in

g
 e

a
rl
y
 h

e
lp

 

b
e
fo

re
 t

h
in

g
s
 g

e
t 

w
o

rs
e
 r

e
a

lly
 d

o
e

s
 h

e
lp

  

·
 

T
e

ll 
u

s
 w

h
a

t 
w

o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 w

h
a

t 
d

o
e

s
n

’t
 w

h
e

n
 p

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a

ls
 a

re
 

tr
y
in

g
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 y
o

u
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
r 

c
h
ild

re
n

 

·
 

M
a

k
e

 s
u

re
 y

o
u

 k
n

o
w

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 b

e
s
t 

w
a

y
 t

o
 p

ro
te

c
t 

y
o

u
r 

c
h
ild

 

a
n

d
 t
a

k
e
 t

im
e

 t
o

 u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

is
k
s
 t

h
e

y
 c

a
n

 f
a

c
e

 

 T
h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
  

·
 

Y
o

u
 a

re
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 
p

la
c
e

 t
o

 l
o

o
k
 o

u
t 
fo

r 
c
h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g
 

p
e

o
p

le
 i
f 

y
o

u
 h

a
v
e

 a
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
 c

a
ll 

F
ir
s
t 

C
o
n

ta
c
t 

o
n

 0
3
0

0
0
 

2
6

7
9

7
9

 o
r 

th
e

 N
S

P
C

C
 h

e
lp

lin
e

 o
n

 0
8
0

8
 8

0
0
 5

0
0

0
 

·
 

W
e
 a

ll 
s
h

a
re

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
p
ro

te
c
ti
n

g
 c

h
ild

re
n

 -
 i
f 

y
o

u
 s

e
e

 

s
o

m
e
th

in
g
, 

s
a

y
 s

o
m

e
th

in
g

 

 

F
ro

n
tl
in

e
 S

ta
ff
 a

n
d
 V

o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 w
o
rk

in
g

 w
it
h
 C

h
ild

re
n
 

·
 

M
a

k
e

 s
u

re
 c

h
ild

re
n

 a
n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o
p

le
 a

re
 s

e
e

n
, 
h

e
a

rd
 a

n
d

 

h
e

lp
e
d

, 
w

h
a

te
v
e

r 
y
o

u
r 

ro
le

 

·
 

Y
o

u
r 

p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a

l 
ju

d
g
e

m
e
n

t 
is

 w
h

a
t 
u

lt
im

a
te

ly
 m

a
k
e

s
 a

 

d
if
fe

re
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

 m
u
s
t 

in
v
e

s
t 

in
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g
 t

h
e

 k
n

o
w

le
d

g
e

, 

s
k
ill

s
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

s
 n

e
e
d

e
d

 t
o

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

·
 

A
tt

e
n
d

 a
ll 

tr
a

in
in

g
 r

e
q
u

ir
e

d
 f

o
r 

y
o

u
r 

ro
le

 

·
 

B
e

 f
a
m

ili
a
r 

w
it
h

, 
a

n
d

 u
s
e

 w
h

e
n

 n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
, 

C
h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o

n
 

P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 S

in
g
le

 A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

  
  

·
 

U
n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
 t
h

e
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
c
e

 o
f 

ta
lk

in
g
 w

it
h

 c
o

lle
a

g
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 

s
h

a
ri
n

g
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
. 

If
 i
n
 d

o
u

b
t,
 s

p
e

a
k
 t
o

 y
o

u
r 

m
a

n
a

g
e

r 

 L
o
c
a
l 
P

o
lit

ic
ia

n
s
  

·
 

Y
o

u
 a

re
 l
e

a
d

e
rs

 i
n
 y

o
u

r 
lo

c
a

l 
a

re
a

. 
Y

o
u

 c
a
n

 b
e

 t
h
e

 e
y
e

s
 a

n
d

 

e
a

rs
 o

f 
v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 c

h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
. 

 K
e

e
p

 t
h
e

 p
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 

o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

t 
th

e
 f

ro
n
t 
o
f 

y
o

u
r 

m
in

d
 

 C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
s
 a

n
d
 D

ir
e
c
to

rs
  

·
 

Y
o

u
 s

e
t 

th
e

 t
o

n
e

 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

u
lt
u

re
 o

f 
y
o

u
r 

o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
. 
W

h
e

n
 

y
o

u
 t

a
lk

, 
p
e

o
p

le
 l
is

te
n

 –
 t

a
lk

 a
b

o
u

t 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 

·
 

E
n

s
u

re
 y

o
u

r 
w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 a

tt
e
n

d
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

L
S

C
B

 t
ra

in
in

g
 c

o
u

rs
e
s
 

a
n

d
 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 e
v
e

n
ts

 

·
 

E
n

s
u

re
 y

o
u

r 
a
g
e
n

c
y
 c

o
n

tr
ib

u
te

s
 t

o
 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

D
u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 

a
n

d
 b

e
 S

e
c
ti
o
n

 1
1

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
t 

Page 141



 

4
4
 

 T
h
e
 P

o
lic

e
 

·
 

R
o
b

u
s
tl
y
 p

u
rs

u
e
 o

ff
e

n
d

e
rs

 a
n
d

 d
is

ru
p

t 
th

e
ir
 a

tt
e
m

p
ts

 t
o

 a
b

u
s
e

 

c
h

ild
re

n
 

·
 

E
n

s
u

re
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n

d
 p

o
lic

e
 s

ta
ff

 h
a

v
e

 t
h

e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 t

ra
in

 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
ir
 c

o
lle

a
g
u

e
s
 i
n

 p
a

rt
n
e

r 
a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 

·
 

E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 v
o

ic
e
s
 o

f 
a

ll 
c
h

ild
 v

ic
ti
m

s
 a

re
 h

e
a

rd
, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 i
n

 r
e
la

ti
o

n
 t
o

 l
is

te
n

in
g
 t

o
 e

v
id

e
n

c
e
 w

h
e

re
 c

h
ild

re
n

 

d
is

c
lo

s
e

 a
b

u
s
e

 

 N
H

S
 T

ru
s
ts

 a
n
d
 C

lin
ic

a
l 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 G

ro
u
p
s
 

·
 

H
e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 a
 k

e
y
 r

o
le

 i
n

 s
c
ru

ti
n

is
in

g
 t

h
e

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 

a
n

d
 p

la
n
n

in
g
 f

o
r 

s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

 r
a
n

g
e
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
.  

E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 v
o

ic
e
 o

f 
th

e
 c

h
ild

 i
s
 h

e
a

rd
 

·
 

D
is

c
h

a
rg

e
 y

o
u

r 
s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 d

u
ti
e

s
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 a

n
d

 e
n

s
u

re
 

th
a

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 
v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 

c
h

ild
re

n
 

     

H
e
a
d
 T

e
a
c
h
e
rs

 a
n
d
 G

o
v
e
rn

o
rs

 o
f 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

  

·
 

E
n

s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

y
o

u
r 

s
c
h

o
o

l 
/ 

a
c
a

d
e
m

y
 /

 e
d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
is

 c
o

m
p

lia
n

t 
w

it
h

 ‘
K

e
e
p

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n

 S
a
fe

 i
n

 

E
d

u
c
a
ti
o

n
’ 
(D

fE
, 
2

0
1

5
) 

·
 

Y
o

u
 s

e
e

 c
h

ild
re

n
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 a
n

y
 o

th
e

r 
p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 

s
o

m
e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 
m

e
a
n

in
g
fu

l 
re

la
ti
o
n

s
h

ip
s
 w

it
h

 t
h
e

m
 

·
 

K
e

e
p
 e

n
g
a

g
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
ti
n
u

e
 t
o

 

id
e

n
ti
fy

 c
h

ild
re

n
 w

h
o

 n
e

e
d

 e
a

rl
y
 h

e
lp

 a
n

d
 p

ro
te

c
ti
o

n
 

 

T
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
M

e
d
ia

  

·
 

C
o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti
n

g
 t

h
e
 m

e
s
s
a

g
e

 t
h
a

t 
s
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 i
s
 e

v
e

ry
o

n
e

’s
 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 i
s
 c

ru
c
ia

l 
- 

y
o

u
 c

a
n

 h
e

lp
 d

o
 t
h

is
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
ly

 

  
 

Page 142



 

4
5
 

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 1

 –
 L

S
C

B
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
 a

n
d

 S
ta

ff
in

g
 

 D
u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 M
e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

 

·
 

T
h
e

 B
o

a
rd

 i
s
 c

h
a

ir
e

d
 b

y
 a

n
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n
t 

p
e

rs
o
n

 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 D
u
rh

a
m

 C
o

u
n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 

·
 

N
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
P

ro
b

a
ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 –

 r
e
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 H
e

a
d
 o

f 

D
u
rh

a
m

  

·
 

D
u
rh

a
m

 T
e

e
s
 V

a
lle

y
 C

o
m

m
u
n

it
y
 R

e
h

a
b

ili
ta

ti
o
n

 C
o

m
p

a
n

y
 –

 

re
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 b

y
 H

e
a

d
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 C

o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a

m
 a

n
d

 

D
a
rl
in

g
to

n
 

·
 

N
o
rt

h
 D

u
rh

a
m

, 
D

a
le

s
, 
E

a
s
in

g
to

n
 &

 S
e

d
g
e
fi
e
ld

 C
lin

ic
a
l 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 G

ro
u
p
s
 –

 r
e
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 b

y
: 

 

- 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

N
u

rs
in

g
 (

V
ic

e
-C

h
a

ir
 o

f 
D

u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

) 

·
 

D
e
s
ig

n
a

te
d

 N
u

rs
e
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n

 a
n
d

 L
o
o

k
e

d
 A

ft
e

r 

C
h
ild

re
n

  

·
 

D
e
s
ig

n
a

te
d

 P
a

e
d

ia
tr

ic
ia

n
 

·
 

N
H

S
 E

n
g
la

n
d

 –
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 D
e

p
u

ty
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

N
u

rs
in

g
 

·
 

T
e
e

s
, 

E
s
k
 &

 W
e
a

r 
V

a
lle

y
s
 N

H
S

 F
o

u
n

d
a
ti
o

n
 T

ru
s
t 

–
 

re
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
s
s
o

c
ia

te
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

N
u

rs
in

g
 

(S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
) 

·
 

C
o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a
m

 &
 D

a
rl
in

g
to

n
 N

H
S

 F
o
u
n

d
a

ti
o
n

 T
ru

s
t 

–
 

re
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 b

y
: 

- 
A

s
s
o

c
ia

te
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

P
a

ti
e

n
t 
E

x
p

e
ri
e

n
c
e

 &
 

S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

 

- 
H

e
a

d
 o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n

 a
n
d

 F
a
m

ili
e
s
 

·
 

N
o
rt

h
 T

e
e

s
 &

 H
a

rt
le

p
o
o

l 
H

o
s
p

it
a

ls
 N

H
S

 F
o

u
n
d

a
ti
o
n

 T
ru

s
t 

–
 

re
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 D
e
p

u
ty

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

N
u

rs
in

g
 

·
 

H
a
rr

o
g
a

te
 &

 D
is

tr
ic

t 
N

H
S

 F
o

u
n
d

a
ti
o
n

 T
ru

s
t 

–
 r

e
p

re
s
e
n

te
d
 b

y
 

th
e

 D
e
p

u
ty

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o
f 

N
u
rs

in
g

 

·
 

C
it
y
 H

o
s
p

it
a

ls
 S

u
n

d
e

rl
a

n
d

 N
H

S
 F

o
u

n
d

a
ti
o

n
 T

ru
s
t 

·
 

C
a
fc

a
s
s
 (

C
o

u
n

ty
 D

u
rh

a
m

) 
–
 r

e
p

re
s
e
n

te
d

 b
y
 t
h

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

M
a

n
a

g
e

r 

·
 

C
o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a
m

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

re
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 b

y
: 

- 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 D

ir
e

c
to

r,
 C

h
ild

re
n

 &
 A

d
u

lt
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

- 
H

e
a

d
 o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
  

  
 

- 
H

e
a

d
 o

f 
A

d
u

lt
s
 C

a
re

 

- 
H

e
a

d
 o

f 
E

d
u

c
a
ti
o

n
  
  

- 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 M
a
n

a
g
e

r 
- 

Y
o

u
th

 O
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 

- 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

P
u

b
lic

 H
e

a
lt
h

 C
o

u
n

ty
 D

u
rh

a
m

 

- 
H

o
u

s
in

g
 S

o
lu

ti
o

n
s
 M

a
n

a
g
e

r 

·
 

N
a
ti
o
n

a
l 
O

ff
e
n

d
e

r 
M

a
n
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 –

 r
e
p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 b

y
 

P
u

b
lic

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 M
a
n
a

g
e

r 

·
 

D
u
rh

a
m

 C
o

n
s
ta

b
u

la
ry

 –
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 F
o

rc
e
 L

e
a

d
 f
o

r 

S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 (

S
u

p
e

ri
n
te

n
d
e

n
t 
L

e
v
e

l)
  

·
 

T
h
e

 V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 &
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 S

e
c
to

r 
–

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 

V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 S
e

c
to

r 
R

e
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

 

·
 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 r

e
p

re
s
e
n

te
d

 b
y
: 

 

- 
D

u
rh

a
m

 A
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

e
c
o
n

d
a

ry
 H

e
a

d
s
 

Page 143



 

4
6
 

 

- 
D

u
rh

a
m

 A
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 o

f 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 H
e

a
d

s
 

- 
D

u
rh

a
m

 A
s
s
o

c
ia

ti
o

n
 o

f 
S

p
e

c
ia

l 
S

c
h

o
o

ls
 

 

·
 

F
u
rt

h
e

r 
E

d
u

c
a
ti
o

n
 –

 r
e
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 b

y
  

th
e

 H
e

a
d

 o
f 

S
tu

d
e

n
t 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

B
is

h
o

p
 A

u
c
k
la

n
d

 C
o

lle
g
e

 

·
 

L
a

y
 M

e
m

b
e

rs
 –

 r
e
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
re

e
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e

 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 w

h
o

s
e

 r
o
le

 i
s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 s

tr
o
n

g
e

r 
p
u

b
lic

 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e
n

t 
in

 l
o

c
a

l 
c
h

ild
 s

a
fe

ty
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 t
o

 c
h

a
lle

n
g
e

 t
h
e

 

L
S

C
B

 o
n

 t
h

e
 a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

ili
ty

 b
y
 t

h
e

 p
u

b
lic

 a
n
d

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
f 

it
s
 p

la
n

s
 a

n
d

 p
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
  

·
 

L
e

a
d

 M
e
m

b
e

r 
–

 r
e
p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 P
o

rt
fo

lio
 H

o
ld

e
r 

fo
r 

C
h
ild

re
n

 a
n

d
 Y

o
u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 (

p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

n
t 
o

b
s
e

rv
e

r)
 

·
 

F
a
it
h

 C
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 –

 r
e

p
re

s
e
n

te
d

 b
y
 t

h
e
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 L

e
a
d

 

fo
r 

D
u
rh

a
m

 D
io

c
e

s
e

  

  L
S

C
B

 A
d
v
is

o
rs

  

T
h
e

 B
o

a
rd

 i
s
 a

d
v
is

e
d

 b
y
: 

·
 

A
 m

e
m

b
e

r 
o
f 

D
u
rh

a
m

 C
o
u

n
ty

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 &
 L

e
g
a

l 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 n

o
m

in
a

te
d

 a
s
 t

h
e

 B
o

a
rd

’s
 l
e
g
a

l 
a

d
v
is

o
r 

 

·
 

T
h
e

 D
u

rh
a

m
 L

S
C

B
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 M

a
n
a

g
e

r 

·
 

H
e
a

d
 o

f 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
, 

C
h
ild

re
n

 a
n
d

 A
d

u
lt
 

S
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 

D
u

rh
a

m
 C

o
u
n

ty
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

·
 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 M
a
n

a
g
e

r 
P

o
lic

y
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h
ip

s
, 

C
h
ild

re
n

 

a
n

d
 A

d
u

lt
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

D
u
rh

a
m

 C
o

u
n

ty
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

  

 
 

Page 144



 

4
7
 

 A
p

p
e

n
d

ix
 2

 –
 L

S
C

B
 S

ta
ff

in
g

 a
n

d
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
 S

ta
ff
in

g
 

T
h
e

 L
S

C
B

 i
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

: 

·
 

L
S

C
B

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 M

a
n

a
g
e

r 

·
 

L
S

C
B

 Q
u

a
lit

y
 &

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 C
o

-o
rd

in
a

to
r 

(d
e

p
u

ti
s
e

s
 f

o
r 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 M

a
n

a
g
e

r)
 

·
 

L
S

C
B

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 D
e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

r 
 

·
 

L
S

C
B

 T
ra

in
in

g
 C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r 
 

·
 

L
S

C
B

 A
d

m
in

 C
o

-o
rd

in
a

to
r 

 

·
 

L
S

C
B

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
to

r 

·
 

L
S

C
B

 A
d

m
in

 A
p
p

re
n

ti
c
e

 

              

L
S

C
B

 B
u
d
g
e
t 

T
h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
c
o

n
tr

ib
u
ti
o

n
s
 f

ro
m

 p
a

rt
n
e

r 
a
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 a

re
 a

s
 f

o
llo

w
s
: 

 P
a
rt

n
e
r 

2
0
1
5
/1

6
 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 

2
0
1
6
/1

7
 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
 

D
u
rh

a
m

 C
o
u
n
ty

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

£
1
7
1
,6

0
4
 

£
1
7
1
,6

0
4
 

C
lin

ic
a
l 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 G

ro
u
p
s
 

£
9
5
,0

9
7
 

£
9
5
,0

9
7
 

T
e
e
s
, 

E
s
k
 &

 W
e
a
r 

V
a
lle

y
s
 N

H
S

 

F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T

ru
s
t 

£
2
,6

8
0
 

£
2
,6

8
0
 

C
o
u
n
ty

 D
u
rh

a
m

 &
 D

a
rl
in

g
to

n
 N

H
S

 

F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T

ru
s
t 

£
2
,6

8
0
 

£
2
,6

8
0
 

N
o
rt

h
 T

e
e
s
 &

 H
a
rt

le
p
o
o
l 
N

H
S

 

F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 T

ru
s
t 

£
2
,6

8
0
 

£
2
,6

8
0
 

H
a
rr

o
g

a
te

 a
n
d
 D

is
tr

ic
t 
N

H
S

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

T
ru

s
t 

- 
£
2
,6

8
0
 

D
u
rh

a
m

 C
o
n
s
ta

b
u
la

ry
 

£
2
9
,2

8
5
 

£
2
9
,2

8
5
 

D
u
rh

a
m

 T
e
e
s
 V

a
lle

y
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

R
e
h
a
b
ili

ta
ti
o
n
 C

o
m

p
a
n
y
  

£
1
,3

4
0
 

£
1
,3

4
0
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
P

ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 
£
1
,3

4
0
 

£
2
,0

3
2
 

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 C

o
lle

g
e
s
 

£
2
,1

0
0
 

£
2
,1

0
0
 

C
a
fc

a
s
s
 

£
5
5
0

 
£
5
5
0
 

T
o

ta
l 

£
3
0
9
,3

5
6
 

£
3
1
2
,7

2
8
 

     
 

Page 145



 

4
8
 

                               

                

  

L
S

C
B

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 U

n
it
 3

rd
 F

lo
o

r 

C
o
u

n
ty

 H
a

ll 

D
u
rh

a
m

 

C
o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a
m

 

D
H

1
 5

U
J
  

E
m

a
il:

 l
s
c
b

@
d
u

rh
a
m

.g
o

v
.u

k
 

T
e

l:
 0

3
0

0
0
 2

6
5

 7
7

0
  

A
 c

o
p

y
 o

f 
th

is
 r

e
p
o

rt
 i
s
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 o

n
 w

w
w

.d
u

rh
a

m
-l
s
c
b
.o

rg
.u

k
 

D
u

rh
a

m
 L

S
C

B
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 2
0
1

5
 /
 2

0
1

6
 -

 S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 C

h
il

d
re

n
 i
n

 C
o

u
n

ty
 D

u
rh

a
m

  

T
h
e

 D
u

rh
a

m
 L

o
c
a

l 
S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 C

h
ild

re
n

 B
o
a

rd
 h

a
s
 a

 s
ta

tu
to

ry
 d

u
ty

 t
o

 p
re

p
a

re
 a

n
d

 p
u

b
lis

h
 a

n
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 w
h
ic

h
 d

e
s
c
ri
b

e
s
 h

o
w

 o
u

r 

p
a

rt
n
e

rs
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

 v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 C
o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a
m

. 
 O

u
r 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 i
s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 w
a

y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 l
o

c
a

l 

o
rg

a
n

is
a
ti
o
n

s
 t
h

a
t 

h
a

v
e

 a
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 i
n

 r
e
s
p

e
c
t 
o
f 

c
h

ild
 w

e
lf
a

re
, 
to

 a
g
re

e
 h

o
w

 t
h

e
y
 w

ill
 w

o
rk

 t
o

g
e

th
e

r 
to

 s
a
fe

g
u
a

rd
 a

n
d

 p
ro

m
o

te
 t
h

e
 w

e
lf
a

re
 

o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 C
o
u

n
ty

 D
u

rh
a
m

 a
n

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

y
 d

o
 s

o
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
. 

 T
h
e

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u

n
g
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
f 

C
o
u
n

ty
 D

u
rh

a
m

 a
re

 a
t 

th
e

 h
e
a

rt
 o

f 
a

ll 
w

e
 d

o
 a

n
d

 o
u

r 
v
is

io
n

 o
f 

‘E
v
e

ry
 c

h
il
d

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
rs

o
n

 i
n

 C
o

u
n

ty
 

D
u

rh
a

m
 f

e
e

ls
 s

a
fe

 a
n

d
 g

ro
w

s
 u

p
 s

a
fe

 f
ro

m
 h

a
rm

’ 
c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 d

ri
v
e

 u
s
 f

o
rw

a
rd

. 
 

 T
h

is
 A

n
n
u

a
l 
R

e
p

o
rt

 g
iv

e
s
 a

n
 a

c
c
o
u

n
t 
o
f 

th
e

 B
o

a
rd

’s
 w

o
rk

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 p

a
s
t 

y
e

a
r 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h
e
 s

a
fe

ty
 a

n
d

 w
e

llb
e

in
g
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

. 
 

T
h
e

 
re

p
o

rt
 

re
fl
e
c
ts

 
th

e
 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

o
f 

th
e

 
L

S
C

B
 

a
n

d
 

it
s
 

s
u

b
-g

ro
u

p
s
 

a
g
a

in
s
t 

it
s
 

p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 

fo
r 

2
0
1

5
/1

6
. 

 
It

 
c
o

v
e

rs
 
th

e
 

m
a

jo
r 

c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 

a
n
d
 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e
n

ts
 o

f 
o
u

r 
p
a

rt
n
e

rs
’ 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

, 
w

h
e

re
 t

h
e

y
 l
in

k
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 B

o
a

rd
’s

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 h
a

d
. 

 I
t 

a
ls

o
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 

o
n

 t
h

e
 S

e
ri
o

u
s
 C

a
s
e

 R
e

v
ie

w
s
 a

n
d

 C
h

ild
 D

e
a

th
 R

e
v
ie

w
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 a

n
d

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

s
 t

h
e

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 w

e
 w

ill
 t

a
k
e

 f
o

rw
a

rd
 i
n

to
 2

0
1

6
/1

7
. 

 E
q

u
a
li

ty
 a

n
d

 D
iv

e
rs

it
y
  

D
u
rh

a
m

 L
S

C
B

 s
tr

iv
e

s
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 e
q
u

a
l 
a

c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 s

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 

fo
r 

th
o

s
e

 c
h

ild
re

n
 w

h
o

 a
re

 u
n
a

b
le

 t
o

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
, 
d

u
e

 t
o
 t

h
e

ir
 a

g
e

, 
d

is
a
b

ili
ty

 o
r 

 

fi
rs

t 
la

n
g
u

a
g
e

, 
w

it
h

 t
h

o
s
e

 p
e
o

p
le

 o
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

h
a

t 
a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o

 p
ro

te
c
t 
th

e
m

. 
 

 

Page 146


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting held 29 September 2016
	7 Young Carers Update
	8 Educational Attainment of Looked After Children
	9 Education Services Update -  Report of Interim Corporate Director Children and Young People's Services
	10 Annual Report of the Adoption Service and Adoption Panel Report - Report of Interim Corporate Director Children's Services
	OSC - 93.11.16 - Adoption Service And Adoption Panel Report

	11 Annual Report of the Fostering Panels and the Fostering Service - Report of the Interim Corporate Director of Children and Young People's Services
	12 Durham Local Safeguarding Annual Report - Report of the Independent Chair of Local Safeguarding Childrens Board
	Durham LSCB Annual Report 2015 2016


